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Financial Highlights
MBHEE

Statement of Profit or Loss and BERREMEERAR Year ended 31 December
Other Comprehensive Income BE+-ZB=+—HLEE
RMB million
ARBEET
2022 2021 Changes
Continuing HFEMN —EBE_F BT B4
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FBREER
Revenue Wz 216.0 206.2 4.75%
Gross Profit EF 68.4 73.2 (6.56%)
Loss before tax from continuing B RS PR R A 18
operation (62.2) (79.4) (21.66%)
Loss for the year from continuing FEREEEFENEIR
operation (72.1) (82.6) (12.71%)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BRIERERT
Profit/(loss) for the year from RIS ENERN
discontinued operations (&548) 14.2 (163.7) (108.67%)
Loss for the year FREE (58.0) (246.3) (76.45%)
Loss attributable to shareholders of A B R ELETIE
the Company (55.2) (245.39) (77.50%)
Basic HAK
— For loss for the year —FRNEE RMB(7.7) cents  RMB(33.5) cents
ARE7.7)% AR(33.5%
— For loss from continuing operations —FEREXEREIE RMB(9.6) cents  RMB(11.1) cents
AR¥(0.6)7 AR
Dividend per shar (HK cents) BREEE B
—interim — A 0.0 1.0
— final — kA 0.0 0.0
— combined =) 0.0 1.0
31 December
Statement of financial position SRR TR +ZB=+—8
RMB million
ARBBET
2022 2021 Changes
—ETZZ BT B E)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,044.6 900.7 15.98%
Current assets TMENEE 405.8 653.9 (37.94%)
Current liabilities mEBaE (180.1) (203.7) (11.59%)
Net current assets MBEEFE 225.8 450.2 (49.84%)
Non-current liabilities IEREEE (165.9) (185.8) (10.71%)
Net assets FEE 1,104.5 1,165.1 (5.20%)
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K[EER
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yongsheng Advanced
Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group” or “Yongsheng Advanced Materials”), | am
pleased to present the Group’s annual results report for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Year under Review” or the “Year”).

During the Year under Review, the economic recovery slowed down
due to the inevitable impact of strict pandemic prevention and control
measures on enterprises and economy as well as the increasing global
inflation and commodities prices caused by volatile international situation.
In the first half of 2022, Chinese government implemented strict zero-
COVID approach in response to the sporadic outbreak, which put
traditional labour-intensive industries such as textile industry in dire straits
with a large number of orders going to Southeast Asia, thus a sharp
drop in export orders. Besides, the environmental protection business
also confronted with multiple challenges as the pandemic significantly
hindered the projects expansion and the progress of construction. In
addition, the number of infections soared across the country as the
government lifted the above strict pandemic prevention measures
and lockdown in the fourth quarter. As a result, the trading volume
and prices in the real estate sector hit record low. Despite the various
external challenges, the Group adhered to the diversified development
strategy of advantageous businesses to advance the development of
textile business, property investment and environmental water projects
simultaneously, and ultimately achieved stable revenue for the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Li Cheng =3
Chairman and Executive Director
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

In 2022, the textile industry was faced with various challenges. Affected
by the repeated epidemic at several places in China, the global economy
dragged down by inflation and the more complex trading environment,
the market demand for textiles was weak as a whole, with a contraction
in demand for overseas orders. Coupled with the high volatility in the
cost and price of raw materials, the growth of production and sales in
the textile industry has slowed down. Therefore, the Group strategically
shifted to the domestic market and successfully developed domestic
customers. The domestic sales orders effectively covered the loss
of overseas orders and customers under such difficult environment,
and the adequate order volume demonstrated that the Group’s high-
quality products occupy a certain market share in the domestic
market. Since the fourth quarter of 2022, in light of the adjustment
of national prevention and control measures as well as the seasonal
growth of market consumption, the Textile Industry Climate Index has
rebounded significantly. The domestic trading market of textile has also
recovered steadily, and it is believed that the worst time has passed.
In 2023, as the epidemic prevention and control entered a new stage,
production activities have resumed in an orderly manner, with an ongoing
improvement of the demand for consumer textile markets. As a leader
in the industry, the Group is competitive by owning the relevant dyeing
technology and environmental protection equipment. In the face of
uncertain external environment, the Group actively conducts internal
optimization with an aim to enhance its production efficiency and improve
its technology. Meanwhile, the Group continuously carries out research
and development to enhance its competitiveness. Leveraging on its
diversified strategy and excellent product quality, the Group is able to
continuously develop the huge domestic market.

The Group’s Yongsheng Plaza, located in Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Hangzhou, has started operation
and has become one of the symbolic buildings in Xiaoshan or even
Hangzhou. During the Year under Review, the leasing of shops was
almost completed and lease agreements for most of the office floors
were successfully signed, which continued to provide a steady revenue
contribution to the Group. In order to revive the economy devastated by
the epidemic, China has continued to relax its control policies on the real
estate industry imposed in the past three years since the second half of
2022, including relaxing lending restrictions, encouraging acquisitions
and mergers, providing housing incentives and tax subsidies. In recent
years, Xiaoshan District has become a key development area in Zhejiang
Province. In order to support the demand for rigid and improved
housing, Xiaoshan District has also adjusted the purchase restrictions
in certain areas since the third quarter and introduced a corresponding
deed tax subsidy policy, which is expected to further revitalise the real
estate industry. The Group is optimistic on its economic development
prospects and will continuously optimise the asset structure to enhance
its competitiveness and sustainable development capabilities.
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With the deepening of national pollution reduction and environmental
management goals, the focus of the environmental industry is gradually
shifting to the construction and operation of pollution prevention
and control facilities. The Group is also actively exploring solid waste
treatment business and environmental water projects. In terms of
overseas market development, the Group has successfully launched
a water supply project in Malaysia, which is expected to be the first
benchmarking project, laying an important foundation for its further
expansion into overseas markets. In 2023, the Deging project in Zhejiang
Province and the water supply project in Malaysia invested by the Group
for years will embrace a long-term stable return period and are expected
to generate positive cash flow. The Group will continue to expand its
business into environmental protection-related industries by actively
capitalising on the development opportunities in the environmental
protection industry, in bid to achieve diversified business.

The worst of 2022 is believed to be over. During tough times, the Group
was committed to its long-term business strategy and continued to
optimize its business structure. The decisive sale of the RMAA services
segment business in June 2022 was aimed at reducing its negative
impact on the overall financial performance of the Group, focusing
resources and attention on developing the Group’s other advantageous
businesses and actively investing in promising industries such as
environmental hydraulic engineering. In the coming year, challenges and
opportunities coexist. Yongsheng Advanced Materials will continue its
enterprise spirit of “integrity, cooperation, mutual benefit, learning and
innovation”, pay close attention to the needs of the market, and make
unremitting investment in research and development and innovation to
provide customers with quality products. Based on its advantageous
businesses, the Group will continue to develop property investment and
operation of environmental hydraulic engineering projects to expand
the business layout of the Group. Looking ahead to 2023, with the
opportunity brought by favorable national policies and continuous
increase in consumer demand, the Group’s restructured business layout
is ready to meet the economic recovery. The Group is optimistic about the
business expansion plan, and believes that it will push the Group to forge
ahead. Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
gratitude to the shareholders, customers and business partners of the
Group for their continued support and trust. | would also like to express
my sincere appreciation to the members of the Board, the management
and employees for their dedication and efforts.

Li Cheng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Business Review

E 400

MARKET REVIEW

2022 was a challenging year for the Group. During the Year, global
inflation, the prolonged Russia-Ukraine conflict and the resurgent
COVID-19 imposed pressure on global economic activities during the
Year. Since the last quarter of 2021, major countries has tightened
their monetary policies, coupled with the seasonal COVID-19 epidemic
triggered by new Omicron variants in winter in various countries, global
economic recovery faltered. Following the relaxation of pandemic control
measures, the Southeast Asian economies have seen a rapid recovery
and a shift of industries, such as manufacturing to the southeast Asian
region. Due to the resurgent COVID-19 pandemic in China, China’s
upstream textile and apparel industry successively encountered phased
shutdowns in certain areas. Together with international political and
economic complexities and declining overseas demands, there was
a decrease in orders or even loss of orders. According to a survey
conducted by the China Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association,
the composite prosperity index of the textile industry remained below the
line in 2022, while it was at 42.6%, 46.3% and 44.3% respectively in the
first three quarters of the Year. Fortunately, as the Chinese government
adjusted its pandemic control measures and market consumption
witnessed a seasonal growth in the fourth quarter of the Year, textile
enterprises resumed confidence and the industry composite prosperity
index rebounded to 47%. However, the phased shutdown due to the
COVID-19 outbreak in the fourth quarter of the Year reduced production
efficiency and disrupted project progress of the Group. In general, the
Group managed to maintain a healthy and cash-rich business in 2022
by flexibly responding to the impact of the macro environment on its
businesses.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Group is principally engaged in: (1) dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester filament fabric; (2) provision of renovation,
maintenance, alteration and addition services (‘RMAA Service”), which
has discontinued since July 2022; (3) properties investment; and (4)
environmental water project operation. In view of the depressed RMAA
market in Hong Kong, the Group restructured its business matrix in 2022
and disposed of its RMAA Service in July 2022 to focus its resources on
the long-term development of dyeing and processing of differentiated
polyester filament fabric, environmental water project operation and
property investment operation, thereby creating more value for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

8 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

During the Year under Review, the Group’s continuing operations
(excluding the provision of RMAA Service) recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB216.0 million, representing an increase of 4.8% from
approximately RMB206.2 million for 2021 (excluding the provision of
RMAA Service).

During the Year under Review, revenue from dyeing and processing
of differentiated polyester filament fabric and property investment
accounted for approximately 84.7% and 15.3% of the turnover of the
Group’s continuing operations, respectively. And the gross profit of the
two segments were approximately RMB68.4 million, which represented
a decrease of approximately 6.6%. The gross profit margin of continuing
operations was decreased to approximately 31.7% during the Year
from approximately 35.5% for 2021 mainly due to the increase in the
production cost of dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester
filament fabric.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In 2022, due to the resurgence of COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong,
the overall development of RMAA market in Hong Kong slowed down.
In order to minimize the adverse impact on the Group’s overall financial
performance, in July 2022, the Group disposed of the RMAA segment,
being the total issued share capital of Summer Power International
Inc. and its sole subsidiary, namely Widely Construction & Engineering
Limited, at a consideration of RMB29.5 million, which was completed
during the Year under Review. Such disposal brought a gain before tax of
approximately RMB15.6 million to the Group. The disposal has enabled
the Group to consolidate resources and efforts for further promoting other
businesses of greater potential.

During the Year under Review, discontinued operations recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB16.5 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 74.3% from RMB64.3 million for 2021. Gross profit
of discontinued operations was RMB1.4 million, representing an
improvement from gross loss of approximately RMB6.6 million for 2021.
Gross profit margin of discontinued operations was approximately 8.4%
for the Year under Review as compared to the gross loss position in
2021.

Business Review
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OVERALL BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB232.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.0% from approximately RMB270.5 million for 2021,
and gross profit of approximately RMB69.8 million, representing an
increase of approximately 4.7% from approximately RMB66.7 million for
2021. Its overall gross profit margin was improved from approximately
24.6% in 2021 to 30.0% for the Year, which was mainly due to the
improvement in the occupancy rate of Yongsheng Plaza and that the
gross profit margin of such property rental business is higher than
other business segments of the Company. During the Year under
Review, the Group recorded a loss attributable to the Shareholders for
2022 was approximately RMB55.2 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 77.5% from loss attributable to Shareholders of
approximately RMB245.3 million in 2021, with a loss per share of
RMB7.7 cents (2021: loss per share RMB33.5 cents). The decrease
in the net loss for the Year was mainly attributable to: (i) nearly no fair
value loss on financial instrument was recognised during the Year, as
compared to fair value loss of approximately RMB19.0 million on financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss recognised during the
corresponding period last year; (i) no impairment losses on goodwill
and other intangible assets would be required to be recorded during
the Year under Review; (iii) the Group disposed of its RMAA service
segment, recording a gain before tax of approximately RMB15.6 million
during the Year under Review; (iv) decrease in the fair value loss on
investment properties; and (v) the change of use of Group’s properties
held for sale, resulting the reclassification of leased properties held for
sale to completed investment properties and a remeasurement loss of
approximately RMB70.4 million recognised during the Year under Review.
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Dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester
filament fabric

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Dyeing and Finishing Co. Limited
(“Yongsheng Dyeing”), a subsidiary of the Company, located in
Hangzhou, is principally engaged in polyester filament fabric dyeing
and processing and has been certified as a High and New Technology
Enterprise by the PRC government and is further recognised as a
Provincial Level Research and Development Center.

In 2022, global consumer sentiment deterioration, together with the
escalating conflict between Russia and Ukraine, rising inflation rates,
accelerating monetary tightening in Europe and the United States, and
frequent outbreaks of COVID-19 pandemics and other factors, left a
great impact on the end-use consumer market. Consumer confidence
indicators have fallen in many major economies around the world, which
reflected weakening demand for non-essential consumables. At the
same time, as a result of the () ongoing tensions between the United
States and China; and (i) the resumption of production in Vietham and
India, overseas customers tend to shift their supply chain to Southeast
Asia, resulting in a serious outflow of export orders. The Group specializes
in the production of high-quality home textile fabrics, and experienced
a decline in sales due to deepening worries about the expected high
inflation rate in the US and European markets. During the Year, the
automotive industry reduced production due to the impact of rising raw
material prices and chip shortages, which resulted in a decline in orders
for automotive interior decoration which is one of end-use consumers
of the Group’s product. In order to maintain the utilization rate of the
Group’s factories and to compensate the decreased order demand, the
Group strategically diverted its resources to develop domestic apparel
sales during the Year. For the Year under Review, segment revenue was
approximately RMB183.1 million, representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 8.6% as compared to approximately RMB200.3 million
in 2021. With the changes in product structures, decreased product
unit price, coupled with high volatility in the prices of raw materials, cost
pressure of the industry generally increased, and profit margins were
squeezed. Gross profit margin declines from 34.0% in 2021 to 22.2% in
2022.
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Properties investment
The property assets held by the Group include:

(1)  Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.
Located in the new urban construction center of Hangzhou,
Yongsheng Plaza has a superior location with an aggregate gross
above ground floor area of approximately 41,643.61 square
meters with 24 storeys above the ground and 3 storeys under
the ground. During the Year under Review, the leasing of shops in
Yongsheng Plaza was largely completed, with further increase in
the occupancy rate of the commercial portion of Yongsheng Plaza,
which is expected to make stable contribution to the Group’s
revenue. During the Year under Review, the Group recorded rental
income of approximately RMB28.8 million and revenue from
management service of approximately 2.2 million from Yongsheng
Plaza; and

(2)  eight office units for commercial uses in a building located in
Xiaoshan Economic and Technological Development Zone,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, with an aggregate
gross floor area of approximately 2,648.78 square meters. All the
office units have been leased out and have brought a stable and
sustainable income to the Group, generating rental income of
approximately RMB1.9 million from such office units during the
Year.

In view of the implementation of moderately tightening policies for the
property market by the Chinese government and a sluggish real estate
market in China, the Group has recorded an fair value loss on investment
properties of approximately RMB20.3 million.
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Environmental water project operation

Pursuing green transformation and promoting the development of
low-carbon industries have always been major targets of the Chinese
government, together with the incentives and benefits brought by
favourable government policies, the environmental protection industry is
embracing a new round of growth. According to “Implementation Plan on
Accelerating the Comprehensive Utilization of Industrial Resources” (&
RINRES TEERG AT AN BT 2)) published by the Chinese
government in early 2022, the recycling efficiency and comprehensive
utilization of industrial resources shall be improved. According to the
projection by China Association of Environmental Protection Industry, the
annual revenue of ecological and environmental protection industry would
be approximately RMB2.22 trillion in 2022, realizing a promising start of
the “14th Five-Year Plan”. Last year, the Group, through a joint venture,
invested in Zhejiang Deqing Jiemai New Material Company Limited*
G IEBENERMMERAT, “Zhejiang Deqing”), a company
which is principally engaged in the production and sales of new building
materials for structural reinforcement of buildings. It is an extension of
the Group’s efforts to expand the utilisation of waste resource. During
the Year, the project of Zhejiang Deqing completed the quality inspection
and was officially put into operation, which contributed experience in
construction maintenance, construction waste treatment, production of
new construction materials and other related aspects for the Group.

Meanwhile, the Group previously won a bid in a judicial auction in relation
to two parcels of industrial land and related ancillary facilities such as
factories and office buildings in Maanshan City. During the Year, the
Group has obtained the real estate title certificates, and is negotiating
with the existing tenants of the factories on short-term leasing, as well
as actively communicating with the government to obtain the necessary
licenses for environmental protection-related projects. It is expected that
the projects will commence business operation and proceed to financing
stage soon. In terms of overseas business, with the launch of the “One
Belt, One Road” favourable green development policy, the environmental
water projects developed by the Group through the joint venture are
progressing in an orderly manner. The joint venture partner of the Group
in the Southeast Asia has been continuously carrying out the preparation
work on the Malaysian water supply project, which is expected to
become the first benchmark project that will help the Group to secure
other water projects in the Southeast Asia. It is expected that the Group’s
environmental water projects will bring itself stable revenue returns in the
future.

*

For identification purposes only

Business Review
E£ 16

RRKBEEEE

RRGEBEMNTHESHBRERLE R —EETHK
BB R BN R IRRE M AVALR) » IR R EE S 2R
M—WOE R -RBPEBGR T - F4 %M
AR MRS TEERESHBNERSE)
THEERBRMERRGEENBKTESURES &
TEREREEXEHREGANE _E__F2FLER
BRREXEWRN2228F T BRITMOA RIFH
B-AEREFRBGECEREMNIEBERNEN
MAERRR (HIEE) IR FIBENFREE
EEHEMEREMMNEERBE  BREER
HRNUIREREFANERER - RNERN > HLE
BHEEAESHERBRELEXRAEE  REAEH
BN EREE BENRERE BENMEE

ERMNEEEEE-

FE IR AEBEBRZHBERSUNEE LT
BymtE TE A RAARBRE NN ABFRERE
RENBREIHERSE BRAEREARERS
FREREENERSEE RS BIEEBFEE
PRIRFEFEENVSERR BB RAEFTEE
WK EARERER -NBINEBHE BE
—BISBERMNFEROEL  AEEBBSE
CEERNRFRAKBEETEAFEER -AEE
REREONGEEESFBHFERRERARMH
KEENEFHETE AEJEEERFEE BN
AREBFIMEAMBEDMENKFEEER - FERRERE
HRFEKFEERERRBSEGRBEN RO
o

Y EHEE

XEE MR ERAR 20225 13



Business Review
E$ 50| |

PROSPECTS

At the beginning of 2023, three years after the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic, China duly relaxed its COVID-19 pandemic control policies,
e.g. officially classified COVID-19 as Category B Infectious Disease, and
cancelled nucleic acid testing for all staff and centralized isolation upon
entry. The central government, in the Standing Meeting of the State
Council, called for continued efforts to implement the current economic
and social development work and for joint efforts to consolidate and
expand the momentum of economy recovery. Benefiting from the strong
economic policies and macro policy adjustment, production activities
have resumed in an orderly manner and end-use customers traffic and
consumer confidence are gradually picking up. The Group will be more
aggressive in exploiting domestic market, and make greater effort to
open up the home-textiles market in addition to the apparel market. As
a leader in the industry, the Group has advantages on dyeing technology
and environmental protection equipment. The Group has committed in
improving production efficiency and enhancing competitiveness over the
past few years. The Group is confident that it will be able to gain market
share in the domestic market with its product quality and value for money.
Meanwhile, China continues to open up to the outside world, promote
trade and investment liberalization and facilitates mutually beneficial
cooperation with other countries. Along with the successful de-stocking
of overseas leading brands, overseas export orders are expected to
improve in the second half of 2023. The Group will pay close attention
to the changes in overseas market and adjust its strategies in a timely
manner to maximise the potential opportunities and face challenges, in
order to achieve sound and sustainable development.

In 2023, the national real estate sales are still in rebound, and there is
a possibility that the current easing policies would sustain or further
strengthened. The Hangzhou government of China gradually relaxed
its property market restrictions with gradual easing in areas such as
tax, purchase restrictions, loan and household registration, so as to
expand the property buyer group and lower the threshold and reduce
the capital stress for property purchasing. Meanwhile, Hangzhou city had
additional subway lines, which is conducive to a connected, efficient and
integrated transportation network. In addition, the Asian Games to be
held in September 2023 will have a strong comprehensive effect on the
improvement of city’s integrated city capability and core competitiveness,
which will be beneficial to economic recovery and real estate market
stability of Hangzhou.
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It is believed that the shops in Yongsheng Plaza, being one of the Group’s
investment projects, will continue to bring stable income contribution to
the Group in the future with capital appreciation potential in the long run.
Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou is a key development area in Zhejiang
Province, with a complete layout of clusters and industry chains and
continuous improvement of aggregation capacity. Therefore, the Group
will seize the opportunity to constantly optimize its asset structure and
effectively enhance its capacity for sustainable development.

In recent years, China has issued a series of strategic deployments
and plans, with an aim to provide a sound policy environment for green
development. Among them, the report of the 20th National Congress
clearly puts forward that promoting economic and social development
in a green and low-carbon way is the key link to achieve high-quality
development of the country. At the same time, with the deepening
of pollution reduction and environmental management objectives in
China, the focus of the environmental protection industry is gradually
shifting to the construction and operation of pollution prevention and
control facilities. The Guidelines on Preferential Taxation Policies for
Green Development ((Z#F#x a2 BN BB EEEIES])), which was
issued by the State Administration of Taxation, proposes to enhance
policy support for comprehensive utilization of wastes, proper disposal
of sewage and garbage, efficient utilization of mineral resources and
construction of water treatment projects. The Group will continue to
promote the development of environmental protection industry and
water treatment projects in China and Southeast Asia, and actively
explore domestic and overseas markets to seize the substantial business
opportunities in green and renewable economy.

Looking forward, on top of optimising the Group’s existing business
segments, the Group will meet the needs of domestic and overseas
customers through continuous refinement of dyeing and processing
technologies and expansion of product lines, thereby further
strengthening the foundation of its core business. In the meantime, the
Group will harness the development opportunities by targeting the blue
ocean markets including environmental water treatment and constantly
expanding into environmental protection related industry, in order to
diversify the business and strive for the best interests of the Shareholders.

Business Review
E£ 16

KBEAEEFHEATERNREER HAEIER
REERSAEABRBERAER TREAER
BEZEN -FBLUeRWIEEHEREE &5
EFXREMATE REENTEHRA FEERKE
ERE REBCEEGRIERNREANEER R
BES e

EER BERHE—FRIEBRIMLENRE > HITE
HEERPUMREHREFHRRIRE —+XR®RETH
HBREY EHEETTERGBLC ERIERSER
ExRsEE%RNERIEN AR BERERISHR
BFRIRREEARRC RREENELERY
HRISRARMERRET BRRHEREM
(X FHEEERMNEBBERRES)  RHRSMNR
HEEMESNBA S KIIREE - BEE RSN
A -KBIEERESTERREFT AEERF
BHEEPENRERIRREERRKBREEERE A
minREE RS IBEGEOE BB ELHENE
R

RERF ERILCFERREEFRBVER L
REERSEBELAENIRTIENERERE
mELUREBRINZERHNTR E—FHLERZOLE
BHRE  BERIRFKBENEBHS ME
RAZREE CTHERFEMEX BREHS
o RE BREFHRRAN -

XBEMEAERAR 20222355 19



Financial Review

FiA %5 o] B8

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and
gross profit derived from continuing operations by the Group for the Year
under Review:

W a2 EF]
T RBP4 E R EIRE 4 Py A o A R
U 3 o % B4R

Revenue

change between

2022 2021 2022 and 2021

g T —%F —E-FH

RMB’000 RMB’000 TR —F

Revenue g AR®BTT AR®TFT S &b =)
1. Dyeing and processing 1ERERMT 183,068 200,338 (8.6)%
2. Properties investment 2MERKRE 32,946 5,844 463.8%
Total A&t 216,014 206,182 4.8%

Revenue derived from continuing operations of the Group in 2022
was approximately RMB216.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately 4.8% from approximately RMB206.2 million as compared
with last year. The increase in revenue derived from continuing operations
of the Group was mainly due to the increase in the revenue derived from
the property investment segment. The main reason of such increase is
the improvement of occupancy rate of Yongsheng Plaza which increased
the rental income of the Group during the Year under Review.

AR T EAERBESEERNRENAA
ElE216.088 T BREFHHNARME206.25E T
WIN494.8% c REBRFELEEBNRRIZMER
RHRYELREDBWEIL N - MERE DB INE
ENNEBREZNOBEERKEAEDHEEREA
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Gross profit
change between

2022 2021 2022 and 2021

—EZC B4 T _F8

RMB’000 RMB’000 —E-—5F

Gross profit EF AR¥TFT AREFT I EF &5
1. Dyeing and processing 1R26EKRINT 40,645 68,094 (40.3)%
2. Properties investment QWIHERE 27,766 5,152 438.9%
68,411 73,246 6.6%)

Gross profit derived from continuing operations of the Group in 2022
was approximately RMB68.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.6% as compared with the same last year. The decrease
in gross profit was mainly due to the increase of production cost of dyeing
and processing segment of the Group, which squeezed the gross profit
of such segment.
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decrease by approximately
RMB1.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately 43.2% as
compared to that of 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in (i) the salary and bonus of salesmen in dyeing and processing business
as there was a decline in sales during the Year; and (ii) marketing
promotion fee after completion of leasing of Yongsheng Plaza.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses amounted to around RMB39.8 million during the
Year under Review, which remained stable as compared to that of 2021.

FAIR VALUE LOSS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial properties
in Hangzhou, the PRC. The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2022 based on valuations performed by Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”), an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at approximately RMB809.6 million. The Group
recognised fair value loss on investment properties of approximately of
RMB20.3 million during the Year under Review.

In determining the fair value of the investment properties, Avista adopted
the generally accepted valuation method, income approach, which took
into account the net rental income derived from existing leases and/or
receivable in the current market with appropriate provision made for the
reversionary income potential of the leases, which was then capitalised
to determine the market value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.
Where appropriate, reference has also been made to comparable sales
transactions available in the relevant markets.

The fair value loss on investment properties recorded during the Year
was due to adverse impacts on the overall property market in the
PRC brought by negative factors such as COVID-19 control and slow
economic growth. Meanwhile, office rentals continued to be under
downward pressure given the intensified competition in rental market as
a result of increased supply of offices in Hangzhou during the second half
of the Year.

As the investment properties are medium to long-term investments for
the Group to maintain a stable and recurring income, and the fair value
loss is a non-cash item, it will not have a substantive impact on the cash
flow of the Group.

Financial Review
A#5ElEE

HERDHAR

FEENHEERDHEBIRLOARBIAEE
BRI T —FER 43 2% Z B TIEER
RORERBEEBE T BERLERMNIHEEERS
BB RIEALRLD 5 R()kBEAREHETETRE
EIHHEE AR -

TR

REBER TEHEZAOAARKEINEEE T &
TE T —FREFEE.

REWFEATEBE

REENKREWESTEMBARPERINEEY
o AEENBREYENR - _F+-_HA=+—
BRI RESERGEEMUEBTIEERER
NE (TRER) NHEETEG EENABARE
809.6B BT - NOBEFN > AEEMBKEENER
FEBBHOARB2035E T

TEETREMENRTER  LEBRAB WG ZE
(BEBEZHNGEER A KZEVERER
BHER/HEREHS LA WRIT ERBENE
BWRABNEBERFORESWAFE BRZF
BEACURR - BEEEACHEREENE-ES
BOBRTTEC2RAMTSURHNALHEER
Zo

FEEHFSNREMELQNTEBREDHRPEE
ETGEENRIEFEENCEERRESEE
HENAF T ERE - AR TFERMNE FEH
EERM HETSHFME > SFBESFEK
ZTTEL-

HRREVESTEBRNDTRAREURFRE R
KEERA MERATFEGERIFREER IR
TEHAEENRERELEEETE-

XBEMEAERAR 2022235 1



Financial Review
B4#5[olEE

The key parameters and assumptions for determination of the fair value
of investment properties are set out below:

1.

Market rents

The overall real estate market in China had been affected by a
series of negative factors, e.g. as COVID-19 control measures and
slowing economic growth, in 2022. In addition, the supply of office
buildings in Hangzhou increased in the second half of the Year,
which intensified the competition in the rental market and dragged
down the overall rental level. The market rents used in the valuation
were determined by Avista, after arm’s length negotiations on the
rents of comparable grade A offices at similar location and the
properties at neighboring areas, which reflected the then prevailing
market rents. The range of market rents used in the valuation
decreased from RMB73 — RMB190 per square metre per month
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB69 — RMB188 per
square metre per month for the Year under Review.

Reversionary yields

The reversionary yields used in the valuation was derived from the
valuer’s analysis on the relationship between prevailing market
rents and existing capital values of similar properties in the area.
The reversionary yields used in the valuation ranged from 4.0%
to 5.5%, while the capitalisation rates used in the valuation were
arrived with reference to comparable grade A offices in Hangzhou
and taking into account the characteristics of the properties. Such
expected return reflected the quality of investments, expectations
of the likelihood of future rental growth and capital appreciation, as
well as the associated risk factors. The capitalisation rate adopted
as at 31 December 2022 was similar to that adopted as at 31
December 2021 (ranging from 4.0% to 5.5%).

REMEASUREMENT LOSS UPON TRANSFER
OF CERTAIN PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The use of Group’s properties held for sale has been changed upon the

inception of operating leases with an external third party. As a result, the
leased properties held for sale was reclassified as completed investment
properties and a remeasurement loss of approximately RMB70.4 million

was recognised during the Year under Review.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

Impairment losses on financial and contract assets increased by
approximately 4,300% to RMB2.0 million, primarily due to the increase of
expected credit losses for the principal and interest of loan receivables.
For details of the impairment of loan receivables, please refer to the
section headed “Financial review — Details of loan receivables as at
31 December 2022 in this annual report.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately 108% to approximately
RMB15.0 million, primarily due to the fact that no finance costs was
capitalised after Yongsheng Plaza was ready for its intended use at the
end of September 2021. All finance costs incurred during the Year under
Review were recognised in the profit or loss.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Given the above factors, the Group recorded loss attributable to
Shareholders of approximately RMB55.2 million in 2022, representing a
decrease of approximately 78% as compared to last year.
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CASH FLOWS WERE
2022 2021
=z T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®EF T
Net cash flows from operating activities RETBPIRIREREFRE 55,256 31,361
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities KREZHAE/ FrH)
REREFER 44,262 (79,364)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities RMEES FrA)
FIiEIREmMEFE (48,147) 47,369
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRRERIREEEY 143,834 86,551

For the Year under Review, net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately RMB55.3 million, representing a significant increase
as compared with that of 2021, mainly due to the increase in the rental
income generated from Yongsheng Plaza.

During the Year, the Group recorded net cash flow generated from
investing activities of approximately RMB44.3 million as compared to net
cash used in investing activities of approximately RMB79.4 million during
2021. It was mainly due to: (i) decrease in capital expenditure in the
purchase of property, plant, equipment, leasehold land and investment
property; (i) net inflow of cash and cash equivalents from disposal of
subsidiaries; and (iii) settlement of the loan receivables.
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During the Year, the Group recorded net cash used in financing activities
of approximately RMB48.1 million, as compared to net cash generated
from financing activities of approximately RMB47.4 million in 2021, which
was mainly due to the decrease in new bank loans and the increase in
repayment of bank loans.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances, including
pledged deposits amounted to approximately RMB146.9 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB86.6 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the total bank borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB216.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB236.6 million).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s key financial ratio
reflecting its liquidity and gearing level, were as follows:

FR AEERSREZBMAREREFEOA
B4 188 M —FEMEEFHEENIR
EFENARETA4BE 0 DEEHRHRITE
mA/}ﬁy&fE?Tg$)ﬂi%T)\tgﬂD°

REBEERMBER

TR+ A+ FEENRSRIR
T4 (REBEREN KAARKEI1469HET
(CB-—#+-B=+—H: HARHs66HRE

JT) °

RIS _H+_A=+—R1 > ~EEMNIRTHENX
WBENAANRE216 188 (CTEZ—F+2A8
=+—H: S ARMK236.6EETT) ©

RIZEZZFRITZZ—F+ZA=+—H F&
ErRERBHES kB GEKTHRREMBF LN
S

2022 2021
—E-= =BT —F
% %
Current ratio’ TREELE 2.25 3.21
Debt to equity ratio? BEEER L 0.20 0.20
1 Based on total current assets over total current liabilities. L BRE s ERBRLUR S B BB E -
2 Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to the Shareholders. g YR (BN AR BB PR U B R FE (G R 5T & o
Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and BESENEN =]

related hedge

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi (‘RMB”). The reporting currency of the
Group is RMB.

The Group is exposed to minimal foreign currency exchange risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the Group manages its foreign exchange risk by regular
reviews.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are predominantly in RMB. The
Company will pay dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if any dividends are
declared.
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Employee benefits and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 282
employees (31 December 2021: 304 employees). The employees of the
Group were remunerated based on their experience, qualifications, the
Group's performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the Year under Review, staff costs derived from continuing
operations amounted to approximately RMB33.7 million (31 December
2021: RMB37.1 million).

The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration schemes. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible staff
based on individual’s and the Group’s performance.

The Group participated in the social insurance schemes operated by the
relevant local government authorities, which include retirement pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injuries insurance
and maternity insurance.

The Group emphasizes on team building and the Group’s success is
dependent on the contribution of all employees.

Significant investments held as at 31 December
2022

Financial Review
A#5ElEE

BTEMNRMEER

N2 ZF+ZHE=+—H > xEBELF282%
BE(CZE-—F+"B=+—H:304%E8) - &
EREENFHREBEELR BN AEERRRK
WITHBBRAE

REOBEE BELSEEENEIMESNAE AR
B.7EET (CE—F+ZA=1+—H: AR
371BEBIT) °

AEBOHES TRHEARSE AT o b
FEEARBEAARFTERXRRRAGERE TRM
IBTEAL R BB It o

AEES EABRM A BT PFIEERN RSB
ERUEZ BRER XEFR TERERES
R °

AEFSREBRERRTERNRNEBRN2ES
THERKe

RIE__F+_H=+—HEFEWNE
KgHE

Investment Fair value at Type of
Assets Manager Custodian amount Agreement date Year end investment
BEEEA FEA KE®E HEAS RERATE  REHEY
2022 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E_C ARETR ARBFR
Shanghai Tiange Investment Heng Tai Securities Co., Ltd. 20,000 1/2/2021 20,547 1
Management Co., Ltd.
FERXEEEEBRAT BHRESKRNERAE T —fF
_R—H
Minsheng Wealth Management ~ China Merchants Securities Co., 23,522 24/6/2020 4,998 1
Co., Ltd. Ltd.
REMEBEEEEERAR BHEEFKRNHERAT TERIEF
ANBZ+HEH
43,522 25,545
Note: 5T

BUBIRBIE)EEHIBEAESL (B RBERES ;(ilEH
HBEEEEEER VEFLRE VEETBES &
(V)IRITERR S ©

Type 1 investment refers to (i) money market trusts; (i) private investment
funds; (i) money market asset management products; (iv) bond repurchase;
(v) money market funds; and (vi) bank deposits, etc..

MREXFEBEIN R_BE__F+A=+—
B x&EEHEREEARE

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant investments held by
the Group as at 31 December 2022.
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Details of loan receivables as at 31 December 2022

it e

—__H+-RA=+—HHREKE

Term of
Source of Guarantee/ Contract Principal Annual the loan Reasons for granting of
Borrower borrowers security date amount interest rate (month) the loan
f&9A BRER Bi7/E8 ‘XM 5& FRE ERER(A) RUERHNESR
RMB
AR
Borrower A Introduced by controlling No pledge, no guarantee 2022/5/25 27,000,000 6.0% 12 Toimprove the return rate of the
(Note 1) shareholder of the Company; Group's surplus cash and cash
Independent Third Party equivalents for the purpose of
ERAA HAREERBRENS ; BIEREER k- St 3 increasing both the investment
(faE1) Bug=5 FA-+%A income and the profits of the
Group. Given that the Group
Borrower B Introduced by controlling No pledge, no guarantee 2022/5/30 27,000,000 6.0% 12 maintained long term loan
(Note 1) shareholder of the Company; relationship with Borrowers A
Independent Third Party to E and there was no previous
RVl RAABRERRENS ; RIEHRER 22 CHF incident of default or delay
(faE1) Bug=5 RA=1+H repayment, the Company is
of the view that the loans to
Borrower C Introduced by controlling No pledge, no guarantee 2022/5/30 6,000,000 6.0% 12 Borrowers A to E are a stable
(Note 1) shareholder of the Company; source of income for the Group.
Independent Third Party REAEERBHERESEE
ERAC RAABERRENSE RIEERER B YINERE LUEAEZEN
(izx1) BU%=H TA=1H REWARERF - ENAEE
HRERANEEESRBEREHE
Borrower D Introduced by controlling No pledge, personal 2022/1/5 40,197,000 5.0% 15 BRAFTEENNEESR
(Note 2) shareholder of the Company; guarantee by sole FEM AREDABBRA
Independent Third Party shareholder of Borrower D AZEERMNERALREEANE
ERAD RAABERRENS RIRE BRI B TEWATRN
(HizE2) BU%=h RIEAER —B%H
Borrower E Introduced by controlling No pledge, personal 2022/6/24 13,399,000 5.0% 9
(Note 2) shareholder of the Company; guarantee by sole
Independent Third Party shareholder of Borrower E
ERAE RAABERRENS RIEEEPENE—R B
(Hizz2) BU%=H RIEAER ~BZ+mA
Borrower F Introduced by controlling A pledge on the rights to 2022/71 25,534,000 12.0% 18 To promote the development
shareholder of the Company; collect revenue from the (Note 3) progress of certain sewage
Independent Third Party treatment services treatment projects
ERAF RAABERRENS MERKEERBERERLE —E-°F (Fiz23) EBNDSKEEEENER
BUE=A BYRERMEIEIR tA—-H EE
Borrower G Potential joint venture, please Pledge of equity interests 2020/11/20 2,585,000 18% 18 To promote the development
refer to the announcement in Borrower G, personal (Note 4) progress of the solid waste
of the Company dated 26 guarantee by shareholders treatment and environmental
January 2021 of the Borrower G, protection projects of a
Mortgage of machinery and potential joint venture of the
equipment of Borrower G Group. Please refer to the
EBHAG BEAELYE F2REA ERRERHGHRE & ZZIZF (FftzE4) announcement of the Company
SARMAR_—%—A8 AFHGHIRRME AR +—BZ+H dated 26 January 2021 for
I oN=PAN RERHCHIE SRR further detalls.
[-pAieol ERLEE-RELSEREN
EREENEERRREEN
BREE -E—FHEFSZHE
AARHBAZE—F—FB
ZHRENAS.
141,715,000
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(1) These loans are trust loan arrangements with commercial banks.

2) Borrower D and Borrower E renewed their respective loan agreements
for three months upon expiry. Borrower D and Borrower E repaid the all
outstanding balance and accrued interest on 30 March 2023.

(8)  The principal amount represented outstanding balance as at 31
December 2022 of a supply chain financing loan granted by the Group.
Borrower F renewed its loan agreement for 18 months upon expiry in
June 2022.

(4) The original principal amount was RMB9.95 million. During the Year,
Borrower G repaid RMB7.36 million. The outstanding principal amount
was overdue and the Group has been charging 18% overdue interest
pursuant to the loan agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not grant any other loans to
independent third parties during the Year which remained outstanding as
at 31 December 2022.

The Group granted the above loans by utilising its general working
capital. Prior to granting each of the loans, the Group conducted due
diligence on the borrowers, including but not limited to, obtaining the
latest financial statements of the borrowers, previous repayment record
of the borrowers, source of funding, etc.. The Group also adopted loan
monitoring measures to safeguard its interest in granting the loans: e.g.
request the borrowers to provide latest financial statements on a regular
basis and notify the Group for any material change in shareholding and
management structure, monitor the fund flow of the borrowers, etc..

The Group recorded a provision for impairment of loans receivable of
approximately RMB2.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: RMBO0.5 million). The increase in the loan impairment was mainly
attributable to the downgrading of credit rating of certain loan borrowers
accessed by the Company using Moody’s Rating Methodology.

Basis on determining impairment of financial
assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECLS”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 60 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs as detailed below.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial Review
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In particular, the following factors are taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk of the Loan Receivables has increased significantly

since initial recognition, including:

U

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the Loan
Receivables’ external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, and the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the relevant debtor;

significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of
the relevant debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the relevant debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the relevant debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

For further details on the basis of determining the ECL, please refer to
Notes 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li”)

aged 60, is an executive Director and the chairman (the “Chairman”) of
the Board. Mr. Li is also the chairman of the nomination committee under
the Board and one of the authorised representatives of the Company.
Mr. Li has more than 30 years of experience in textile and trading industry,
and is mainly responsible for overall business strategy and management
of the Group. From August 1985 to May 1993, Mr. Li had been engaged
in trading of textile products as a sole proprietorship. He worked as the
general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company from March
1993 to November 1997, and from November 1997 to June 1999, he
assumed the role of general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber Company Limited (currently known as Hangzhou Yongsheng Group
Limited, “Yongsheng Group”). He served as the general manager of
Hangzhou Yongsheng Weaving Limited (“Yongsheng Weaving”) from
June 1999 to April 2003. Since 2003, Mr. Li has been appointed as a
chairman of the board of directors of Yongsheng Group. Mr. Li has been
a senior economist since October 2013. Since August 2014, Mr. Li has
been a director of LN 7t R = 4R f2 15 B BR A Bl (Hangzhou Shining
3D Tech Co. Ltd., NEEQ stock code: 830978), the shares of which were
quoted on National Equities Exchange and Quotations (‘“NEEQ”) of the
PRC.

Mr. Li completed his professional study majoring in dyeing and
processing engineering in Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textile (now known as
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University) in July 1985. In March 2004, he completed
a course on corporate director advanced business administration
which was held by Ningbo Jianfeng Management Technology Research
Centre. Between 2006 and 2012, Mr. Li had also completed various
courses including the Senior Training Course on the Philosophy of New
Technology and Enterprise Growth—Growth enterprise and the Senior
Training Course on Financial Investment in Real Operations respectively
offered by the school of humanities and the school of media of Zhejiang
University, the Senior Training course for Business Administration
Executives offered by Zhejiang Gongshang University, the training course
for senior enterprise operators and managers in Hangzhou City on “356
Engineering Programme” in relation to investment, financing and capital
operation training offered by Fudan University. Mr. Li was appointed as
the deputy chairman of The Professional Committee of Zhejiang Province
Privately-operated Economic Research Centre in December 2002. Mr. Li
has completed the CEO Finance Program for China Enterprise in 2016,
which was held by the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEE

Mr. Li has been elected as a representative of the Hangzhou City
Xiaoshan District People’s Congress of the PRC from December 2016.
Mr. Li was elected as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
between May 2005 and December 2016. In November 2018, Mr. Li was
elected as the vice president of first session of Hong Kong Hangzhou
Chamber of Commerce. He was also elected as the chairman of the
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Wenzhou Chamber of Commerce in July
2010, the vice-chairman of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District General
Chamber of Commerce in December 2012, the standing council member
and vice-chairman of the China Chemical Fiber Association in April
2012 and April 2015 respectively. In October 2008, Mr. Li was named
as the “Staff Caring Outstanding Entrepreneur” of Hangzhou City which
was jointly awarded by the Federation of Trade Union of Hangzhou City
and the Industry and Commerce Joint Committee of Hangzhou City. In
February 2013, Mr. Li was awarded the “Outstanding Socialist Builder”
for the years 2010—2012 by the Office of China Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District and The People’s Government Office of Hangzhou City Xianshan
District. Mr. Li is the uncle of Mr. Li Conghua, an executive Director.

Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”)

aged 48, is an executive Director and the general manager of the
manufacturing division of Yongsheng Dyeing. Mr. Ma has more
than twenty years of experience in the textile industry, and is mainly
responsible for management and supervision of ordinary operation of
the Group’s dyeing business. Mr. Ma was the technical supervisor and
workshop officer of Zhejiang Hongli Group Limited Printing and Dyeing
Branch Company from August 1994 to February 2001. Mr. Ma held the
position of domestic trading manager of Yongsheng Group from January
2002 to July 2005 and was previously a director of Yongsheng Group.
Mr. Ma served as the vice factory director, factory director and deputy
general manager of Yongsheng Dyeing from August 2005 to February
2008, and has held the general manager position of Yongsheng Dyeing
since February 2008.
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In July 1994, Mr. Ma completed his professional study major in dyeing
and processing in Zhejiang Province Common Intermediate Professional
School. He completed the Senior Training Course for Chief Executive
Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by the school of humanity of
Zhejiang University in April 2007. He completed the course of Business
Management from Donghua University in July 2015 and obtained his
professional Diploma. Mr. Ma was awarded the “Progressive Individual
of Xiaoshan Dongpian Printing, Dyeing and Chemical Industry Provincial
Level Environmental Protection Key Regulatory Area Remediation
Work” by the People’s Government of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou
City in October 2007. Mr. Ma obtained the award of “Outstanding
Contract Manager of Xiaoshan District” jointly offered by the Hangzhou
Administration for Industry and Commerce Xiaoshan Branch and
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Enterprise Contract Management
Association in 2010.

Mr. Li Conghua (“Mr. Li CH”)

aged 49, is an executive Director. Mr. Li CH has more than 15 years
of experience in the textile industry, and was mainly responsible for
management and supervision of ordinary operation of the Group’s
trading business before the disposal of the trading business of textile-
related products by the Group in May 2015. Mr. Li CH is currently
responsible for conducting product market trend analysis. He worked as
a chemical fiber materials salesperson in the chemical fiber department
in Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company Limited from June 1997 to
December 2000, and worked as a department manager in chemical
fiber department of Yongsheng Group from January 2000 to December
2004. Mr. Li CH has also completed the Senior Training Course for Chief
Executive Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by Zhejiang University in
January 2008. Mr. Li CH is the nephew of Mr. Li Cheng.

Mr. Xu Wensheng (“Mr. Xu”)

aged 56, is an executive Director, has over 30 years of experience in
the construction industry. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board. He has joined the Group since 2016 and was
the vice general manager of the construction project of Yongsheng Plaza,
a building which is located at Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the general manager of each of Jiangsu
Zhongkai Properties Development Limited* CL#x P HEMESLEE
FR/A &) and Dalian Xinkongjian Properties Development Limited* (K%
B EMERZEARAE), which were companies established in
the PRC and were principally engaged in property development. Mr. Xu
obtained a bachelor’s degree from the Nanjing Institute of Architectural
Engineering* (M R 2 T2 £67) (currently known as Nanjing Tech
University (BB T KAL) in 1992.

Directors and Senior Management
ESREREERE

BRER-—NANOELARIWIAERPEEES
REMBESZE  TERBRMI KR _FTEL

FEMEEERMIABANERBERNRER T
EEHSRHAEH - BN _E—RAFLANEE

ABEERTIEHETEREHASRE BE/AER.
ERENR_ZESLF+ABMMNTHR LR ARBA
BP EUBRHNAR CTELERBEREUEER
BOATEAEBAIRBST TR S-S ELEMR
)I|FELE%‘%E&EEE%%Mﬁ%&m)l‘lﬁi%mgﬁ
¥R EEREHETEATHFLUEESARE
Bl

FHRELRE FHRERE)

49 ITEF - FTREXENHBEERBBIS
FRE R _Z-—HAFARAEEHEHBIEME
mEBREBZE TEEFEEREEAEEES
EENHEEE -FTRELLANEEEMTHE
BB —NANEERBETZEZZEE+"AH
BEEBLUKEEZSBRABMCEBMCEMHEEE A
B ERR-EEZE-RAE_ZTNE+_HEME
R@%@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ?%%@oiﬂ%%Iﬁ“:%%/\
F-AEBEHRNIASHARNMRE T FEBEE
MEMR - FTRERERTHEENEF-

xR RE (MREHE))

56m% MITES ﬁéL;%ﬁ¥%ﬁtsofﬁé$ o 1)
TREFEETHFMNEEEZINE KB AN
fEi?]D)UIS%I’Eﬂ@WU*L,\IEEZmJ i

2> ZAEF AN PRI E M) I‘\ﬁiﬁu_l,%%;*&ffﬂrﬁﬁ
é*@ PRMARERZ A 18R D BIEE L&
BPHEZERARABDAAENEBEMEREFR
ANBZREE > ZERAHRPEMNIIEETERSE
MEZR -BREENR -—NNA_EDRR/ERBELRE
B RBRRLEKRR) 2818/

KB MBBRAR 2002E% 29



Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (“Ms. Wong”)

aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director. She is also the
chairlady of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and the
remuneration committee under the Board. Ms. Wong has more than
thirty-three years of experience in accounting and auditing, and mainly
provides her independent judgment on strategy, performance, resources,
code of conduct and other aspects of the Company. She had worked
in major international accounting firms and local accounting firms before
she set up her own accounting firm in Hong Kong in 1993.

Ms. Wong is an independent non-executive director and chairperson of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of Overseas Chinese
Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 3366). Ms. Wong
is a non-executive director of Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co.
Limited (Main Board stock code: 6893). Ms. Wong was an independent
non-executive director of AVIC International Holdings Limited (the shares
of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) with stock code: 161 and had been
voluntarily withdrawn from listing with effect from 17 April 2020). She
was an independent non-executive director of China Ruifeng Renewable
Energy Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 527) between 16 May
2006 and 31 January 2019, an executive director of Tonking New Energy
Group Holdings Limited (previously known as JC Group Holdings Limited)
(GEM stock code: 8326) between 21 June 2013 and 18 October 2016,
and an independent non-executive director of Glory Flame Holdings
Limited (GEM stock code: 8059) between 2 August 2014 and 22 March
2016.

Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of Hong
Kong in November 19883 and a postgraduate diploma in accounting and
finance from the London School of Economics and Political Science,
University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has
been registered as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since
June 1991 and an associate of The Association of Chartered Public
Accountants in April 1990. Ms. Wong has become a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (‘FCCA”) and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘FCPA”)
since May 1995 and February 2001 respectively. Ms. Wong has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 7 November
2013.
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Mr. He Chengying (“Mr. He”)

aged 60, is currently the dean of the Business School of Guangxi
University and the executive head of the Institute of China ASEAN Open-
door Finance (Bl — 3R R &RFEAKPIE HAZER#NITIRE) . Heis also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee under the
Board. Mr. He graduated from the Department of Accountancy of South
Western University of Finance and Economics, holds a Master Degree
of Economics from Zhejiang University, a Doctoral Degree of Economics
from Xiamen University. He previously worked for Shenzhen Investment
Holding Corporation, China Eagle Securities, Guosen Securities and
United Securities. He is a professor, senior economist and a special
research fellow of the China Management Science Research Institute and
Researcher (Professor) of Zhejiang University of Finance and Economy.
Mr. He had previously engaged in state enterprise, state-owned asset
management, as well as directly participated in drafting and formulating
policies for state enterprise and state-owned asset management
reforms. Subsequently, Mr. He has engaged in stock market innovation,
asset reorganisation, as well as capital market operation and research.
He has accumulated extensive experience in corporate reform, asset
reorganisation and capital management planning. He has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Automobile
New Retail (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00526), since September 2006. Mr. He has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 1 April
2022.

Dr. Wang Huaping (“Dr. Wang”)

aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee under the Board. Dr. Wang mainly provides his independent
judgment on strategy, performance, resources, code of conduct and
other aspects of the Company.

Dr. Wang has been serving as a professor and a doctoral advisor in the
Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering of Donghua University since
October 2002. Dr. Wang is renowned for his research in nanomaterials for
fiber forming and polymer-based nanocomposite fibers, spinning forming
theory and processing technology, systems of new clean production:
ionic liquid/fiber-forming polymer and has published a number of papers
on those topics.
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Dr. Wang is an independent director of Jiangsu Jiangnan High Polymer
Fiber Co. Ltd, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600527) and Yiwu Huading Polyamide Fibre Co.
Limited, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601113). Dr. Wang was an independent director of Zhejiang
Unifull Industrial Fiber Co., Ltd, a company which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002427), and resigned on 4
January 2017.

Dr. Wang obtained a doctorate degree from the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Donghua University in March 2002. From
January 1989 to March 1992, Dr. Wang was employed by the China
Textile University (currently known as Donghua University) as a trainee
researcher from March 1992 to September 1995, Dr. Wang worked
at Donghua University as an officer of the Technology Laboratory of
Chemical Fiber Engineering Research Centre. Dr. Wang served as
an assistant researcher, a deputy officer, an officer, and an associate
researcher in the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering from
March 1992 to September 2002. Dr. Wang was appointed as the
associate dean of the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering
from November 2004 to April 2010. Since September 2008, Dr. Wang
has been a director of the Institute for Engineering Research Center of
Advanced Glass Manufacturing Technology.

Dr. Wang is the deputy director of the Gaoxin Fibers Professional
Committee of China Chemical Fibers Association, the deputy director
of Fibers Professional Committee of China Textile Engineering Society,
deputy director of Fibers Professional Committee of Shanghai Textile
Engineering Society, the deputy director of Industrial Standard Committee
of China Chemical Fibers Association, a committee member of Expertise
Committee of China Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association, the
expert of the Textile Industry Division of the National Development and
Reform Commission, a committee member of Technical Committee of
the Engineering Research Centre of the Textile Equipment of the Ministry
of Education and the deputy director of the Editorial Committee of China
Synthetic Fiber Industry. Dr. Wang has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 19 August 2014.

Please refer to the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interest and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for details
of interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations held
by the Directors and chief executive of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Liu Ming

aged 38, is the head of finance department of the Group, and is mainly
responsible for financial reporting and treasury management for the
Group. Mr. Liu has more than 10 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and financial reporting. Mr. Liu joined Yongsheng Group in May
2022. He served as the audit manager of Baker Tilly Certified Public
Accountants from December 2014 to December 2020. He was the audit
manager of Baker Tilly International from December 2014 to December
2020, and as the chief financial officer of Zhejiang Yonghao Enterprise
Management Consulting Company Limited GIiiL k&2 EIEEHE
FR ‘A B]) from January 2021 to April 2022.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in administration and management
from Shandong Agricultural University in June 2009.

Directors and Senior Management
ESREREERE

=R EEE
AL

38 AREEVKEBEE FEESAEENM
FERRESSE - ALER G Bt MR
WHAEEABAIOERR A ENR_SE -1
MAKBRER - R _Z—NWE+__FE_E_F
E+ - BETRBEBR S TMEHEM 2B KR
BTN _E_—F—HAZE_S__FNB#EEHRT
KETEEEEAERAT ZMFEEE-

BRENRTEZNEFARATHERLUREEKRST
BEBEEXB T8

XEIEMBBRAR 2022F5% 33



Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEE

Mr. Chung, Kwok Mo John (“Mr. Chung”)

aged 54, is a vice president of the Company since February 2018. holds
a Bachelor of Economics degree from Macquarie University, Australia
in 1992 and is also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia, with over 20 years of experience in
auditing, financial management and corporate finance. Mr. Chung was an
auditor in Arthur Andersen (an international accounting firm) from 1992
to 1999. From 2000, Mr. Chung had held several senior management
positions, including chief financial officer, executive director and
independent non-executive director, in a number of listed companies in
Hong Kong.

Currently, Mr. Chung is also an independent non-executive director of
each of the following listed companies on the Stock Exchange:

B & S International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1705)

- YTO International Express and Supply Chain Technology Limited
(previously known as YTO Express (International) Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 6123)

- BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (stock code: 285)

- Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
3363)

- Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (stock code: 1939)
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Mr. Li Wenhua (“Mr. Li”)

aged 51, is the director and the general manager of Yongsheng
construction project. Mr. Li Wenhua has more than 15 years of
experience in the commercial properties investment development
industry, and is mainly responsible for managing the Company’s daily
operations, supervising project engineering and investment promotion.
From 1996 to 2005, Mr. Li Wenhua was responsible for the Company’s
sales work in Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited. He worked as the
vice general manager of Zhejiang Yongsha Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2011. He assumed the role of general manager
of Tongxiang Yonghua Commercial Operation Management Co., Ltd.
from 2012 to 2019. He has served as the general manager of Yonghao
Investment Management Co., Ltd. since 2019.

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yeung”)

aged 40, is the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Yeung is
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Initiative (HKCGI), formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS). She obtained a bachelor
degree in commerce from the University of Sydney and a master degree
in corporate governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
has over 10 years of company secretarial experience in listed companies
in Hong Kong. Ms. Yeung was the company secretary of China Daye
Non-Ferrous Metals Mining Limited (stock code: 661), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2012 to
August 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERER/NRS

The Company was committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold transparency, accountability and independence in all aspects
of business and endeavour to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). During the Year under Review, the Board considered that the
Company had complied with the Code.

The Board will periodically review the Company’s current corporate
practices and procedures and will maintain and further enhance the
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company, in order to
ensure it is in line with international and local best practices and maximise
the interests of the Shareholders, investors, employees, business
partners and the public as a whole.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code and such code of conduct during the Year under Review.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the Group’s business. The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors so
that independent judgement can be effectively exercised.

During the Year under Review and as at the date of this annual report, the
Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as follows:
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Name of Director HEEHEH
Executive Director HiTES

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) B E ()
Mr. Li Conghua FHIESS

Mr. Ma Qinghai EEBRE

Mr. Xu Wensheng (G4 ames
Independent non-executive Director BIIERITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling =5 xequm

Mr. He Chengying EE b

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFHEL

The brief biographical details of and relationships among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 27 to 35. Save as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the
chief executive officer.

Board independence evaluation

During the Year under Review, the Board maintained a high level of
independence, with more than one-third of the Board comprised
independent non-executive Directors, who had exercised independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications whenever the names of the
Directors are disclosed.

The Company has in place a mechanism that underpin an independent
Board and its views during the Year under Review which sets out the
processes and procedures to ensure a strong independent element on
the Board, which allows the Board to effectively exercise independent
judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.
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The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement
or further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what
actions of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the
Board performance, for instance, addressing individual training and
development needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the mechanism that underpin an independent Board and
its views, the Board will conduct annual review on its independence.
The Board independence evaluation report will be presented to the
Board which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for
improvement, if appropriate.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the confirmations received, the Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors satisfied the requirement of
independence under the Listing Rules.

Board meetings and general meetings

Board meetings are held regularly. In addition to regular meetings,
meetings are held as and when necessary under particular
circumstances. During the Year under Review, the Board meetings were
held. The Directors attended the meetings in person or by telephone in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”).

A record of the Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and the
general meetings held during the Year under Review is set out as follows:

FEEERSEFENEFERY XERRES
WHEEFREERE— P ERNSE THEBIRRTF
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REXHBIEFEAAERNKS EFTRKY
HBEIUMETEFERS EFEBHIMFGRE
REREFT HFERHNmERKRIETH S
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AR EWHRBIUFATESTRBELTRAE
SIBRFTEAYIBIL IS5 B LN FEE B I MRS
L -RBEFMENNERE A RBARAHERBIUIF
HITEEHANELHRIABBILMENRE -

EFTERRRRKRG

EFECHEREZ -ARBRAGH TRAER
ENREBRTARER ROBEER BETE
FEREH -REALFIZEMEZRRMA (HBERE
A EFERENBRBBZSMEH-

EFHEREEFRAETNESEERRRRAT
AYECER ST -

Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held

Attendance/
Number of Board
meetings held

HERE HEXRES
FRBITESRE FRBITRERARE
BERY RE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Cheng = e 3/3 11
Mr. Li Conghua FERESY 3/3 1/
Mr. Ma Qinghai E5BLE 3/3 1/1
Mr. Xu Wensheng R B EE 3/3 1/1

Independent non-executive Directors BIIERITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERRZT 3/3 11
Mr. He Chengying B E=bes 3/3 11
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 3/3 11
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The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company was held on 27
May 2022. Our forthcoming AGM will be held on 14 June 2023. Our
Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and other senior
executives of the Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the Shareholders. All Directors
treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the Shareholders at the
AGM held annually.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group's overall strategy and directions; (i) any material conflict of interest
of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii) approval
of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and other
significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution of policies
and strategies decided by the Board to the executive Directors and
management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues relating
to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior managers; develops, reviews and
monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Company has established the nomination committee under
the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) on 7 November
2013. The Nomination Committee has from time to time identified
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board. The main consideration in selecting
candidates for directorships is whether their characters, qualifications and
experience are appropriate for the businesses of the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract for a term of 3 years which may be terminated by either
party giving to the other party at least 3 months’ prior written notice.
All independent non-executive Directors are subject to rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, at least one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. All such retiring Directors, being eligible,
may offer themselves for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li Cheng, Mr. Ma
Qinghai, Mr. Xu Wensheng and Mr. He Chengying, will retire from office
as Directors, being eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold office until the
next annual general meeting and shall there be eligible for re-election. As
no director was appointed as an addition to the Board. Accordingly, there
are no Directors who shall retire from office at the AGM, and being eligible,
offer himself/herself for re-election.
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Insurance of the directors and officers

The Company has arranged liability insurance for the Directors and
officers of the Group in respect of legal action against them which is in
compliance with code provision C.1.8 of the Code.

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials
to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations
and Board’s policies. The Company is committed to arranging and
funding suitable training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the governance
policies of the Group. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to participating
in any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Year under Review is set out below:
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Types of continuous
professional development

programmes
HEEERRIAEEY

Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. Li Cheng Wit 1

Mr. Li Conghua FHRESLE 1

Mr. Ma Qinghai EEELE 1

Mr. Xu Wensheng X BRE 1

Independent non-executive Directors BIIEMITES

Ms. Wong Wai Ling BRlRZtT 1

Mr. He Chengying BRIt 1

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 1

Note: PEE -

1o Read relevant materials of workshops/internal trainings/updates on the 1. BEf e NEZRE R EAR EHREEE M

Listing Rules and other applicable regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES EFEHET

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has AHPEETERTHE EE2ERECHESZIK
delegated specific functions to three Board committees, namely the Audit FT-EAEELZEG NEZEZET RLEEETR
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, FNEEE FEFINAT

details of which are as follows:

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EENR BiZEEY REEEY HNEEE
Executive Director BITES
Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) ESLE (FF) Chairman
*E
Mr. Li Conghua FHRESLE
Mr. Ma Qinghai ESBLE
Mr. Xu Wensheng R E Member
Ing=|
Independent non-executive Director JHIIIEHITESE
Ms. Wong Wai Ling =% $=Xoqum Chairlady Chairlady
FE FE
Mr. He Chengying EEt=bes Member Member
& I54=]
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFBEL Member Member Member
& & [D3=|
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s financial information, review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal control procedures,
nominate and monitor external auditors and provide advice and
comments to the Board. The Audit Committee is established with specific
terms of references which deal clearly with the committee’s authority and
duties and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit services.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.
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There were three meetings held during the Year under Review and the REBFA BITT=AE% SUZEEHREN
attendance by each committee member is set out below: HEB &M -
Attendance/
Number of meetings
Members of the Audit Committee BZEZEgNE HERYEERK
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BEBRYT (FF) 3/3
Mr. He Chengying EEt=bes 3/3
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 3/3

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee discussed and
reviewed the interim and final results of the Group and certain other
businesses. The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control was also
discussed at the meetings. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters including a review of the interim report, annual report
and the final results of the Group for the Year under Review. The Group’s
final results for the Year under Review has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee before submission to the Board for approval.
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The Audit Committee has also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed
that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules. In the opinion
of the Audit Committee, there are no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

Auditors’ remuneration

The Group’s external auditors is Ernst & Young. The remuneration paid or
payable to the external auditors of the Group for the Year under Review
comprised fees for audit services of approximately RMB1,350,000 (2020:
RMB1,350,000). During the Year under Review, there was no non-audit
service provided by the Group’s external auditors.

Directors’ and auditors’ responsibilities for
financial statements

All Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The
auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the
auditor’s report on the financial statements of the Company for the Year
under Review. The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the independent
auditor’s report contained in this annual report. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements on a going-concern basis.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors. The roles and functions
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is established with
specific terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties and are available on the website of each of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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During the Year under Review, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed the Board’s diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and nomination policy.

As part of the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against selection criteria. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy each year, to ensure its
effectiveness each year.

It is the Company’s objective to maintain an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. During the Year
under Review, the Board comprised both male and female Directors and
achieved gender diversity. As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio in
the workforce (including senior management) was approximately 69.9%
male and 30.1% female.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has achieved the
following measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy:

(@  toensure at least a member of the Board shall be female;

(o)  to ensure at least a member of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualification;

(b)  to ensure at least one-third of the members of the Board shall have
attained bachelor’s degree or higher level of education;

(c) toensure at least one member of the Board was or currently
is director of listed companies (including Hong Kong and other
regions) other than the Company; and

(d)  to ensure the Board has members coming from different cultural
backgrounds (including Hong Kong and PRC).

The Company will ensure the above measurable objective be achieved in
the coming years.

Corporate Governance Report
EEERES

REEERN RLEZECERISEFTEHNRE R
WA W EFEBUFATEEFNEIL L 1R
LEESETERIEFENESTIEBRR ((EEY
HEZTEHER)) RiERER-

FREFEHEZ TIEBERN -7 £REEE
WREEFENESTERENREARRTHE
R-FMEESFSMENZEIURARS RRA
WIEEBEREAFGERABRBEER - BEEEAF
BR—2I|ZtBIBRHEE FEE (BFRRN) 4
INFE - XERBEER - FEXER RE -AH
RIRBIER B REEANRERAIRESTE
RHNBRMERE - RLEEGREFERIES
EREZTERR UMEFRETZAR -

RABINERERSERFMBENBEEUKER R E
HENRESR #FMNZSTIENBEREE R
ClEEE EeMEEtEET AN ES
ERTHNZRIE- R _E__F+_A=+—
H ET (BEsSHREER) HMERILEE A BHEL
1569.9% > Z M 491530.1% ©

BE_E__F#+_B=+—HLEE > ARTB
EREECAENESTENEZL TEBEMREN
UTHsE28E:

(@) HEREFEEVE-—LREARMN;

E3

) HREFEEVE-—LHNENEGHH
HEER

b) HEREFGEL=DZ—BHRERERLES
UHESHE KT ;

) HMREFEEVE-—LMEBBEHNRKELR
ERABIMIETRE (BREEBERAMME)
BEES K

d REEFEHEREFTANXEER (BEE
BRPE) -

FABRERERKREEER EAIFEER

XBIMEARAR 20222358 4D



Corporate Governance Report
EEERES

One meeting was held during the Year under Review and the attendance
by each committee member is set out below:

REIEERN 8177 —
EEEREIMT

Attendance/
Number of meetings

Members of the Nomination Committee REZEEWE RE FERE
Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) =k (F/E) 171
Mr. He Chengying Bt 1/
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 1/

Throughout the Year under Review, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed and discussed the composition, size and structure of the Board,
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and re-
election of Directors.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will propose
the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will review and make
recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills and experience of
the candidates appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity, in
terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and gender.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee under
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) which comprises one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the Chairlady of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive Directors, making recommendation to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies,
the respective responsibilities of the Directors and senior management
and the performance of the Group. The Remuneration Committee
also reviews and/or approves matters relating to share schemes of the
Company under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms of reference
that are posted on the website of each of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s performance
during the Year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management.
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RERFR) °

TRAPATEFhSHEEZNFHFMER -

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details

0 = S B

Basic salary To reflect the market value of each individual Cash payment monthly ~ Reviewed annually with market trend
EXss RBEEAZTHEE FARENN BERTSEBB LR
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions

i waIkixEEE e miFER

Discretionary performance To motivate employees to deliver high levels of performance

Cash payment - Individual performance

bonus of the Company and individual performance goals - Company performance
HIERIBIEL BEMEEARABMEHBKENRRUR REM] —EARR
EREARRTER —ABRR
One meeting was held during the Year under Review and the attendance REBFER £1T7 —XEE > SUZETHREN
by each committee member is set out below: HEBREINAT :
Attendance/
Number of meetings
Members of the Remuneration Committee FMEEERE HERE EERY
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BEBRYT (FE) 1/1
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 1/
Mr. Xu Wensheng BB E 11

Throughout the Year under Review, the Remuneration Committee has
discussed and recommended to the Board for approval of the Directors’
and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group for the year of
2023, the bonus payments to the Directors and senior management of
the Company in 2022.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a
proper and effective system of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. The
Board acknowledge that such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. On 30 December 2015 and 20 December 2018,
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been amended to
include risk management as part of the internal control of the Company.
During the Year under Review, the Board reported the risks associated
with the Company and the Audit Committee was satisfied that the risks
have been properly dealt with by the Group.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets out the
process of identification, evaluation and management of the principal
risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing principal
risks within its divisions on a quarterly basis and establishing
mitigation plans to manage the risks identified. When identifying
significant risk, both internal and external factors including
economic, political, social, technology and environmental factors,
laws and regulations, business objectives and stakeholders’
expectation would be considered. The risk identified would be
assessed and rated based on the likelihood and impact to the
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control activities, attending
annual meetings with each division to ensure principal risks are
properly managed, and new or changing risks are identified and
documented.

& The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

During the Reporting Period, the internal audit functions have been
carried out under the leadership of the Board and the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system of the Group in respect of finance, operation, compliance and
business matters and reported the results to the Board. Should any
material fault or any material weakness in monitoring be found, the
internal audit team will report the same to the Audit Committee in timely
manner.
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The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. In practice, employees of the
Group who become aware of any events and/or matters which he/she
considers potentially inside information, will report to the designated
personnel of the Company who, if considered appropriate, will pass such
information to the Board for the purpose of considering and deciding
whether or not such information constitutes inside information and
disclosure of which shall be made immediately.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and
internal control covering all controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Board is satisfied that the Group had
fully complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the
Year under Review and is of the view that the Group has adequate and
effective internal procedures in place.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group during the
Year under Review falls within the following band:
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 15 November
2013 (the “Prospectus”), Mr. Li Cheng and Ever Thrive Global Limited
are the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”). To protect the Group from any potential competition,
the Controlling Shareholders has given an irrevocable non-competition
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the
Company on 7 November 2013. Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Controlling Shareholders has, among other
matters, undertaken with the Company that each of the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (other than the Group) shall
not engage in any business which will or may compete with the business
currently and from time to time engaged by the Group. Details of the
Non-competition Undertaking have been set out in paragraph headed
“Relationship with our controlling shareholders — Non-competition
Undertaking” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Year under
Review. The independent non-executive Directors, having reviewed the
aforementioned annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, are
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Year under Review.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yeung”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 31 May 2019.

Ms. Yeung plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board’s policy and procedures are followed.

The company secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The company secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman. All Directors may have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of the Directors.

The company secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of
the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with opinions
on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the Board
meetings.
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During the Year under Review, the company secretary had received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
company secretary.

The biography of the company secretary is set out in the section headed
“Directors and senior management” on page 35 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy (‘Dividend Policy”)
of the Board, in recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s
decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount
of such dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current
and future operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group, as well as dividends received from the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend on the
ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend. In addition,
any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Cayman
Islands, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue to
review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may exercise
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify this
Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be
paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders, at the date of deposit of the requisition, holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
The requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Convening an extraordinary general meeting by Shareholders”.
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person (other
than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office or at the registration office no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days. The procedures for
the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is posted
on the website of the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
SEND ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, presently Room B, 31/F, King Palace Plaza, No. 55 King Yip
Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, by post for the attention of the company
secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will
forward the communications relating to:

1. the matters within the Board’s purview to the executive Directors;

2. the matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chairman of the appropriate committee; and

St ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries and
client complaints to the appropriate management of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and investors
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports);
annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held; and all the
information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure, as well as
corporate communications and other publications which shall be posted
on the website (http://www.chinaysgroup.com) of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders and
investors in a timely and effective manner at all times.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company
Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Room B, 31/F

King Palace Plaza,

No. 55 King Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Tel No.: (852) 2776 5228

Fax No.: (852) 2994 9699
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The Company will handle both telephone and written enquiries from the
Shareholders from time to time. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
will be forwarded to the Board and/or relevant committees of the Board,
where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the Shareholders’
communication policy of the Company. Taking into account the variety of
existing channels for communication and participation, the Company is of
the view that its Shareholders’ communication policy was effective during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Audit Committee continues to review the risk management and
internal control system on behalf of the Board. The review processes
include but are not limited to holding meetings with company secretary,
chief financial officer, internal control staff and external auditors, reviewing
relevant work reports and discussing major risks with the senior
management of the Company. For the Year under Review, the Board
considers that the risk management and internal control system of the
Company was effective and sufficient. The risk management and internal
control system for finance, operation and compliance of the Company is
effective and adequate.

In addition, the Board has confirmed that the accounting and financial
reporting functions of the Company have been performed by the
employees with appropriate qualifications and experience who have
received adequate and appropriate training and development. The Board
has confirmed that the internal audit function of the Company is sufficient,
the relevant resources and budget are sufficient, and the relevant
employees are equipped with appropriate qualifications and experience,
and have received sufficient training and development.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Whistleblowing Policy

The Group had formulated a whistle-blowing policy to increase
employees’ awareness to uphold integrity. The chairman, chief executive
officer and the audit committee of the Company will receive report of the
whistle-blowing incidents and have the discretion to initiate independent
investigations according to the nature of the incidents or refer the
incidents to relevant regulatory authorities. The Group communicated
with investors and stakeholders periodically by publishing quarterly
financial and business updates, organising visits to its factories and
arranging focus group meetings with institutional investors and stock
commentators. The Group also published announcements in relation
to its major development in accordance with the seven “Principles
of Responsible Ownership” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”).
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Constitutional documents

During the Year under Review, the Company did not make any changes
to the memorandum of association and Articles of Association of the
Company, the current version of which is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Number of shares

The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2022 was 708,008,090. The Company will periodically announce the
total number of its issued shares in its monthly returns.

Important schedule for the Shareholders - AGM

An AGM will be held at 5/F, United Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong on 14 June 20283. A circular containing, among others,
details of the AGM has been despatched to the Shareholders together
with this annual report.

Information for Hong Kong branch registrar

Tricor Investor Services Centre
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Tel No: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No: (852) 2810 8185
Email:is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website: www.tricoris.com
Office Hours: 9:00 am — 4:30 pm
(Monday to Friday, except public holidays)

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of complying
and applying with the Code but also about promoting and developing
a healthy and ethical corporate culture. The Company will continue to
review and, where appropriate, improve the current practices on the basis
of the experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views
and suggestions from the Shareholders to improve and promote the
transparency are welcomed.

On behalf of the Board

Li Cheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Report of the Directors
EFOHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the Year under Review.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 19 April 2012. The registered office of the Company
is at 2/F Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman
KY1-1103, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is at Room B, 31/F, King Palace Plaza, No. 55 King Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric; (i) properties
investment; and (iii) environmental water project operation.

Further discussion and analysis of the business activities of the Group,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Business Review” as set out on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this report of the directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company and each member of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group and the financial conditions of the Group for the
Year under Review are set out in the financial statements on pages 98 to
264 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise the Group’s environmental impact by
water-recycling initiatives, sewage treatment implementation, energy
saving and wastage reduction, and encouraging recycle of office supplies
and other materials. The Group also requires its factories to operate in
strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary permission and approval from the relevant
PRC regulators.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognise that employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group. The
Group is committed to building a close and caring relationship with its
employees and business partners and improving the quality of services to
the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
its workers are provided with regular training courses on operation of
different types of machinery, as well as work safety. The Group strives
to motivate its employees with a clear career path and offer them
opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills. The
Group also rewards its employees for their work performance through
incentives, such as bonuses and options, to motivate their continuous
contribution.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communications with its customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical
meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China while the ordinary shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The Group’s establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the Year under Review and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group’s operation has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the Year under Review are set out in the
statement of changes in equity of the Company on page 262 of this
annual report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB672,275,000 (2021: approximately
RMB664,522,000) available for distribution to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option scheme are set
out in notes 31 and 32 to the financial statements and the paragraph
headed “Share option scheme of the Company” below, respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommended the payment of a final dividend (the
“Final Dividend”) for the Year under Review (2021: no final dividend).
This is no interim dividend that was paid in 2022.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any
Shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year under
Review are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year under Review, the percentages of major suppliers and
customers of the Group of the purchases and sales for the Year under
Review are as follows:

The aggregate purchases

largest supplier accounted for 16.6%
Five largest suppliers accounted for 48.7%
The aggregate sales

Largest customer accounted for 16.1%
Five largest customers accounted for 40.4%
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So far as known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing connected transactions and related party
transactions” below, none of the Directors, their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or substantial shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the above major suppliers or customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of approximately RMB1,368,000
during the Year under Review (2021: RMB300,000).

BANK BORROWINGS

During the Year under Review, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately RMB216.1 million, which was mainly used for the
properties investment.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year under Review and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)
Mr. Li Conghua

Mr. Ma Qinghai

Mr. Xu Wensheng

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. He Chengying

Dr. Wang Huaping
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Mr. Li Cheng, Mr. Ma Qinghai, Mr. Xu Wensheng and Mr. He Chengying
will retire as Directors at the forthcoming AGM. Being eligible, they offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. None of the retiring Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). Details of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular of the Company which had
been despatched to the Shareholders together with this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 7 November
2016 (except for Mr. Xu Wensheng whose service contract commenced
on 29 November 2019 and Mr. He Chengying whose service contract
commerce on 1 April 2021) subject to termination, among others, by
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing. Each of such Directors
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM every
three years. Director’s fees are payable on a pro-rata basis for any non-
full year’s service. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience in the Company,
and the prevailing market conditions. No Directors have waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year under Review or at any time during the Year under
Review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year under Review.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance had
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries
during the Year under Review.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the Year under Review was the Company, its subsidiaries or its ultimate
holding company or any subsidiary of that ultimate holding company a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the Year under Review and up to and including the date of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and based on the confirmations received, considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Law of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)
held by the Directors and chief executive of the Company which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or have been entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

(A) Long position in the Shares and underlying

EFRRETHRASKREG ERER
13 R fR e 58 By R mm R 33k

RIEBEZ"HF+"R=+—H &EFEREAREHN
ESTHRAERAABHEEAMBEBEZE (EER
BREMESNEBRS GRS ((BHERBER
Bl1) BXVER) Be i~ 1R D R EEE T FHER
BESRIERABXVEFTRSD BN G ARQF
RPN EmE e (BEREREFRBERM
BERAGXREREFARAEAN D IKA) -
HI AKX REBIREF M ERPIE3521FRFER
Zrftrpmasta  SRE EHRAM E101R
ETHEMERAB LB BEIKENT !

(A) R KRAERRGETE

Shares
Number of
Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/ percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
FR¥E
BEEREZERG KR A9 B 1
B4 515,48 GElE R S Bt
Mr. Li (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 524,062,990 74.02%
=54 (W) REEEER
Mr. Ma (Note 2) Beneficial owner 7,075,677 1.00%
Bk (Wa2) BmESA
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Li beneficially owns 90%
of the issued share capital of Astute Horizon Limited
which in turn, beneficially holds 274,661,290. Mr. Li also
beneficially owns approximately 95.71% of the issued
share capital of Ever Thrive Global Limited which in turn,
beneficially holds 249,401,700 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Li
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares held
by Astute Horizon Limited and Ever Thrive Global Limited
for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Li is also the director of
Astute Horizon Limited and Ever Thrive Global Limited.

As at 31 December 2022, share options to subscribe
for 4,400,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Ma. Besides,
Mr. Ma beneficially owns 2,675,677 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Ma was interested in 7,075,677 Shares in aggregate.

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued
Shares was 708,008,090.

(B) Long position in shares of associated
corporation

HiaET -

Htaz2

Hta23
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(B) MiEEEERDEITE

Number of

Name of Associated Shares held/  Percentage of

Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature interested shareholding

FR¥ RS B

s M EE TS g%/ 48 eab 4= BoLE

Mr. Li Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 446 95.71%
= e ERIRIKB R AT BaHEBA

Astute Horizon Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 100 90.00%

ERARRATE Wat1)

Apart from those disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2022,
none of the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any of the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) that is required to be
recorded and kept in the register in accordance with section 352
of the SFO or any interests required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group:

FERRKEEMATRIRD RAERR
19 B9 2 B2 i3k

RIET"HF+"RA=+—H ' BESEMAUT
AL EFHERENEBITHRAERIN AR
RAWEFERRMIBBARN T EEREZ SR
E1RBISEXVEBFE 2R3 B RV IR X AR A& A B KB
RFrRBENEDSRE  NERNEERS AN AR
FERERBER TRAEREFAEMEE AT RE
RE LREBHNERERNRAHEES %I LAY

EWA
==

Number of Approximate

Shares held/  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature interested shareholding

FRfs A BEA R 1

IRERaE 1t 515,/ HHE kin &8 BotE

Astute Horizon Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 274,661,290 38.79%
ERBRRAT (Wat1) BmEBA

Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 249,401,700 35.23%
HRIRIKBIRAE] BmEBA

Ms. Chen Fangqin (Note 1) Interest of spouse 524,062,990 74.02%

RS et (WfaET) BRI s

Note 1: Ms. Chen Fangqin is the spouse of Mr. Li. Therefore, Ms. Chen
Fanggin was deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares
which are interested by Mr. Li for the purposes of the SFO.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares was
708,008,090.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7
November 2013 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants under the
Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe the Shares to any employees (full-time or part-time), Directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of the
Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on 7 November 2013,
subject to early termination provisions contained in the Scheme. As
at the date of this annual report, the remaining life of the Scheme was
approximately six months.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an
option is offered to a participant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered to a participant; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share on the date
on which an option is offered to a participant.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the listing
date of the Company (i.e. 27 November 2013), i.e. 40,000,000 Shares.
As at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available
for issue upon the exercise of the options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme was 16,440,000 (taking into account 7,740,000 options
lapsed), representing 2.3% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this
annual report.

The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Report of the Directors
EFERS

EYNSIENE L2

KRR ZE—=F+—BtARM—IEBRES
B (Mzstd)) » EERSIRRERBHEAE RAZ
SHEETHEERS RERMEAINIE - REBEZE
B ERTEREZENBREZFINFEREE
EEEMEES (EBIRRE) EF BHASNE
B HAEREAEIERR - NEMDHEE RKE
mtEs B - TR BEBHARBHESE
HEBREUDBERD -ZFAEBBE_T—=F+—8
THE+EHERREN T R BNRER
IERCPRRIR - I A F 3 A 8> 5t 8I5F T F 84
ANER e

ROBRENEZZANEHAMZZAN (BFEE
H) Estt BREM-BREARAABRZEABR
EEHEZHMESNERED R RTZA1.00%
7T o BLIRIR L ST BIR WAV E(THE E B IR FERY AR 10 58
BE FTE2HEFTECLBNSHEE  EFF
BRTIREE (MXAESEARERAMERROE
RTY2UEEBREEANKETE ()M HER
BRABKRMNEZRT2AEBRENLARS
BRFHRHE ; kiR F2HEEBREDRNR
MHEE-

RABARETEBRE ERREZFEIREAT
EREMBRESBRENAAERREEITERE
AFETHROBE FHBBBERATNLHH
HEZZ—=F+—BZ++tH) EBTRMN
10% > B140,000,0008% B2 17 o IS A F R H HA » H1T
RIEERESEMEHZBREMTFHTZR
14881 7516,440,0008% (&85t K7,740,0001 B KK
Bt BERREAFERBASHTRMOBED
2.3%°

AABFREEREMEREER EHRAEHBER
BEER BT RRR  ERIBAABFT A BRESE
ERHEHERTENAE HRTEBREETER
AFETHRONDBEFI BRI FEETROKN
30% °

XBIMEERAR 202255 OD



Report of the Directors
EFERS

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue unless approved by the Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

During the Year under Review, no share options were granted.
15,000,000 share options and 16,300,000 share options were granted
on 6 January 2015 and 30 December 2015, respectively, under
the terms of the Scheme (collectively, the “Grants”), representing
approximately 4.42% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022. Out of the 31,300,000 share options granted in 2015,
11,400,000 share options were granted to directors of the Group at the
material time. Save as disclosed, none of the grantees is a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or an associate
of any of them, or a supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group. No option was granted in excess of the 1% individual
limit of each eligible participant. Details of the Grants are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 6 January 2015 and 30
December 2015, respectively.
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The following set forth the summary of the movement of share options
granted during the year ended 31 December 2022, details of which are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements:

BHE
fe
35

Number of unlisted share options
LR ESE
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TR TS A=t+—HLEEE BERUEBE
WEBFENT FHEHRNRSHYFRRWE

Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Name and As at Granted forfeited Exercised As at as at the date of
category of 1 January during during during Exercise 31 December Date of grant of  Vesting period of End of exercise grant of share
participant 2022 the Year the Year the Year price 2022 share options share options period 4 3 1t}lﬁns
NG
ka3 Emitl/ - . RZBIZ /_ RERERSE
SREHARER -B-H EREL P ERTE fiffE +ZA=+-B  BRESLAH ERESED fERERAS HEMER
(HKD (oersrrar_e} (HKD /oeré‘ﬁar_ey
S ET) SR ET)
Directors
B3
Mr. Ma Qinghai 2,200,000 - - - $1.09 2,200,000 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 148
) 5 January 2026
FEERL Z3-1f 50% I-~EMAZHE 2%
—ArH E—HEE* —A1A
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025
50% Z—+ENA-AE
“RE-BEE
2,200,000 - - - $1.195 2,200,000 30 December 2015 50%: 2 Apri 2017 to 30 December 2025 $152
30 December 2025
“B2-1f% 50%: _E—t#MA_HE C“TCEf
TZA=1A “ECREtCAStET +ZA=+H
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2025™
50%: %)\ EMA—B%
TECREtCAStET
Other employees 2,939,400 - - - $1.095 2,939,400 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $1.48
5 January 2025
HftEs “B-nE S0%: —F—RENA"HE  “E_IE
—BiH _2_ "E-BRE —B1H
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2025
50%: -A—tﬂqe AE
ECRE-BRE
6,598,800 - - - $1.195 6,598,800 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025™
‘ﬁ EE 50% —EB-tHMA"AEZ ZE_If
A=+H “BCEF+CA=TH* +ZR=1H
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2005
50% 23— \FME—HE
“ECREtCASET
Total
it 13,938,200 - - - 13,938,200
Notes: Ik -

The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on
6 January 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2015.

** The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on
30 December 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2015.
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The model used to calculate the fair value of share options granted is
set out in note 35 of the consolidated financial statements. The model
is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an
option. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the management’s best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of a number of subjective
assumptions. Any change in the variables so adopted may materially
affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

The number of options available for grant under the mandate of the Share
Option Scheme (taking into account the number of options lapsed) was
16,440,000 as at both 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022. The
Company did not grant any share options during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Company is aware that amendments were made to Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules, which has come into effect on 1 January 2023,
which include, among others, revising the scope of eligible participants
of share option schemes and setting out the minimum vesting period
requirements. The Company will only grant the share options in
compliance with the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and
pursuant to the transitional arrangements for share schemes existing as
at 1 January 2023 as specified by the Stock Exchange. Going forward,
the Company will also consider to amend the Share Option Scheme so
as to comply with the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules, in any event not later than the refreshment or expiry of the scheme
mandate; or to adopt a new share option scheme that comply with the
requirements under the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year under Review, the Group entered into the following
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out below:
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Tenancy Agreements

On 22 October 2021, 182 ¥ % (#1)1) B BR/A B (Changsheng Property
(Hangzhou) Company Limited*) (“Changsheng Property”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as landlord, entered into (i) tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement One”) with Hangzhou Xiaoshan
Yongsheng Foreign Trading Company Limited (475 M &8 LU 7k % %t 4b
B 5B R 27 (“Yongsheng Trading”), as tenant, in respect of the
leasing of an area with gross floor area of approximately 498 sqg.m.
on 22nd floor of Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Hangzhou, the PRC (“Property
One”) for a term of three years commencing from 1 November 2021 to
31 October 2024; (i) tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement Two”)
with Hangzhou Yongsheng Holdings Company Limited (#7) 7k 2%3%
BB BR/AF) (“Yongsheng Holdings”), as tenant, in respect of the
leasing of an area with gross floor area of approximately 1,440.81 sg.m.
on 23rd Floor of Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Hangzhou, the PRC (“Property
Two”) for a term of three years commencing from 1 November 2021 to
31 October 2024; and (i) tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement
Three”) with Hangzhou Yibang Technology Company Limited (#71#M %
R BEAT) (‘Hangzhou Yibang”), as tenant, in respect of the
leasing of an area with gross floor area of approximately 146.63 sg.m.
on 22nd Floor of Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Hangzhou, the PRC for a term of a
year commencing from 1 November 2021 to 31 October 2022.

Principal terms of each of the relevant tenancy agreements are set out as
follows:
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Tenancy Agreement One Tenancy Agreement Two Tenancy Agreement Three
HEHE— HEHET HEHE=
Date: 22 October 2021
A 2T —H+BZ+CH
Parties: () Changsheng Property, as landlord; and () ~ Changsheng Property, as landlord; and () Changsheng Property, as landlord; and
(i) Yongsheng Trading, as tenant (i) Yongsheng Holdings, as tenant (i) Hangzhou Yibang, as tenant
HES) () REME FHEL K ) REME HEL K () REME FHEL K
(i) KEEZ ERER (i) KR fERTER (i) WNEE ERIER
Premises: Property One Property Two Property Three
L/E mE— MEZ mE=

XEHMEERAR 2022E% GO



Report of the Directors

ERERSE
Tenancy Agreement One Tenancy Agreement Two Tenancy Agreement Three
HEH#E— HERET HEHZE=
Principal use: as offices and for commercial use only
TERAR: BIERAZ T EFEHERR
Term: Three years commencing from 1 November 2021 to 31 October 2024 (both days inclusive) ~ One year commencing from 1 November 2021
to 31 October 2022 (both days inclusive)
il B_E_—&£+—A-RARE_Z_NE+A=1+—H @FEEMA) =& B2 —H5+-A-HEE_Z__F+
B=+—H (BEEEMA) L—F
Monthly rent: - Firstand second year: RMB54,303.79; -  First and second year: RMB8,028.00
and RMB159,960.00; and
(exclusive of utility charges and management
- Third year: RMB55,932.90 - Third year: RMB164,758.80 fees)
(exclusive of utility charges and (exclusive of utility charges and
management fees) management fees)
B - BREZFEARME430379T; R - BREZF ARKE159,960.007t; AKHES8,028.007T
& FEELRASXEREESD)
- B=F . AE155932.907T - B=& A\E164,758.8070
FEELARSXEREESR) FEELARSXEREEE)

Annual caps The maximum aggregate annual caps under Tenancy Agreement One, Tenancy Agreement Two and Tenancy Agreement Three between

2021 and 2024 is RMB2,667,501.48
FELR REAERE— RERZ_KEERES “F—FE2_ZNENREFE LIREBEA AR2,667,501.487T

Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing connected

transactions and confirmed that the transactions had been entered into: <

0} in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i)  either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is no )
available comparable terms, on terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

(iff)
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Confirmation from the auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board had engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain assurance procedures
on the continuing connected transactions. As of 31 December 2022, the
annual transaction amount of the continuing connected transactions was
approximately RMB2.66 million in aggregate, which did not exceed the
proposed maximum annual transaction amount for 2022. The auditors
of the Company has provided the Board with a letter, confirming that
they were not aware of any matters that cause them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed have exceeded the annual
cap set by the Company.

Details of other related party transactions of the Company for the Year
under Review and undertaken in the usual course of business are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. Saved as
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constituted a
discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has maintained appropriate Directors’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors during the Year under Review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF BE -HESBESATZ LHES
THE LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, during the Review Period, neither the Company PRI EEIN AR B RETHAMBARRE
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the BHALEES HEXBLIAQNE 2E M LHE
Company’s listed securities. o

During the Review Period, the Company has repurchased a total of REBEBHER A28 ERBIMERLRSH
24,535,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) of the Company 24,535,0000 A A B EHR0.01 BT Z @A (T
on the Stock Exchange at aggregate consideration (before expenses) of 31 BB (OBREEAT) 514,787,025 T 1Y
HK$14,787,025. All the repurchased Shares were cancelled during the CIEEHAA > R B BRI EsEiH

Review Period.

Number of Aggregate

Shares consideration

Date Repurchased Purchased Price (before expenses)

BRE

=) FREEER M BB FEIER (pxFAZ AN

Highest Lowest (HKD)

e =g (&)

26 May 2022 21,585,000 0.61 0.59 13,017,025
Z2ITERBZFAH

27 May 2022 2,950,000 0.60 0.60 1,770,000
“ZFRAZHtH

24,535,000 14,787,025

AUDITORS % 24 B

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three RRBRIBE = F 0 F IR HEN -
years.

The financial statements now presented have been audited by Ernst & BERNUERREBAEDZ M Z K TMER
Young, Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young will retire and, being FMEZ RNEERREBEFAE L BKEAMER
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. I ERA EREER ITHEREBE -BERE
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as of the Company BEAGLBRERZR UWERLZKIHMER
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. Bt 2 25~ B i 8B o
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
9 June 2023 to Wednesday, 14 June 2023, both days inclusive, for
the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend the
forthcoming AGM to be held on 14 June 2023, during such period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the
AGM, the Shareholders should ensure that all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 8 June 2023.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 263 to 264 of this
annual report.

By Order of the Board

LI Cheng

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE-HHERERES

This is the 7th Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) report
published by the Company for the purpose of disclosing the initiatives of
the Group in relation to its ESG development.

As per the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(the “Reporting Guide”) published by the Stock Exchange, the Board
has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting.
The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the risks in
relation to the ESG of the Group, as well as ensuring the establishment
of appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems by the Group. The management of the Group is responsible for
confirming to the Board of the effectiveness of these systems.

The ESG report aims at improving the stakeholders’ confidence and
understanding of the Group’s environmental and social performance as
well as the sustainable development strategies of the Group. The board
directors (the “Board”) of the Company has reviewed and confirmed the
ESG report has contained material, complete and balanced contents.

The report is prepared based on the principles set out in the Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

The ESG report covers the Group’s three main businesses in the PRC: (i)
dyeing and processing of differentiated fabric, (i) properties investment
and (jii) environmental water project operation.

In July 2022, the Group disposal the RMAA segment.

This report covers the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year
under Review”).

Throughout the Report, we adopt the reporting principles of materiality,
quantitative, consistency and balance, as described below:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted and reviewed annually
to assess the relative importance of the ESG topics identified. Topics that
are relevant and important to the operation of the Group and stakeholders
must be covered in this Report.

Quantitative: If the key performance indicators (KPIs) have been
established, they must be measurable and applicable to valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions.

Consistency: ESG data presented in this Report are prepared using
consistent methodologies over time unless otherwise specified either in
text or footnote.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Balance: The Group appoints an external sustainability consultant in
the preparation of the report to present an unbiased picture of our
achievements and performances.

BOARD STATEMENT OF ESG MANAGEMENT
STRATEGIES

The Board of the Company is committed to incorporating the ESG
mindset into business operations. The Board accepts full responsibility
for the sustainability of the Group, including formulating strategies,
overseeing the Group’s ESG related risks and opportunities, and
approving the ESG Report. The Board are also required to keep abreast
of and comply with the latest regulatory requirements before the approval
of the ESG Report.

The Board believes that the management of ESG-related risks and
opportunities is essential to the Group’s efficient and effective operation.
The risk management and internal control systems assure accuracy,
reliability and the timeliness of the data presented and sustainable
development measures. The Board will also regularly review the
implementation effectiveness of the systems and whether they cover
major control measures on material ESG issues.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Group’s stakeholders include governments and regulators,
shareholders and investors, employees, business tenants, consumers,
suppliers and community. The Group attaches great importance
to communicating with stakeholders and has established effective
communication channels with stakeholders to learn about their demands
and expectation, to discuss and respond to the corporate social
responsibility concerns of all stakeholders, so as to promote the growth
of both sides.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

Stakeholders
FAERA S

Expectations and concerns

HAEE K B v

Communication channels
BREE

Communication frequency
BIBAR

Compliance with laws and
regulations
ERERER
Pay taxes
BN
Epidemic prevention and control

= IBBE

Governments and regulators

BT R BE E 118

Return on investment
g CIE
Corporate governance
rEER
Information disclosure
EREE

Shareholders and investors

REKRREA

Protecting employee’s rights and

Interests
HEES TR
Career development channel
HEEREEE
Healthy and safe working
environment
BREZENITIERIE
Epidemic prevention and control

= IBBE

Employees
8T

Fair and impartial procurement
PASEYNEEINES
Win-win cooperation

EROF

Suppliers
HEm

Community engagement
AN
Business compliance
EBER
Environmental awareness
RIREH

Community
HEAR

Compliance management
aRER
Proactive in tax payment
TR
Implementation of national
policies
AT R

Multiple times per year
FEEZR

Announcements and circulars

NERIBE
Annual financial reports Multiple times per year
FEMBRS BEZRX
Shareholders’ Mesting
BEXE

Regular meetings and trainings
EHE & AIE
Talent development programme
AF E R E
Employee care activities
BT RIEES)
Intranet websites

BB A8 IS

Multiple times per month
BAZXR

Business visit
EFTHRR
Daily meeting
BHE®:=%
Review and performance
evaluation

ER Ve

Multiple times per month
SAZR

Company’s official website

NEEH Multiple times per year
Public welfare activities FFEZR
RuEE)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENT ASPECT

In response to the national requirement for accelerating the development
of “conservation-oriented society”, the Group proactively complied with
relevant laws and regulations in relation to emissions and pollutants
control, and implemented the “Quality and Environmental Management
Manual” in association with the management procedure manuals in
relation to waste water treatment, gas emission, waste handling and
resources management process to monitor the treatment and disposal
of waste water, gas emissions and waste disposal. The Group has been
accredited with the ISO 14001 environmental management certification
since February 2015 and has completed the external audit and renewal
related to ISO and the expiry date of the ISO extended to 2024 during the
Year under Review.

Application for Global Recycled Standard 4.0 (referred to as GRS
4.0) was first made in 2020. The certificate was successfully
obtained in February 2020, which is an international, voluntary and
comprehensive product standard that sets out the requirements for
third party certification of recycling content, chain of custody, social and
environmental practices and chemical restrictions. It currently aims at
increasing the use of recycled materials in products and to reduce and
eliminate the hazards caused by their production, to lay the foundations
for the international marketing of products and to carry out annual audits
and renewals of GRS standards.

A1. Emission policies

Gas emission policy

The Group has formulated the “Gas Emission Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage its gas
emission and ensure the Group’s compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations regarding gas emissions in the PRC.

The Group primarily produces the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) due
to energy consumption in the production process. Pursuant to the
GHG Protocol (an international standard for measuring emissions
from private and public operations) in translating the GHG emission
resulted from energy consumption under Scope 2 Guidance
of the GHG Protocol (an international standard regarding how
corporations measuring emissions from purchased or acquired
electricity, steam, heat and cooling), the Group has a total GHG
emission of approximately 10,890 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalence during the Year under Review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

In December 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing invested RMB265,000 to
complete the remediation and upgrading of major volatile organic
compounds (VOCs) and invested RMB2.2 million in real-time online
monitoring of VOC management. According to report by Hangzhou
Tongbiao Environmental Monitoring Technology Co. Ltd* (4751 3®
ZIRIBEE AR M B RAE), all indicators of VOCs have met the
requirements of this remediation, and have successfully passed
the remediation performance assessment, further standardising
the prevention and control of volatile organic pollutants. For water
consumption, effort was made to improve water recycling; and for
power consumption, air compressors and online transformation
are adopted; electronic transformation has been carried out, and
the annual energy consumption of water, electricity and steam has
dropped by more than 5%, and all pollutants have reached the
emission target, achieving better economic and social benefits.

The Group’s objective is to achieve decreasing the GHG emission
by 6% and 12% in coming 5 years and 10 years respectively.

Waste water treatment policy

During the Year under Review, the Group did not have any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

The Group has formulated the “Waste Water Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage the
treatment and disposal of waste water and comply with the rules
and regulations regarding waste water disposal.

The Group adopted measures to separate waste water produced
during its production from other uses. Waste water segregation is
adopted in the production sites in order to facilitate segregation in
treatments for different types of waste water.

The Group’s waste water is mainly produced in the dyeing facilities.
In 2020, the Group installed the Distributed Control Systems
(“DCS”) central control system and ammonia nitrogen automatic
monitoring system for wastewater treatment process in its
workshops. The DCS central control system is designed to monitor
the whole process of wastewater treatment by continuously
monitoring sewage inflow, inflow temperature, PH value, operating
condition of circulating water pump, discharge amount and
other real time indexes on a 24-hour basis. With such system,
wastewater treatment was under overall monitoring and steady
control, ensuring discharged wastewater after treatment met
environmental requirements, such as Chemical Oxygen Demand
under 200mg/L, PH value within the range of 6 to 9, ammonia
nitrogen below 20mg/L and total nitrogen below 30mg/L.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In December 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMBO0.8 million to upgrade all the sewage pipelines in the plant
area to realize “zero liquid discharge”. New oil & water separator,
3-pool septic tank and initial rainwater collection pool were built,
and 18 rain-sewage joints were dug and repaired and 66 damaged
points in pipelines were repaired without excavation, and signs for
rain and sewage and flowing direction of about 300 manholes were
set, thus the goal of “full collection of sewage, complete diversion
of rainwater and sewage, standardized discharge from sewage
pipe” was achieved.

The Group’s objective is to achieve decreasing the water waste by
8% and 15% in coming 5 years and 10 years respectively.

Waste management policy

The Group has formulated the “Waste Management Procedure”
in order to effectively and efficiently manage the treatment and
disposal of solid waste.

Hazardous waste produced by the Group during its production
process mainly includes dyeing sludge and waste oil from stenter.
The Group stores such hazardous waste separately by their
classification and adds labels on each depositary to specify the
type, quantity and deposited time before they were transferred to
professional third party for disposal.

In June 2018, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMB218,000 to purchase a high-pressure diaphragm filter press
to upgrade the sludge treatment part of the sewage system, which
not only significantly improved the printing and dyeing sludge
treatment efficiency, but also made the treated sludge have a
very low water content, thus significantly reducing the cost of
subsequent sludge disposal.

During the Year under Review, there is no investment made for
reducing waste as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

Non-hazardous waste produced by the Group mainly derived
from packaging materials in production and domestic wastes
from staff dormitory and office. The Group strives to reduce the
packaging materials of the products. The Group maintains optimal
design for packaging materials in accordance with environmental
protection requirements, for example: to reduce product size,
minimise packaging and save storage space. Given the needs to
meet customer expectations and logistics requirements, the Group
strives to cut down the usage of packaging materials. Wooden
supports are used for product storage and auxiliary transportation
and will be disposed of as general industrial waste only when
damaged. The new wooden supports are those recyclable old
wooden supports. On the other hand, domestic wastes are
handled by municipal cleaning service.

The Group has always used packaging materials carefully to
reduce unnecessary wastes. The Group understands that after
customers receive the Group’s products, there is a high chance
that they will not keep the packaging materials but discard them.
Therefore, the Group actively takes different measures to reduce
the use of packaging materials. In addition, all packaging plastic
bags and adhesive papers are recycled as covering materials
for product protection during the production process, and the
waste packaging plastic bags and adhesive papers are all handed
over for recycling. Also, the Group strictly controls the supply of
packaging materials to prevent the use of materials that cause
serious pollution to the environment.

The Group’s objective is to achieve decreasing the hazardous
waste by 5% and 10% in coming 5 years and 10 years
respectively.
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2022 A1 Emissions KPI

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The following table sets out the gas emission and waste disposal

—_—

RIR -HERELAERS

FAIPEI Y SRR

R E A E B B F E A RYEE R PR

data of the Group for the Year under Review: EEE Y R IR HUE ¢
KPI Specific indicator Emission Intensity
KPI BiBiER BEE BE
Al.1 Waste water 570,179 tons 2,452.2 tons/RMB million sales
A1 BEK 570,179MF 2,452.2M8 B EIT ARIEIHERR
A1.2 GHG
Al2  CRERE
Carbon dioxide 13,449.27 tons 73.46 tons/RMB million sales
—aMbh% 13,449.27WF 73.46W8,  BEEIT ARKIHELE
A1.3 Hazardous waste 475 tons 2.59 tons/RMB million sales
A3 BEBEEY 475MF 25901 BE T ARIBIHELE
Al.4 Non-Hazardous waste N/A N/A
Al4 EEEY B ~EA

The following table sets out the consumption rate of electricity,

water and packaging materials for the Year under Review:

Use of resources

TRABNEEENNES Kk REEHE

BOHFER !

A2. BiRfER

KPI Specific Indicator Resource Intensity

KPI B8R &R BE

A2.1 Energy 19.12 million kwh 0.10 million kwh/RMB million sales

A21  BEIR 19.12B8 TR OI0EBTEE HBETARKHERE
A2.2 Water 535,807 tons 2,304 tons/RMB million sales

A22 7k 535,807 2,304M BB T ARBIHELR

A2.5 Packing Materials 512.73 tons 2.2 tons/RMB miillion sales

A255  BEERR 512,730 2.2M, BBITARBIHER

Please refer to paragraph A3 below for description of energy
use efficiency initiatives adopted by the Group and the results
achieved.
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During the Year under Review, as the Group’s Yongsheng Plaza
was under construction and completed in the second half of
2022, the decoration was now in process. We took all reasonable
measures to minimize the environmental impact during the
construction process.

In terms of waste disposal, we set aside a dedicated temporary
space for waste storage at the construction site. Waste is stored
by category, with safety precautions and visible signs for waste that
may cause secondary pollution. Waste shall not be scattered or
mixed during transportation, and will be sent to the units or sites
approved by government departments for treatment and disposal.

In terms of construction waste, decoration waste and material
dumping, the Group takes the following measures:

(1)  The construction waste and decoration waste shall be
dumped by category in a centralized way and cleaned
in a timely manner. Closed containers shall be used for
temporary domestic waste and water can be sprinkled
before removing waste, if appropriate, to avoid dust.
Qualified transportation companies will be engaged to
remove waste, so as not to dump waste indiscriminately.

(2)  The construction waste in the building structure and
decoration waste will be transported through closed special
waste channel or closed containers, and is strictly prohibited
to be thrown in the air. The construction site is equipped with
an enclosed waste collection facility, with construction waste
and domestic waste stored separately. The construction
waste will be removed in time according to regulations with
water sprinkled in advance to reduce the air pollution of
dust. Vacuum cleaner shall be used as much as possible
and dust-generating equipment, such as wind blower, shall
be avoided when cleaning dust and waste before pouring
concrete. Protective measures, such as local shielding,
covering and water showering, may be adopted when
conducting mechanical chiseling.

(8)  The waste on the upper level will be transported to the
ground by tower crane, material hoist or pulley, and no
arbitrary piling and throwing of waste is allowed. On-site
waste shall be transported outward in time, and no overnight
waste shall be stored on site. During the construction of
earthwork, a dedicated person will sprinkle and sweep the
floating soil stored at the site every day to prevent dust when
wind is blowing. The lime powder and all kinds of adulterated
bulk materials must be stored in the warehouse or tightly
covered. Anti-dust measures shall be taken for sand, stone
and other bulk construction materials and earthwork, such
as surface cure, covering and others.
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We strictly deal with decoration waste, it shall be cleaned
and classified by the staff. Those that can be recycled shall
be recycled by relevant recycling units, while those that
cannot be recycled shall be entrusted to the local sanitation
institute for harmless treatment.

In terms of managing the consumption of water of the
building, different water meters are used to separate the
water used for household and firefighting purposes, and
data is monitored in a timely manner to identify the reasons
behind unusual water usage in order to prevent waste.

In terms of managing the power consumption of the
building, all of the energy meters can be networked in real
time, so that the power consumption of each area can be
checked simultaneously, and the areas and equipment with
high electricity consumption can be reviewed on a monthly
basis to minimize the electricity consumption.

The Group vigorously advocates for a paperless workplace.
During the Year under Review, the building was connected to
the collaborative office system and approval processes were
filed and approved electronically to prevent paper waste.

The Group’s RMAA services, which was disposed of during 2022,
fall under the construction industry which may generate some
hazardous waste due to the business nature. Widely Construction
& Engineering Limited (“Widely Construction”) endeavors to take
all reasonable measures to minimize the impact on the environment
during its operations and has been seeking ways less harmful to
the environment. The control measures include: () spraying water
when dusty construction activities (such as demolition, drilling or
excavation) are carried out; (i) transferring waste to other sites for
reusing; and (iii) sorting waste for recycling.
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A3. Environmental protection measures

The main types of energy which the Group used in production are
electricity and steam; all were supplied by the municipal facilities.

The Group aims at increasing energy efficiency through proper
equipment maintenance and replacement of factory equipment.
The Group has reduced electricity consumption from production
by upgrading and replacing air compression systems. The Group
adopted the “coal-to-steam” system which uses steam as driving
force of stenter machines. Such system significantly reduces gas
emission.

During the Year under Review, Yongsheng Dyeing successfully
passed the test on the enterprise’s electric energy balance
conducted by the Government of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. The test mainly focused on the following two
major parts of the enterprise: i) electricity consumption and power
balance test, including power load, daily load rate, main electricity
consumption per day, high and low voltage output line three-
phase current and other parameters; and ii) the actual operating
conditions test on on-site electrical equipment to understand
whether electrical equipment operates smoothly and whether there
is power-saving potential.

Based on the above test data in two aspects and combined with
the comprehensive analysis of the current status of equipment
operation, the Group proposed a related rectification plan for the
production process. Through rectification, Yongsheng Dyeing
finally saved energy by over 7%.

In July 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing engaged CCTEG Hangzhou
Research Institute (EH £ BHINIRRIAEEA R Q) to
make a comprehensive electric energy balance test report on
the company. By December, a total of RMB3.28 million has been
invested to carry out technical renovation of related equipment and
lines, and the rectification plan has been basically completed. At
present, it is estimated that Yongsheng Dyeing can save 950,000
kwh of electricity and RMB750,000 of electricity charges annually,
basically reaching the expected goal of reconstruction and passing
the test on the enterprise’s electric energy balance conducted
by the Government of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province.
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During the Year, the Group invested RMB4.0 million to replace
12 existing dyeing machines and newly installed 1 sueding
machine. The equipment plays an important role in saving energy
and increasing efficiency after retrofitting with system support
facilities. Meanwhile, a circulating cooling water system was
in place to reduce the consumption of water for cooling down
during this Period. Furthermore, Yongsheng Dyeing has installed
a water recycling system to recycle dyed water generated from its
production and reduce water consumption.

During the Year under Review, Widely Construction, which was
disposed of during the Year under Review, advocated to reduce
the consumption of fuel, electricity, and improve the resources
efficiency by: (i) encouraging its employees to switch off the
lights and electronic appliances before they leave the office; (ii)
encouraging its employees to set the temperature of the office’s air
conditioner to 25.5 Degree Celsius; (iii) encouraging its employees
to use double-sided printing instead of single-sided printing; and
(iv) arranging the surplus materials on the construction sites to be
re-used in other construction sites instead of dumping.

Environmentally friendly products application

During the Year under Review, the Group continued to use
environmentally friendly products that were granted with two
national invention patents. The “Nylon Ultrafine Fabric Filament
and Leather-Feel Velvet Fabric” are manufactured with lower
temperature printing and dyeing methods, which significantly
reduced energy consumption and emissions, as compared with
the manufacturing of regular polyester ultrafine fiber. Meanwhile,
the microfiber filaments of “Ultrafine Fabric Filament and Naked
Shammy Fabric” require less or no dyestuff in production resulting
in less or no sewage being discharged during the production
process. These two patented products achieve energy-saving and
environmental protection at the same time.
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Evaluation of the environmental performance:

IRB RIS -

Yongsheng Dyeing

KRR
2022 2021 Changes
e T =E)
43.64 million 50.86 million (7.22 million
Production volume meters meters meters)
EE 43.64E B K 50.86 8 B K (722EEX)
Water usage (tons/per meter) 0.01166 0.01075 0.00091
AxE

(5, §K)

Electricity usage (kwh/per meter) 0.35357 0.33854 0.01503
REE
(FRE/ 8K
Steam usage (tons/per meter) 0.00176 0.00162 0.00014
R#zAE

|8,/ 8K)
Water treatment usage (tons/per meter) 0.01244 0.01144 0.001

KERIEE

(Mg, K

2022 Initiatives e Water recycle initiatives
B = - i KBRS &
e Sewage pre-treatment facility
BEOX FEER IR R B

e Shift from coal-to-steam to reduce exhaust emission
PRRR R DR B iR BE SRR I

e Increase the overall efficiency in electricity usage
REABZBENE

e Replace and upgrade dyeing machines and other equipment to
save energy and increase efficiency
BB A EHE R HE L
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A4. Climate Change

Climate change can significantly affect our business operations if
the climate-related risks are not appropriately assessed. According
to the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure, climate-
related risks are divided into two major categories: transition risks
and physical risks.

In-line with the mega-trend, there is a global transition to a
lower-carbon economy which refers to transition risks. Policy,
technology and market changes in mitigating and adapting a
low-carbon economy may lead to changes to the Group. The
sustainability committee is proactively looking for new technologies
and equipment to respond to low-carbon economy. There is no
significant impact on operations at the present stage.

Physical risks can be caused acutely (event driven) or chronically
(long-term shift) in climate patterns. Due to the nature of our
core business, climate change has a limited impact on our daily
operations so there is no significant impact at the present stage.

A4.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Care for the employees
B1. Employment

The management of the Group believes that “cooperation” and
“reciprocity” are the key success elements in a harmonious
employment relationship. Hence, the Group strictly complies
with regulations to safeguard our employees’ lawful rights. All
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are covered by Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hong Kong); while employees in the PRC are covered
by the Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Social Insurance Law,
Juvenile Protection Act, Measures for Paid Annual Leave, the
Minimum Wage Regulations, and our female labours are also
protected by Female Workers’ Labour Protection Regulations of
the PRC. Apart from competitive salaries and incentives such as
bonus and share options which are based on the evaluation of their
contributions to the Group, the Group also provides promotion
prospects and training opportunities to staff. During the Year under
Review, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance.

The Group also provides a series of facilities and benefits for its
staff and their families. The Group is committed in equipping its
staff with all-rounded skills and developing the full potential of its
staff. Most of the senior management worked over five years for the
Group.

Gender equality and diversity

The Group promotes equal opportunity and advocates diversity.
All recruitment and promotions are based on meritocracy and all
candidates will be considered during the recruitment procedures.
Selection of candidates will be based on a diverse range of
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience, skills and knowledge.
Necessary procedures are also exercised to ensure fair and non-
discriminatory recruitment.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 282 employees
and all of them are full-time employees. During the Year under
Review, the Group’s overall average employee turnover rate is
approximately 6.1%.
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RIR-HHERELRSE
The following table sets for the turnover rates of the Group’s TREVNAEBRERENRCIEEANNVBERE
employees for the Year under Review
Number of
employees
resigned
Summary of Employee Data in Year 2022 Turnover rates
—E--F
B S BRI E BRRES AR BEE R
By gender Male 15 5.2%
Eigk k-l bay B4
Female 4 1.4%
7
By age Aged 18-30 0 0%
BRERE D 18 305%
Aged 31-40 2 0.7%
31E405%
Aged 41-60 17 5.9%
A1 ZE60R
Aged over 60 0 0%
605 A
By geographical region Hong Kong 1 0.3%
ot =y BE
PRC 18 6.2%
H
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Number of Percentage of
employees as at employees as at
Employee Structure 31.12.2022 31.12.2022
RZZZZ g
+=ZH=+—H +=-—H=+—H
BTRE ZET¥E ZBIESH
Total number of employees 282 100%
BT/
By gender Male 197 69.9%
BRI Bt
Female 85 20.1%
2
By age Aged 18-30 39 13.8%
BEHRS D 18-307%
Aged 31-40 95 33.7%
31-405%
Aged 41-60 142 50.4%
41-605%
Aged over 60 6 2.1%
605z
By employment type General Staff 248 87.9%
ZREERE D —RET
Middle Management 22 7.8%
FEREIRE
Senior Management 12 4.3%
=R EIEE
By geographical region Hong Kong 9 3.2%
e B BHE
PRC 273 96.8%
FRE
Staff activities BT Z%

The Group has organised various leisure activities and festival
celebrations for its staff. During the Year under Review, the Group
organised a series of activities to celebrate festivals like Chinese
New Year, Women'’s Day, etc.. The Group also organised staff
travel and other sports activities, in order to encourage work-life
balance among its staff. The Group prepared thanksgiving gifts to
its staff during Chinese New Year, Mid-Autumn Festival and other
festivals. Being a caring company, senior management of the
Group regularly visit staff under inferior living conditions and provide
them with sincere supports.

Due to the epidemic, the Group applied for stay-at-Hangzhou
subsidies and held the Chinese New Year’s Eve activities for its staff
that were unable to return home during the Chinese New Year.
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Health and Safety

Emphasis on Production Safety

The Group strictly abides by the local laws and regulations related
to employee health and safety, such as the Production Safety
Law of the People’ Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, and the Measures for the Supervision and Administration
of Occupational Health Surveillance. The Group regulates the
work regarding production safety and prevention of occupational
diseases in a standardised way and strengthens the protection
of female employees through a series of internal rules and
regulations.

In addition, in accordance with the requirements of Safety
Production Management System and other systems, the Group
enhances accident and non-compliance management, supervises
production safety, and carefully analyses and reflects on the
lessons learned from non-compliance or production accidents to
prevent further non-compliance. The principle of “four prohibitions”
on incomplete cause investigation, incomplete disciplinary action
for responsible staff members, incomplete rectification measures
and incomplete training for relevant staff members is upheld to
improve safety education and implement rectifying measures.

The Group has installed comprehensive fire alarm systems and
fire-fighting equipment at each workplace to reduce potential fire
risk. All of the Group’s new staff have to attend the safety training.
Apart from the basic safety training, the Group also has focused on
implementing the “6S” lean management system in daily work. The
Group also requires proper safety training to be conducted before
new equipment or techniques being employed or being operated.

RIR -HERELAERS

B2, #EHZZ

EHwstE

FEEBRRETEMRE TRERZ2ER
BRERER WP EARANBEZ2EE
EC(REARKMBERERGAZE) - (B
BEREEEEWE)S BBRRINNIEE
FIERBERANZE2EELAHERMEL
B> Mg B I RE-

o AEBRZRB(Z2EEEEGE) FH
ERE MAEREHKESEE BEREE
E RENMIREEMEERNELEERSI
HRHOBH HEERREREE  BEFHR
HAREBFRE  BEEABRBERNRSE B
HERAEZETHBNERMABRZIHE
TREBH TR BRI RA BB T 220
BB KRB -

FERCESEEEEMZEEEMEAKR
ERMRMANRE UBREEBE KRR -
FEFEFMENEIHZ2MEZEEI - FRER
Z2EII5 AEBTETRBEE IETER
S IFEEEBER AEBRTERRIFH
BERNRBARMAETEENZ2E-

xR ERAR c002Es Ol



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

B3.

Emphasis on occupational disease prevention

As employees’ health and safety are of paramount importance to
the operation of the Group, the Group has accordingly formulated
a series of relevant personnel management policies to provide
employees with a healthy, positive and motivative working
atmosphere.

The Group posts notices and warning signals at workplaces where
occupational hazards may occur in order to raise employees’ self-
protection awareness.

In 2022, there was no working day lost due to work injury and there
were no employee casualties due to work.

ERBFRE

HREIMNBERZE2EHMEE - AEEEM
EHE—RIEAAETEERRURBETR
HERE BB T ERE -

TEHEABELSHNM G ETENM
e ETEHRGESH-

I
|

RIZZZF - wERTHEMBEXIEAH
THEE LA T ERMEMIETHERE-

Work-Related Fatality Year 2022 Year 2021 Year 2020
E T ERRRMIET k= T —F —EEE
Work injury cases< 3 days T1EEZ<3H 0 0 1
Work injury cases> 3 days T1&EZ%>3H 0 0 0
Fatalities TET 0 0 0
Lost days due to work injury ATHEMmBELRTIEHE 0 0 9
Development and training B3. #RERRIE

Communications are the key to the Group’s success. Internal
management meetings of the Group were held regularly, such as
management monthly meetings, periodic meetings for ad-hoc
projects, functional meetings and daily team briefings. Also, in
order to promote a safe production environment, efficiency and
enhance the quality of the Group’s products, systematic training
were provided to staff, such as new staff induction program, fire
prevention training, work safety seminars, seminars on technical
topics, managerial skills, rules and regulations updates, etc..
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A total of 4,574 training hours were conducted during the Year
under Review, and training hours (categorized by gender and

employee category) are shown below:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR -HERELAERS

REBEFR > 5HETL 574N EF >
B8 (ZMEh REEERE D) HEFT !

Occupational Training Data 2022
R 2R 1 B B —E-CF
Training Hours of Employees by Gender Male 3,475
%R B 9 B9 e B 553l RFEL B
Female 1,099
gz
Training Hours of Employees by Category General Staff 4,212
a8 DB e B 15 R ZmET
Middle Management 273
PARERE
Senior Management 89
SR EIERE
Percentage of employees received training by Gender Male 74.5%
BB EEZEZIBIIE DT Lk
Female 25.5%
Z4
Percentage of employees received training by Category General Staff 91.5%
wEpB N EEEZEIIE DL TEET
Middle Management 6.6%
FAREIEE
Senior Management 1.9%
EREEE
Average Training Hours of Employees by Gender Male 22.42
BERE DR E TSR 8L Bt
Female 20.74
geg
Average Training Hours of Employees by Category General Staff 21.60
BHERB DR B T 1915 IR & ZEBET
Middle Management 19.50
AR EIEE
Senior Management 22.25
EREEE
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RIE-HHERERERS
B4. Labour standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation to the prohibition of child and forced labour. The Group
strictly prohibited employment of any staff under the age of 16.
The human resources department of the Group strictly implements
measures to prevent any violations thereof, for example, identity
cards, certificates of skills and graduation certificates of each staff
member are verified before signing formal employment agreements
with the candidates. In case any irregularities in ages, identities
and/or validities of employment status were found, employment will
be terminated immediately, and the Group will report the incident
to relevant authorities. The Group has complied with all applicable
laws and regulations in relation to employment matters during
the Year under Review. The Group also has measures in place to
reconfirm whether the newly recruited staff meets the recruitment
criteria. The Group will pay a minimum salary on a monthly basis
which is no less than those required by the local government in
accordance with the government regulations during the probation
period. It will determine staff salary in accordance with the skills and
technical requirements of the position.
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Efficient process for talent development

Objective setting Competency Development
BRRE BENBE

SMEIANT ERRIE

Performance Appraisal

RETE

Vocational Development
WERE

Establishing clear performance
targets to create value for
achieving the Company’s
business objectives
REBMHNESEEIR AAF
X(FERERAEEE

Conducting in depth analysis
and formulating a targeted plan
for performance development,
so as to ensure performance
optimization

RADHT > HIER i IERAE
2%%@1 CRRREBENE

Conducting systematic
assessment and evaluation
on the results of performance
targets
HBBEUERTHAERNR

Proposing a clear plan that
provides a path to career
success for employees
BERERET ) > 2 B THRMHE—IF
BERINENE

e Communicating with the
responsible personnel to
confirm the short-term and
long-term performance
output objectives
undertakings
BeE NBE WA
%Diﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬂ%mﬁﬁéém
Bz

e Setting development targets
to ensure the growth of
organisational capability
SRILBIREBAESI RN
EERER

e Clarifying the content
and direction of our
trainings and ensuring their
implementation
BRFEIE DI A BT ) > BE R

EIE N

e Carrying out training and
capability improvement
work with a focus on core
competence development
Bz O DR REE
L sE IR F TAF

¢ Improving the management
skills to support the
achievement of a high
performance process
REEEERE UXFS

BRI ETR

e Establishing performance
assessing standards for
performance targets
HEHEW BT REEET

e Evaluating the effectiveness
of the employees’ learning
and development program
THMEE TSR EERIER
BHEMB MM

e Careers development and
guidance for employees
BTHHEREE

¢ Design and implementation
of performance incentive
system
BEXHERE R RSt EAE
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e Aflexible career
development system that
allows inter-departmental
transfer, vertical promotion
and cross-grade promotion
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* In-house mentor program
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e Task training program
EFEItE

e Internal job rotation
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B5.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Supply chain management
Corporate certifications, qualifications and awards

The Group promotes the concept of “innovation” with strong
research and development capabilities. The Group has obtained
certifications in quality and environment management aspects
(1ISO9001 and 1ISO14001). In addition, the Group has obtained
a series of corporate certifications, qualifications and awards as
listed in the “Certifications and Qualifications” section above in
recognition of its effort in promoting “innovation”. The Group has
completed the external audit and renewal related to ISO and the
expiry date of the ISO extended to 2024 during the Year under
Review.

Procurement reliability and relationships with suppliers

The Group monitors its procurement procedures closely as raw
materials directly affect the quality of products. During the Year
under Review, the major suppliers of the Group were mainly
located in Zhejiang province, Jiangsu province and other regions
of the PRC and had over 5 years of relationship with the Group
on average. When liaising with new suppliers, the sourcing
department of the Group is responsible for evaluating the potential
suppliers with reference to the criteria set out in the “Stakeholders
Environmental Management Procedures”, such as the compliance
of relevant statutory requirements, product quality, production
stability, compliance with safety and environmental protection rules
and regulations and pricing. The Group only engages the suppliers
which have passed the evaluation. Subsequent to the engagement
of the suppliers, the Group performs regular evaluation of its
suppliers in order to monitor product quality. For the Year under
Review, the Group worked closely with 253 suppliers, 200 and 53
of them are in Hong Kong and China respectively.

Emergencies management

The Group formulated the “Emergency Management
Procedures” and “Fire Prevention Management Procedures”
and other production safety management systems to cope with
emergencies. In addition, the Group has designated personnel to
conduct safety inspections on production facilities and conduct
instant follow-up when any exceptional situation was found.

In order to minimise the environmental and social impact due to
emergencies, the Company will set up a central team to manage
emergencies and designate relevant personnel to formulate
evacuation plans, conduct post-incidental repair and investigations
in order to avoid the re-occurrence of similar incidents in
accordance with the “Ratification and Prevention Measures
Management Procedures”.

BS.
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B6. Product responsibility

The Group is committed to offering quality products to customers
and comply with the requirements of relevant standards in relation
to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters of
its products. The Group has formulated the “Product Monitoring
and Measurement Management Procedures”, the “Defective
Product Management Procedures” and the “Data Analysis
Monitoring Procedures” in order to strictly manage product quality.
The following chart illustrates the quality and environmental
management system framework of the Group:

B6. EmEE
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The quality and environmental
management system framework of the Group
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During the Year under Review, there were no material recalls,
significant complaints against the products, or any material amount
of sales return for safety and health reasons.

Patents

As one of the leading manufacturers of dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester filament fabrics in the PRC, product quality
is the top priority of the Group. The Group owned 19 utility model
patents and 2 invention patents. The number of patents owned by
of the Group is as follows:

RIR -HERELAERS
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HeAEEEF19HERNE SR K2TE
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Total number

Invention Utility model of patents

patents patents being owned

BHAER BRMEER EEENRAH

Yongsheng Dyeing KR REE 2 19 21

The Group sets “innovation” as the top priority for its business
growth. The Group pays great attention to the protection of
intellectual property rights and product secrecy in order to
safeguard the results of its innovation. The product information
department is responsible for managing the patents and projects
of the Group. The Group will cooperate with intellectual property
service companies to improve the quantity and quality of future
patents applications. The Group will continue to develop a
sustainable innovation model through internal research and
development, industry-university-research cooperation and others
research and development efforts.

The Group will also perform periodic customer satisfaction surveys
in order to understand customer demand.
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Privacy Protection and Intellectual Property

The Group is committed to comply with the privacy laws and
regulations. The Group undertakes to strictly comply with the
requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter
486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Corporate Finance Consultant
Code of Conduct and local legislations, to ensure that all data are
securely kept in the internal system with access control. The Group
has separated the customer data from other ordinary information
to protect customers’ privacy. Meanwhile, only authorized
personnel can access the personal data collected from the
Group’s customers. Through the internal training and confidential
agreements with employees, the Group emphasizes confidentiality
obligations and the legal consequences of the breaches of relevant
rules.

While striving for excellent quality and high-tech quality, the Group
complies with the requirements of Patents Ordinance (Chapter
514 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((F#EARZEFMEBEIFEH %)) focusing on
protecting original designs and legally obtaining copyrights. Also
the staff periodically check the Hong Kong Intellectual Property
Journal and other international source, we will raise objection
accordingly if there is new application of trademark registration
which is likely to make confuse with the Group’s trademarks. To
improve productivity and market competitiveness, the Group has
obtained relevant patents for its products and has used them
in its operations. The Group also will conclude an e-commerce
platform agreement with customers to achieve the consumer data
protection.

During the Year under Review, we were not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with regulations and/or voluntary codes
concerning the Group’s service information and labelling, as well as
marketing communications including advertising.
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B7.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Anti-corruption

The Group emphasises on transparency and responsibility in
order to fulfill the corporate motto of “integrity”. The Group strives
to achieve zero occurrence of incidents that are detrimental to
the interests of shareholders, investors, customers and other
stakeholders of the Group. The Group had formulated a set of anti—
corruption policies to ensure compliance with all applicable anti—
corruption laws and regulations in relation to bribery, extorting,
fraud and money laundering. All directors, staff, agents and
representatives and any individuals acting on behalf of the Group
are prohibited from directly or indirectly offering, giving, soliciting or
receiving any form of bribe, kickback or other corruptive payment
or anything of value, to or from any person or organisation,
including government agencies, individual government officials,
private companies and employees of those private companies
under any circumstances. During the Year under Review, the
Group did not have any non-compliance with laws and regulations
in respect of anti-corruption, including but not limited to Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Criminal Law of the PRC.

Moreover, the Group had formulated a whistle-blowing policy to
increase employees’ awareness to uphold integrity. The chairman,
chief executive officer and the audit committee of the Company
will receive report of the whistle-blowing incidents and have
the discretion to initiate independent investigations according
to the nature of the incidents or refer the incidents to relevant
regulatory authorities. The Group communicated with investors
and stakeholders periodically by publishing quarterly financial and
business updates, organising visits to its factories and arranging
focus group meetings with institutional investors and stock
commentators. The Group also published announcements in
relation to its major development in accordance with the seven
“Principles of Responsible Ownership” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”).
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BS.

In December 2022, the Board and different departments of the
Group improve employees’ comprehensive understanding of fraud
concept, fraud behavior, and methods to prevent and defuse fraud
and enhance their awareness through providing various anti-fraud
study materials and off-line trainings. During the Year under Review,
the Group did not receive any complaint from employees.

Whistle-blowing policies are published on the homepage of the
Group’s official website (www.chinaysgroup.com). Customers,
suppliers, business partners and employees can report any
suspicious event by means of e-mail, telephone and mailing:

Phone No.: +852-2776 5229

Fax: +852-2994 9699

Community investment

Community service

Management of the Group actively participates in the public
positions in community service. The chairman of the Group is
currently the senior vice president of China Chemical Fibers
Association, the president of Wenzhou Chamber of Commerce in
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou.

The Group is keen on contributing to the society. During the Year

under Review, the Group donated approximately RMB1,368,000
to surrounding communities and social organisations.
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Community care

During the year of 2022, the Group was once again listed as one
of the “Top Ten Enterprises (+381>2£) | and won the honorary title
of “Advanced Taxpaying Enterprise (475 S (B 2£) | released by
the government of Jingjiang Street of Hangzhou. The Group has
ranked first in the taxation of emission rights for printing and dyeing
enterprises in Xiaoshan District for many consecutive years.

During the Year under Review, the Group made the charity
donation through the Spring Breeze Action Network and under
the scheme held by Charity Federation of Xiaoshan District of
Hangzhou.

Apart from paying high attention to corporate developments, the
Group also cares about the development of the communities
where its factories and offices locate. The Group has not only
provided financial support to those who are in need in the
surrounding communities, but also organised community events
and encouraged its staff to participate.
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B AEER S

o
EY:

To the shareholders of
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 110 to 262,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FAREIZEIE (8)

Key audit matter

REELEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZPUNAREMREZEER

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for trade receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB15,032,000 before provision for impairment.
RIBE__F+ZB=+—H> BEEEZBZRWRETFHRER
a2 AR ¥15,032,0007T °

The determination as to expected credit losses (“ECLs”) involves
management judgement and estimates. Management considers specific
factors to decide the ECLs such as the age of the balances, location
of customers, existence of disputes, recent historical payment patterns
and any other available information concerning the creditworthiness of
counterparties. Management uses this information to determine whether
a provision for impairment is required.
RETHEAEEHE ((TRREEHE) REEEEBFLAIEE G -8
BEMNECHEREEGIBTENARRZSIEARNIRE -SRI
B BEETAUMN AR LEREARBRAT R EENTEAEMAE
Br-EEEERRFENETEG AL RERE-

Because of significant judgement and estimates applied by management
in assessing the provision for ECLs this is considered as a key audit
matter.

MR ETREERBRENTERERAE A B K& SHMAR
HESHARBREZFER

The accounting policies and related disclosures for trade receivables are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

EREZRUCRIEN G st BERRERIRES N S HMBRERMNEE2.4-3
Fe220
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
the provision assessment for trade receivables:

IR E ZERUER B E T EITUTER

1) Obtained an understanding on the process
of management’s assessment on impairment
of trade receivables, and evaluated the
design and implementation of management’s
controls over the assessment of the
recoverability of trade receivables.

1) THRERETIGHEEZRENBREBENRE
B RiTEEEREEHEZRNEIENAE
Wt B ST R e AV B8 5t R B T ©

2) Examined the assumptions and judgements
on provision for ECLs on trade receivables
especially for aged receivables.

2) BEEZEWINIE LHIBAREWIE
HTEERE BB B E RV IR R R FI R o

3) Assessed the appropriateness of the
approach and the models along with the
key assumptions used to determine the
provision for ECLs for trade receivables by
test checking the accuracy in the ageing of
trade receivables and the historical payment
patterns and evaluated the impact from
macroeconomic factors that management
considered or the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables by test checking to the
correlation between such macroeconomic
factors and the historical observed default
rates.

3) MhEEBEZEWHRIBETRIAEEEEMA
NAEERBEENRERERBRENEEE 5
EREZE S RUGRIRRE B R4 KA
FEFEAURBBAEZEREME RN
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B TR ERBRBERENEENE
P4 B REGRIBAES]

4) Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures on
trade receivables in the consolidated financial
statements.

4) FTEEHMBRIRANESEWEIEREN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RISEEIZEIE (48)

Key audit matter

BB ZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERDPNAERERNRERSEER

Valuation of investment properties

The Group chooses the fair value model to subsequently measure all
investment properties. As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate carrying
amount of investment properties was approximately RMB809,600,000
and the fair value loss on investment properties recognised during the
year was RMB20,331,000. The Group engaged an external valuation
expert to perform valuation of the Group’s investment properties to
estimate the fair values as at 31 December 2022.
EEEEERTEEXGEHBMARBEYE - R _Z__F+-A4
=+—H BREYENEREELS R ARIES09,600,0007t kF A B
REEMERTFEBEAAR20,331,000t° BHEEZREINDG
BERY BSEENREVEETHE UGHSRZIZZ-F+°A
=+—HBNAFE.

Because of significant judgement involved and assumptions adopted to
determine the fair values of the investment properties, which reflect the
current market conditions, this is considered as a key audit matter.

AR EEREMELATFTERNMIRNERH B RRARR ERMRE A
mh MBS EASAREZEE.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the investment properties are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
FRARBEVMENSSBERRERBEEN SHMBRRWE2.4 3%
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment properties:

RN ERREYELERBNEFNT

1) Evaluated the competency, independence
and objectivity of the external valuer. We
obtained an understanding of the valuation
approach and key assumptions used by the
external valuer.

1) FHLIMNEREEMBAE D~ I R R o
BT RN EMMPTER A E S E R

TBER

2) Assessed the related data used by the
external valuation expert as inputs of the
valuations by comparing to the historical data
and market index.

2 FEEREIHEBKRTISIEBETLEE T
EAMER LA E R AR EER A ZIENER
o

3) Involved our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the valuation
methodology and the underlying assumptions
which principally included the market unit
rental rate and discount rate; and

3) ERAEEEFERHEIERMTLEERZE
KREREERS TEGEMSHEUEASER
RBEIRE &

4) Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures on
the valuation of investment properties in the
consolidated financial statements.

4) HMEEHMBRREBEVEGERENST
B
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B ZHETR S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHENER S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHETR S

ZHMMEZ S HMBRRAREN
B1E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

108 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022

AMEEEMAESBRESRE URES
FrEEM EsHE EMERKER S SR

BMESERAUFECERERNGER
BEE LRBEENNEZERSR BERS
BEY SEEFECENENBREXNEM
NEHHBREFERTHBRAZE 15 K
BERDDHAERTHMRAZ  HAFTEEX
AR E PIRF IR A H M BREANERH
BRHRE  SUINRAERMIRER B BIERIEE
REBER -RANEREENBEZHEIR
S EHFERHEIZRE AT RIRFMHE
BERAEER EEEITHEAEFELEN
BES] e

LA HMBRANERTR RBURNE
BREREEEMN UNRGHMBHREEEER
Fith R R S $RAB RS 55 R F IR o

i EEERSBERAER THNMBTE
HERSROBENEZERE UG HUE
BREXRER - RFAAEERE - BEEMNHN
7 BEEENERIF-HMAEAAEMNE
REREAEEHEE



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
aHEmEREMZEITAR

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE - "F+_HA=+—HILEE

2022 2021
== T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARBTT AREFT
(Re-presented)
(&= 7)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRBREE
REVENUE Uk & o) 216,014 206,182
Cost of sales SHE MK (147,603) (132,936)
Gross profit EF 68,411 73,246
Other income and gains, net H U A R U 3 73 5B 5 18,250 1,557
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (1,415) (2,493)
Administrative expenses THREX (39,784) (39,827)
Remeasurement loss upon transfer of certain & TS {EHEYEEETKE
properties held for sale to investment MEBENIERSIE
properties 20 (70,359) -
Fair value loss on investment properties B E AT ERE 15 (20,331) (104,651)
Impairment losses on financial and contract &R ENE ERERHE
assets, net FEB (2,024) (46)
Finance costs BB 7 (14,990) (7,212)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 5 &2 ¥R AEE
OPERATIONS 6 (62,242) (79,426)
Income tax expense Fri8Ex 10 (9,884) (3,153)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM FRKEEFENGE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (72,126) (82,579)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIERER
Profit/(loss) for the year from a discontinued B4R |FAS & S350 3E A~
operation (E518) 11 14,164 (163,744)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FAEE (57,962) (246,323)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AR REMZEBAR

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE_"F+_H=+—HILEE

2022 2021
== BT —fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARETT AREFIT
(Re-presented)
(&= 7)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hth2EBA (§518)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that FERIAEAERETEBRN
may be reclassified to profit or loss in Hin2@Eml A, (E8) :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: PERZEER !
Exchange differences on translation of foreign & BN EFEHIE R EEE
operations 8,264 (5,461)
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign FRAHEBINEFNER
operation disposed of during the year DR 1,081 -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that B AR FIsEE Y EEH A
may be reclassified to profit or loss in Hitn2EBA, (5518)
subsequent periods FRE 9,345 (5,461)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that FRIPBEEFEEIIEER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in MEMEEmKRA (&)
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign A& G 9 EFSHIFE 2 =48
operations 668 (216)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that  FREEGAEEY Ei8%
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in WEMmEEBA S (5518)
subsequent periods FRE 668 (216)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FREMEERA (E518)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (INpRFAIA) 10,013 (5,677)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FRARHEEGIREE
THE YEAR (47,949) (252,000)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B REREMEEBAR

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_ZE_"F+_HA=+—HIEEFE

2022 2021
= B —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT AREFIT
(Re-presented)
(f=E%))
Loss attributable to: DUF (LI ¢
Shareholders of the Company KABPRE (55,178) (245,307)
Non-controlling interests JEIER TR (2,784) (1,016)
(57,962) (246,323)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: MG EmeIELREE
Shareholders of the Company KABIPRE (45,832) (250,724)
Non-controlling interests JEIER TR (2,117) (1,276)
(47,949) (252,000)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AT IR ERE(LSREIE
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 13
Basic HaA
— For loss for the year —FRNEE RMBARH(7.7) cents?  RMBARH(33.5) cents??
— For loss from continuing operations — B EEKEE RMBAE(9.6) cents®  RMBAR(11.1) cents?)
Diluted 8
— For loss for the year —FENEIE RMBARH¥(7.7) cents?  RMBARH(33.5) cents??
— For loss from continuing operations —RHEREEEEIR RMBAR(9.6) cents??  RMBARM(11.1) cents??
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AHBFERRR

31 December2022 —ZE_-__F#+_H=+—H
2022 2021
== &
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment D2~ TR R st 14 184,258 116,815
Investment properties KEYE 15 809,600 674,660
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 33,337 10,624
Goodwill GES 17 = =
Other intangible assets HMEEEE 18 1,693 2,169
Investments in a joint venture REEtENKE 19 2,337 3,478
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 23(c) 2,920 81,217
Amounts due from related parties FE YR RR B4 75 =B 38 6,447 5,583
Deferred tax assets IEIEAR I E B 33 921 6,179
Pledged deposits BIERER 27 3,109 =
Total non-current assets JERENE ELEEE 1,044,622 900,725
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =FE8 20 5,993 6,547
Completed properties held for sale FIEHENBEE T 21 - 225,630
Trade, bills and lease receivables B 5 EIGERIE - e EE I
T FE & FE R IE 22 61,738 62,578
Contract assets BHEE 24 - 18,656
Prepayments, other receivables and other FETRIE ~ HfthEUEIE
assets REMEE 23(a) 20,627 35,555
Loan receivables FEWE R 23(b) 139,494 158,409
Bills receivable at fair value through other BATEF AREME®E
comprehensive income AR FE R Z 4 25 1,889 3,773
Financial assets at fair value through BATEF AERN TR
profit or loss BE 26 25,545 48,641
Derivative financial instruments THEEBRIA 30 607 =
Amounts due from related parties FE LIk B Bk 75 =R I8 38 6,111 4,451
Tax recoverable A Y [EIFRTE - 3,070
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 27 143,834 86,551
Total current assets TRENE ELREE 405,838 653,861
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik ii=Ri
Trade payables B EMRIE 28 79,811 99,954
Other payables and accruals HhpE( T IE R BT TR 29 17,537 24,567
Derivative financial instruments THEEMITA 30 - 654
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5+ B 817 & Eth &= 31 76,132 69,995
Government grants BFER 32 387 387
Amount due to related parties P& 1< B Bk 75 =R I8 38 1,302 673
Income tax payable FEI TSR 4,887 7,451
Total current liabilities BB EAERE 180,056 203,681
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEREE 225,782 450,180
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT wEERREAG
LIABILITIES 1,270,404 1,350,905
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBRAR

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2022 2021
-z BT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARBTT AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENAE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t B R1T R ELfthf&=x 31 140,528 167,191
Government grants B &R 32 6,128 6,515
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE(E 33 13,697 9,396
Amount due to related parties FE < BB 75 7R I8 38 683 428
Deposits payable fEiEE 4,826 2,292
Total non-current liabilities JEREN B (BAERE 165,862 185,822
Net assets FEE 1,104,542 1,165,083
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to shareholders of NN B R E LR
the Company
Share capital [N 34 5,854 6,063
Share premium 17 =B 34 797,630 810,013
Other reserves HhEE 36 298,403 344,235
1,101,887 1,160,311
Non-controlling interests JEITR R 2,655 4,772
Total equity 4B %R 1,104,542 1,165,083
Li Cheng Ma Qinghai
37 E&5E
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
aHEDZEEHR

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE__F+_H=+—HIFEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FARRRES
Foreign Equity-
currency  Statutory settled Non-
Share Share  Retained translation surplus arrangement Other controlling Total
capital  premium earnings* reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserves* Total interests equity
SMEHE AERE  EahE
kx  RfEE RERA frhfi* e REE EftEE & ERRER RGRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
(note 34) (note 34) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36)
(Mt34)  (Mfst34) (Mst36)  (Wstse)  (Witse)  (Mfi¥se)
A1 January 2022 o R 6063 BI0013 316246 (17,115 81,992 8870 (45758 1,160,311 472 1165083
Loss for the year FREE - - (55,178) - - - - (55,178) (2,784) (57,962)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMEESE !
Exchange differences on tranglation of BENBRRNEREE
financlal statements - - - 8,265 - - - 8,265 667 8,932
Reclassiication adjustments for a foreign FRLERIEENENDE
operation disposed of during the year Ea - - - 1,081 - - - 1,081 - 1,081
Total comprehensive income for the year FRRARAEER - - (55,178) 9,346 - - - 45,832) @2117) (47,049
Appropriation to statutory reserve PEELTRE - - (3,148) - 3,148 - - - - -
Shares repurchased BB 1D (209) (12,383) - - - - - (12,592) - (12,592
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZE+ZR=1-H 5854 797,630 257,920 (7,769) 85,140 8870 (45,758) 1,101,887 2655 1,104,542
At 1 January 2021 RZE--E-F-H 6,004 826,670 566,558 (11,698) 76,987 9,471 (45,758) 1,428,284 1948 1430232
Loss for the year ERER - - ) - - - SE37) (1018 (2463%9)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ERHEMZESE
Exchange differences on tranglation of fivancial BB RRNEREE
statements - - - (5,417 - - - 5,417 (260) (5,677)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRRAFEEE - - (245300) (6,417) - - - (250724 (1.276)  (252,000)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ AAABIRESTRE - (18,206) - - - - - (18,208) = (18,208)
Appropriation to statutory reserve PEELTHE - - (5,008) - 5,005 - - - - -
Capital contribution by non-controling FERREAE
shareholders - - - - - - - - 4,100 4,100
Exercise of share options e 9 1,549 - - - (601) - 957 - 957
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F+ZR=1-H 6,063 810,013 316,246 (17,115) 81,992 8,870 (45,758 1,160,311 4772 1,165,083

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves

of RMB298,403,000 (2021: RMB344,235,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

ZEREROEAHMBRERANEGHEM
B AR 15208,403,0007 T (CE-—F : AR
344,235,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHIRERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE - "F+_HA=+—HILEE

2022 2021
== T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARBTT AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax: PRIQAIESIE ©
From continuing operations FFREREE (62,242) (79,426)
From a discontinued operation BARIEEER 14,093 (164,716)
Adjustments for: MU TIEEFHRAE
Finance costs A& A A 7 andf 11 15,002 7,242
Interest income FEWA 5 (13,948) (14,805)
Investment income BERA 5 (385) (4,504)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - HEKRRE
equipment & 6 (24) ©)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 11 (15,593) =
Fair value loss, net: N EEEZE
Financial assets at fair value through AT EST ABRR
profit or loss TREE 5 (109) 18,697
Derivative instruments — transaction not METARA-RXZTHER
qualifying as hedge o 5 (932) 653
Investment properties Sg=LY/ES 15 20,331 104,651
Remeasurement loss upon transfer of ETFEHEYEEE
certain properties held for sale to NEYERENEE
investment properties 518 70,359 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERREITE
equipment 14 8,188 5,318
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 16 1,257 1,231
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hihmp & s 18 201 350
Impairment of trade receivables and BEREFEREGHNEE 22andk
contract assets BE 24 433 771
Impairment of goodwill EERE 17 - 98,064
Impairment of other intangible assets HhmrEERE 18 - 53,739
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of FEUS BAE: 75 7018 CRiE
amounts due from related parties B[O RE 6 (192) 482
Impairment of other receivables HtEWRIERE 6 and&
23(a) 488 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of loan ~ FEWREFURE, CRE 6 and&
receivables £2[a)) 23(b) 1,728 (436)
Release of deferred income AR BRI LEUTA 32 (387) (387)
Share of losses of a joint venture EE—EEEtERSE  5and&19 1,141 122
39,409 27,037
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE_"F+_H=+—HILEE

2022 2021
-z BT —fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT AR
Decrease/(increase) in inventories EERL, (8 554 (1,754)
Increase in properties under development E=3Eesky ES il - (8,498)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from FE U BB 5 =R I8 (g )
related parties VA% (339) 388
(Increase)/decrease in trade, bills and lease & 7 FEWEIE « FEUR Z 5
receivables K& FE R IE (5 )
e (911) 8,472
Decrease in contract assets SHEERD 4,182 13,525
Decrease in bills receivable at fair value BT EST AEM U
through other comprehensive income ABFERZESZ R 1,884 12,590
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and other & R B W RE R
receivables /(g0 17,318 (14,011)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables BRREMIE (L) 18
il (2,440) 7,806
Increase in amounts due to related parties JE (< BE Bt 75 mRIEIE N 884 1,101
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HnpETIB R BT 7B
accruals CRIZL) /38 (3,303) 5,156
Cash generated from operations REFRRIRE 57,238 51,812
Interest received BUFE 411 30
Interest paid BEFE (25) (71)
Income taxes paid BPTER (2,368) (20,410)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETBPRIREMEF4E 55,256 31,361
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KEESRGHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BWFE 8,333 9,409
Investment income received BYIRE WA 566 4,959
Purchases of items of property, plant, BEYE -BE -REFEBEEX
equipment and leasehold land HELH (28,888) (95,225)
Purchase of an investment property RE—BREYE - (72,284)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HE¥¥E -MEKZHEE
plant and equipment BIFR1SFIB 392 88
Investments in a joint venture R—REaEtENKE - (3,600)
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets 451318 A FEsT AIBHEH
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEENERIE 22,696 481,827
Increase in loan receivables W E RRIE M (131,763) (234,032)
Settlement of loan receivables EIEWER 151,391 192,040)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR 11 25,785 =
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BEBRATEFABEDN
through profit or loss ETREE - (352,545)
Decrease in amounts due from related parties & U B8 Bt 5 2E R 310 -
Advances to related parties [ S BT IB (1,558) (10,001)
Increase in pledged deposits BIERERIEM (3,002) L
Net cash flows from/(used in) in investing WEZREFAE (FrA) Re
activities MERER 44,262 (79,364)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

aBHREERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z

FH_A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
s T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARBTT AREFT
CASH FLOWS USED IN/(FROM) MEEBFA, (Fi3) RE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES e
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRIDFIIERIB - 957
New bank loans MERITE™R 43(b) 56,017 108,620
Repayment of bank loans BRIBITTEM 43(b) (76,275) (40,255)
Capital injection of non-controlling interests ~ JEIEpG #E X+ B - 4,100
Repurchase of shares B&15 Bl (12,592) =
Principal portion of a lease payment HENREAEZD 43(b) (629) (840)
Dividend paid BEKRE = (18,206)
Interest paid BAFE (14,668) (7,007)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing BEEE FrA) /FrisiRe
activities TMEFEE (48,147) 47,369
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R&KIR&ZSEYIEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS () 358 51,371 (634)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ E#IRE XIS HEY
year 86,551 89,718
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  §MNb& FE R Bh 9 52 258 28 5,912 (2,533)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRETRFEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 27 143,834 86,551
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND R&RIRSZEMERIIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RERIBITHER 27 143,834 86,551
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe ~ R BRI ERKRIIRSHER
statement of financial position and the 232 MRIREEEY
statement of cash flows 143,834 86,551
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19
April 2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is 2/F, Century
Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,
Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

° Provision of dyeing services of differentiated polyester
filament fabric

. Properties investment

° Renovation, maintenance, alteration and additional services
(“RMAA Service”); and

o Investment, development, construction, operation and
management of renewable energy businesses, water
treatment businesses and environmental protection
businesses

In the opinion of directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Ever Thrive Global Limited
(“Ever Thrive”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) and controlled by Mr. Li Cheng (the “Controlling
Shareholder”).

SHMFEIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —E__HF+_H=+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2B REEBER (&)

(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries bt B 2~ B RV E kL
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: KRBMBABTIEBAT !
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BETR
Ea] FHRARIL R RS R SR AEE FRTEMGEEAALE TELH
Direct Indirect
=t i
Yongsheng Advanced Materials (BVI)  Limited liability company incorporated in US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng BVI") the BVI
XEFMRBVBRAR REBELHSHMRINERAR 1E7 100 - REER
(KEEBV) 1)
Yongsheng Advanced Materials (HK)  Limited liability company incorporated in US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng HK’) Hong Kong
KEIME (BB BRAE REAEMRINERAR ESH - 100 REZEK
(TXEEH)
Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Limited liability company established in RMB200,000,000 - 100 Provision of dyeing services in the
Dyeing and Finishing Co. Limited the PRC PRC
(“Yongsheng Dyeing’)
TNEELXRFEBRAT RABERINERAF A 200,000,000 - 100 RAERERERE
(KERE)
First Intelligence International Limited  Limited liability company incorporated in US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
(‘First Intelligence”) Hong Kong
#FRERERAT (Hr) REBZMRINERAR 50,000%7¢ 100 - REER
Chang Sheng investment Holding Limited liability company incorporated in HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited (“Chang Sheng Hong Kong
investment”)
WERREERERAF REBERRINERAR AT - 100 REER
(eEKE)
Changsheng Property (Hangzhou) Limited liability company established in RMB200,000,000 - 100 Provision of property services in
Company Limited (‘Changsheng the PRC the PRC
Property”)
AEIE (M) BIRAF RPER A RAS AR #200,000,0007 - 100 RPERENERS
(TeEM%)
Hangzhou Yonghao Investment Limited liability company established in RMB50,500,000 = 100 Properties investment in the PRC

Management Company Limited the PRC
(*Hangzhou Yonghao Investment”)

MK EREBEERAR RAERINERAF A #50,500,0007¢ - 100 RAERENERE
(Mtsk 5 E)

]20 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

B HMERRMGE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

REREBEH (@)

B ATKER ()
AABMBADNHBOT : @

(Continued)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B&1TR
s SRR RS SRS EYNSAET £ TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef# i}
Philosojoy Investment Limited Limited liability company incorporated in HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
(*Philosojoy Investment”) Hong Kong
BRREERAR ((AHRE) REBIMRINERAR AT - 100 REZR
Inya Water Group Limited Limited liability company incorporated in HK$150,000,000 60 - Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya Group”) the Cayman Islands management of hydro-related
projects
ERABEEERAT RESHEEMMINERAR 150,000,000%7¢ 60 - BR EEREEABAMER
(£
WZ Environment Limited Limited liability company incorporated in HK$10,000 - 60 Investment holding
("WZ Environment”) Hong Kong
HEIOKBERAR (RHEK%)  REEIMRINERAR 10,0007 - 60 REEEK
Inya Water Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd  Limited liability company incorporated in RM1,037,810 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya MY”) Malaysia management of hydro-related
projects
HERAKIR (BRAD BRAD RERBRIREINERAD 1,087,810 5 - 60 BE EERERKBEREE
i35 Sl
Inya Water (Myanmar) Limited Limited liability company incorporated in US$100,000 = 60  Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya Myanmar”) Myanmar management of hydro-related
projects
HIEKT (@R) BRAR REERRINERAR 100,000% 7T - 60 FEE 2ERBEKBIEHNES
(i)
WZ Inya Water Company Limited Limited liability company incorporated in US$5,000 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
(‘WZ Inya") Cambodia management of hydro-related
projects
HRRAH (RER) BRAT RRBREMAULNERAT 5,000% 7T - 60 BRI EENRERKBEREE

(TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

REREBEHN (@)

it AR ER ()
FATMBATNFBENT : (@

(Continued)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B&1TR
g SRR R RS SR AEE EYNSRET £ b TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef# i}

Inya (Zhejiang) Environment Limited liability company established in RMB12,000,000 - 60  Provision of consultancy services
Consulting Limited the PRC and sale of environmental
(‘Inya Zhejiang’) protection machineries

B (D) RIEBABRAT RABERINERAT A& %12,000,0007 - 60 REHARBREERFEE

(TEHEHL)

Anhui Inya New Material Technology  Limited liability company established in RMB50,000,000

Limited (“Anhui Inya”) the PRC
ZHEBEIMEREBRAT RARERM A RAS A E 50,000,007
(Mt he)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bills
receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income,
derivative financial instruments and investment properties which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

]22 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) RBUEE (48)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying

2020 IFRS 16, and IAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable
to Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity
to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
business combinations that occurred on or after 1 January
2022. As there were no contingent assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities within the scope of the amendments
arising in the business combination that occurred during
the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by IAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on
or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of items
produced prior to the property, plant and equipment being
available for use, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfiling the
contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were identified.
Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

@

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As
there was no modification or exchange of the Group’s
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HMERRMGE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12
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Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts’®

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the "2020
Amendments 4

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments’f

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

t As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective

date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in
June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS
9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

e An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of IFRS 17

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB
in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 ENEM1E M R E M 2 BB 75 R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into
after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, in particular the determination over whether
an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement of the liability. In 2022, the IASB issued the
2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In addition,
the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity
that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a
liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

]30 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022

SR (8)

Bl R S B E 165N BT HBTEE
BEEXZEENHERGRRANESD — K
BAZHEE  UBFRES - AKBAATGTER
HFFREERARERNENREEEE ZF
BN T NE-A A2 BRABNE
EREEN LRENEANBERYHRS
ZREI6KERERZH BN 22— NF—8
—B) > AFFRAEA RZEEITHAE
EOHREMEEANERTE-

HEE st ERE1ENETI B ELH5 78T
R B BEREBDEARNAIERIIR
ELHER WAETERETEREBEES
BIEEEREHEEVI2EAB -BENDEE
TEZERTEHILEEESBEMN MDA
MHEE ZSEINEEHRABEESRE
HER-RIEI 5 ERGTENEES
B _S__ERBFE— ST BEEETERDR
HEANEERET EERENKREEH
FZABTHN LA EREEDEATHN
RS el B —FBITERERESD
BIMEE  BEEERETHREHEB12EBA
NEREZENRR T EERILEEEES
MEZHEENEER ZEaEREAFER
B o EIEI N B BRI ABEEBNER-
ZEEBITEE_NE—A—HRZ2BBH
HEEHBENLEENERRAFRER
Mo lRE RN _ S _TEBIINERARR
BEREZE__FE:] R2ZIFR - AEEBR]
FEFLZEBINTEURREEERRZ
BEEBREERET ERVS IS BEzSE
EBIHAEBUEREPETAEATLE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting
the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2022

2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group'’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures
is included as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and derivative financial
instruments at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
properties under development, contract assets, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vii)

(viil

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.25% to 18%
Plant and machinery 4.5% to 30%
Vehicles 9% to 30%
Office equipment and others 18% to 30%
Leasehold improvements 9% to 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned
property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held
as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.

For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

]42 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022

REYIE (8

HREMEESERYEAEFE ANER
REHZEVMEZ A TERGIFARAES
SAREZMERE -HAERLEBZERY
ENEAREVE AXEENBRYER
RIE T2 BB T sk 8 WU AT B ) PR it 2 B
RRZEMEARK UMK FERAEEE
ZHERBE ERREE IR BRBZ
EMEAR BEERERREAD L MZEY
(RzZAZREEERATEZBZERNESR
BIBELEXEBERREURITE ) PR
BEREREMARK-

REEREYENEENS  WEEZAN
ATEREENEEEZ ZEERIERRN
Rz o

B EE @ERIMN

185 e B8 By S T2 B B X #) 2 BESD B 4R A A 5t
B XBAHPHRBETLEENMET Z
BERKRBEAMNATE - BELEENA®E
RERRTLEAERIER - EARAER
FHNETLEEERENEANKEEEHN
FEsE WEBPFRBETRETLEEYIEER
ERETHEN G RARUEAFHNE
WEENBEMBRBELEELREIYH
FEERFERS -

AmROUEAFHNETLEESFTFEERH
EREEEBURNFERENS ZEET
BEETATURE - ERFRIBRENETL
BENFERAFHARSEETG LEEE
REAERFEMANTEEEEETR -HTH
AISe RIZAIMEEER A EAFEHANTME
ICHERFERABERNAERESR-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Technical know-how

Acquired technical know-how of manufacturing processes
is shown at historical cost. Acquired technical know-how is
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the know-
how and is amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 10 years.

Sewage pipe usage right

Acquired sewage pipe usage right is shown at historical cost and
is capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire the usage
right. The costs are amortised on the straight-line basis over the
contractual lives of 20 years.

Brand

Brand acquired as part of business combinations is valued at
fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Brand
is considered as the main attribute to the revenue and future
growth of the Group’s RMAA Service in Hong Kong, and thus is
recognised as an intangible asset with indefinite useful life and
tested for impairment annually.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

40 to 50 years
2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. The Group’s lease liabilities are included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are
accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or
loss.

]48 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022

RERHMhEREE (@)

%ﬂzgﬁn@& n'lLE (ngﬁ)

TREENFMEERBERHNERRZA B
AEFAEBENHEZEEZA) BR-E
RBERNHERRET —RBERATIHE
PIRINAEABREENTRMEEREN

THEENRESERFETIOEME !

AR BN EMEE (BF LA

RBHERNAGFENEREEEREABER
REFE UHERHETE EEERIR
B EFTSURER > W R EB RN R & PR

=]
o ©

A FEAABMDENANHEE (EF
=)

MIBRAFEFAEMEEBRANEHEREM
= AB WA SNEE G ROR E R RSB O
B RPED LIZEZEHENEAAENE
MEERBDNARINER -HBQATFELEHRN
Hth 2 E A PR AR LR REME
HWRARERNRFRAFEZSHREHRTA
Bmke



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which include
asset management debt investment are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 60
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TEGBEREE (B)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EHMEERE @
General approach (Continued) —iE (48)
Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive BAFEFAEMEZEARARSRE E1GE#
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to HMAETHERKREE—RAZTREE
impairment under the general approach and they are classified CRE BRERBIEAENE ZEITRIE
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for ERENEEN ENI=EHEEEBYE
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified ABLUT B S0 SCPRrt o

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 = Financial instruments for which credit risk FE1 — EMIENEERRBVGRER
has not increased significantly since initial BT RBEEEMBEGERER
recognition and for which the loss allowance ZEM2ELRIAEERBENE
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month BT =
ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has FE2 — EMIENEERRBVGRER
increased significantly since initial recognition BEAEEN BUEEERENS
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets MEEEHBEBEEAERRZSZERNSZ
and for which the loss allowance is measured at HATERRE BB ENEEETE

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the FE8 — REREEPAACEERBNENEE
reporting date (but that are not purchased or (BUIEEATREEERE) -
originated credit-impaired) and for which the BEGERZRERZRNZHER
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal EEBIENEEEFE

to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach B1EE

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain HRUAEIEARERSHNE S EWRRIE
a significant financing component or when the Group applies RENEE REAEEERATAEEARM
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant EROTENSERETE R LR  XEHER
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach AT ETEREERE -RBEHE &
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group THEEMEERBNEL RMREIRE
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a BRI EAERCEESBREBEREE-
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. FEBEREBEEEBAEEEBLR B
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on R AR A KREIR IR R E AR
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking MAXREHBE HREEERKRIE AEH
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For BRERM LB RIEEREESEN/EE
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to HEEAHEETEEK

adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, derivative financial instruments, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statements of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and
buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of work
in progress and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amount of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

@

®)

(©

@

Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the industrial products.

Processing services

Revenue from the provision of processing services is
recognised at the point in time when the control of relevant
goods is transferred or services are rendered to the
customer.

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Provision of property management services

In respect of property management services, the Group’s
property management fee is charged on a lump sum basis.
The Group acts as the principal and is primarily responsible
for providing the property management services to the
property owners. Accordingly, the Group recognises
property management fee received or receivable from
property owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of services. Revenue from the
provision of property management services is recognised
when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset
is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services in
exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 35 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No contributions have
been forfeited during the year ended 31 December 2022. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the MPF Scheme in future years
(2021: nil).

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Company and overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
revenue from construction contracting and the related businesses
amounting to RMB16,500,000 (2021: RMB64,321,000). The
Group has recognised revenue from the provision of construction
services over time, using an input method to measure the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of
the construction services. This involves the use of management
judgements and estimation uncertainty, including estimating the
progress towards completion of the services, scope of deliveries
and services required, total contract costs incurred and forecasts
in relation to costs to complete and profit margin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (Continued)
Change in use of properties

The Group shall transfer a property to, or from, an investment
property when, and only when, there is a change in use. A change
in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of an investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. Judgement is involved in determining the
occurrence of a change in use of the property and the Group
has developed criteria in making that judgement, for example,
any inception of an operating lease arrangement with an external
third party, any resource to hold and manage the investment
property, legal permissible of the change, commencement of the
further development (if any), in accordance with the facts and
circumstances. Judgement is made on an individual unit basis
to determine whether there is a change in use of the units in a
property.

If the Group changes the use of a property in future, the accounting
treatment of the relevant property may be changed, with a
corresponding impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Group.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

3.

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Measurement of progress towards complete satisfaction
of performance obligation

The Group recognises contract revenue and relevant direct
costs according to management’s estimation of the progress
and outcome of a project. Estimated revenue is determined
in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts
or, in the case of variation orders, based on contract terms or
other forms of agreements. Estimated direct costs, which mainly
comprise direct labour cost, subcontracting charges and costs
of materials, are variable and estimated by the directors of the
Company according to the amount of direct labour, subcontracting
charges and costs of materials incurred from time to time based
on quotations provided by the major subcontractors/suppliers/
vendors involved and the experience of the directors of the
Company. Notwithstanding that the directors of the Company
frequently review and revise the estimates of both the estimated
revenue and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in
estimates or the actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts
of contract assets/contract liabilities with the corresponding
adjustments to future revenue and/or direct costs.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns by geographical region, customer type
and rating.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets (Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
22 and note 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

Provision for expected credit losses on loan receivables

The Group calculates ECLs for loan receivables and amount due
from the Group’s joint ventures by considering the probability of
default and the loss given default. The probability of default is
based on average cumulative issuer-weighted global default rates
and the loss given default based on average debt recovery rates
issued by Moody’s Investors Service. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting inputs to the ECLs
calculations, based on the credit rating of the debtor which is
accessed by the Group using Moody’s Rating Methodology.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

3.

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value based on the appraised
market value provided by independent professional valuers. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might differ from actual results. In making
the estimation, the Group considers information from current
rental prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of the year.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value of the completed investment properties include those related
to estimated rental values with reference to the current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and condition,
and discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of investment
properties was RMB809,600,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB674,660,000). Further details, including the key assumptions
used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given
in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has four (one of the
segments was disposed of in 2022) reportable operating segments
as follows:

— Processing: Dyeing and processing of differentiated
polyester filament fabric

— Property Investment and development of properties

investment:

— RMAA Service: Provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and
improvement works, renovation and decoration
works (disposed of in 2022)

— Environmental  Consultancy services and sale of machineries

water project  related to environmental protection, including
operation: operation and maintenance services

The operating segment of RMAA Service was disposed of
and discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Information about the discontinued segment is disclosed in note
11 to the financial statements.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, Investment income, fair value gains/losses
from the financial instruments as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude corporate cash, deferred tax assets,
tax recoverable and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate accruals, payroll payable,
deferred tax liabilities, income tax payable and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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B HMERRMGE

31 December 2022

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H

;o =&\ ==
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEEE ()
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments KE D ER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RELE BRIEEH
Environmental
water project Properties RMAA
Processing operation investment Sub-total Service Total
RIRkH
mIT EEEE MERE gt RMAARR @i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEBTR AEBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_ER__F+-A=+-H
LtEE
Segment revenue (note 5) Sl (i5E5)
Sales to external customers HETIRER 183,068 - 32,946 216,014 16,500 232,514
Revenue Wis 216,014 232,514
Segment results DHEE 19,831 (6,059) (69,006) (55,234) 14,105 (41,129)
Reconcilations: ik
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AEIRAMEKNERES (6,351)
Interest income FIEKA 13,948
Investment income BERA 385
Finance costs MERE (15,002)
Loss before tax BRRAIESE (48,149)
Segment assets SHEE 514,945 135,069 906,319 1,556,333 1,556,333
Reconcilations: e
Elimination of intersegment receivables EiE D BEERFIE (197,114) (197,114)
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR REMKIEEE 91,241 91,241
Total assets mEE 1,450,460 1,450,460
Segment liabilities AHaR 116,390 79,161 322,845 518,396 518,396
Reconcilitions: R
Elimination of intersegment payables D BEERTIE (197,114) (197,114)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties AEREMENEEE 24,636 24,636
Total liabilities ek 345,918 345,918
Other segment information Hit &R
Share of losses of a joint venture NMEEELEEE - 1,141 - 1,141 - 1,14
Depreciation and amortization WEREH 6,123 1,146 2,268 9,537 109 9,646
Impairment of trade receivables, contract assets i BARNBEREME
and other receivables, net e 2] - (192) - (192 433 24
Investments in a joint venture R LENKRE - 2,337 - 2,337 - 2,337
Capital expenditure* BRHEY 4,320 2,437 22,131 28,888 - 28,888

*

equipment.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
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S HMBERRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"F=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RBEDEEE (8)
(CONTINUED)

Operating segments (Continued) KEDE ()

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RELE BRIEEH
Environmental
water project Properties RMAA
Processing operation investment Sub-total Service Total
RIRkH
mIT EEEE MERE gt RMAARR @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AEBTR AEBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRT
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ--F+ZA=1—H
(Re-presented) IHEE (RE7F)
Segment revenue (note 5) SE kR (f5E5)
Sales to external customers HEFHIREER 200,338 - 5,844 206,182 64,321 270,503
Revenue Wis 206,182 270,508
Segment resuits HEEE 43217 (5.213) (105,599) (67,595 (164,686) (232,281)
Reconcilations: B
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AEIRAMEKNERES (23,928)
Interest income FIEKA 14,805
Investment income RERA 4,504
Finance costs MEME (7,242)
Loss before tax bRRATER (244,142)
Segment assets SHEE 479,057 142,175 992,929 1,614,161 35,685 1,649,846
Reconcilations: e
Elimination of intersegment receivables EiE D BEERFIE (167,581)
Corporate and other unallocated assets AERAMKNEEE 72,321
Total assets wEE 1,554,586
Segment liabilities AHER 106,513 81,889 323,345 511,747 21,320 533,067
Reconciliations: #R
Elimination of intersegment payables D BEERTIE (167,581)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties ARREMENEER 24,017
Total liabilities ek 389,503
Other segment information Hit &R
Share of losses of a joint venture HMERELESE - (122) - (122) - (122)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 6,277 3 399 6,679 220 6,899
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets B R EMER EER(E = - - - 151,803 151,803
Impairment of trade receivables, contract assets ~ EZEMFIE AN EE R EME
and other receivables, net BB ERE - 482 - 482 771 1,253
Investments in a joint venture R—EEELENKE = 3,478 - 3478 - 3,478
Capital expenditure’ BEREY 4411 78,280 59,547 142238 25 142,263

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment and investment properties and prepayment for
property, plant equipment and leasehold land.

BABMSOEREYE BERSENRE
BYLRYE BERSEURAE L1
f#E -
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEEE ()
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued) KEDE ()
Information about a major customer ARETEERZEN
Revenue from continuing operations of approximately REFELESEZFHIWALNARTES7,546,000
RMB37,546,000 (2021: RMB26,990,000) was derived from sales 7T (TEZ—%F  AR26,990,0007T) &1L
by the processing segment to a single customer. DEE—EBERZHE
Geographical information hIBE
(@)  Revenue from external customers (@ FKEIIEESZKA
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
HERE BAILEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—ECCE BT —ECCE “ET-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEETR AREFT AEETR AREBFT
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(f=E=51) (=5
Hong Kong &5 - - 16,500 64,321
Mainland China Py 178,468 179,192 - -
Others Hith 37,546 26,990 = =
216,014 206,182 16,500 64,321
The revenue information above is based on the locations of FHIEABR T IRIEREEFREMET] o

the customers.

()  Non-current assets (b) FETEEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
HERE BERIEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
—ECCE ETfF —ECCE “ET-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(iz&751) (= &751)
Hong Kong &5 - - - 905
Mainland China HE A 1,043,701 893,641 - -
1,043,701 893,641 - 905
The non-current asset information above is based on the LERSHEEENUBEEMEAE
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets. £, BAEEEIEREEE -
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Etg A B &=

An analysis of revenue from continuing operations is as follows: REFESEEBNWIRADITAOT !
2022 2021
—E-C —E"—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEF T
(Re-presented)
(#EE3))
Revenue from contracts with customers HMERFEIEHZ WA 185,252 200,338
Revenue from other sources HAW AR
Gross rental income from investment KREHEBENREYE
properties under operating leases HHEEWA 30,762 5,844
216,014 206,182
Revenue from contracts with customers BERFRTIEHZIA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) SIBAEF
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
(Re-presented)
(= E3))
Types of goods or services EmERFEEE
Processing T 183,068 200,338
Provision of property management R ESERE
services 2,184 -
Total revenue from contracts with BRI A2 WA LELE
customers 185,252 200,338
Geographical markets &G
Mainland China R E Py i 147,706 173,348
Others Hith 37,546 26,990
Total revenue from contracts with MEREI a2 W ALLEE
customers 185,252 200,338
Timing of revenue recognition LT A e 220 B il
Goods or services transferred at RE—RFERER 2 BRI RS
a point in time 183,068 200,338
Services transferred over time e B R e A2 R 75 2,184 =
Total revenue from contracts with BRAFEI a2 WA LREE
customers 185,252 200,338

xEE e aERAR c022Em 11D
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(CONTINUED)

WE A~ AUt A Bz (48)

Revenue from contracts with customers BERFETEHNZIRA (48)

(Continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue from
continuing recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

(a)

DERAER ()

TREII KRS AR ERE DAY A
BEHMOANBERBEEERBNEE
PRESDHI SN BENNm 2 88

2022 2021
—EH =2 —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBF T
(Re-presented)
(#E7)
Revenue recognised that was included BRI ARSI S 49
in contract liabilities at the beginning BENKE -
of the reporting period:
Processing T 59 -
(b) Performance obligations (b) EHEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Processing

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
processed products and payment is generally due within 30
to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required.

Provision of property management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment in advance is normally required.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

WA~ Bt A R st (%)
BERIEHNZIA (&)
(b) EHALE )

R+ZA=+—BoEEFGRENSE
CREMREBORER IRZERE

as at 31 December are as follows: RN
2022 2021
—E - s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
(Re-presented)
(&= 7)
Amounts expected to be recognised as  TEHAHG FESE A& UK Z AY
revenue: Era
Within one year —FER 229 59

All the amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration which
is constrained.

FIENREHRTRASENRZEBRE
REITEEIN —F B AW - L3R
RENTRTFSEZRERTEAE-
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& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued) (b)

An analysis of other income and gains from continuing

BRIEE (B)

WE A~ AUt A Bz (48)

BERMIGHNZWA (&)

FREE S R B E MU A K et 2 470

operations is as follows: T
2022 2021
—E== TEC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARHEFIT
(Re-presented)
(&= 7)
Other income and gains, net HURA K U a5 %8
Bank and other interest income IRITREMF B WA 13,948 14,805
Investment income KEIWA 385 4,504
Share of losses of a joint venture DME—REErESR (1,141) (122)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial BAFEFABENESREE
assets at fair value through profit or HAFERZ, (E518)
loss 109 (18,697)
Fair value changes on derivative financial {T4£&/ TEZ AFEESH
instruments 932 (654)
Gross rental income from plants MBS ALLEE 772 772
Government grants BFEE) 1,300 657
Foreign exchange differences, net PERERE TR 382 (205)
Others Hith 1,563 497
18,250 1,657
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRIRAIESIE
The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at NEBFELEEBBFRABBLINR G
after charging/(crediting): A) U T EIEERE
2022 2021
—FC —ET—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5F ARETT ARFT
(Re-presented)
(#LE7)
Cost of services provided BIRHARFE A B A& 147,603 132,936
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERREITE
equipment* 8,169 5,276

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 1,167 1,053

Amortisation of other intangible assets* HE & FE# 5~ 18 201 350

Lease payments not included in the WA ABEEBTEZ 16(c)

measurement of lease liabilities GEN=—ENE 190 351
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S M B 1,350 1,350
Employee benefit expense (including BE/AMEX (BEEEK

directors’ and chief executive’s BETEA BB~

remuneration) **:

Wages and salaries™ TEKHE 28,912 31,800

Pension scheme contributions ** BT EHEIH R 4,787 5,278

Foreign exchange differences, net PE R ERRIFER (382) 205

Impairment of due from related parties  F& Ui B B 75 =R IE I8 (B (192) 482

Impairment/(reversal) of loan FEUERURE, (R

receivables 23(b) 1,728 (436)

Impairment of other receivables Hh e W IE R E 23(a) 488 =

Research and development costs [N 4,599 5,016

Fair value (gains)/losses, net: NEE WH) EEEE

Fair value changes on derivative MEESMIAZATE

financial instruments =F9) (932) 654
Financial assets at fair value through 32 A F{Est ABZH
profit or loss THEE (109) 18,697

Bank and other interest income SRIT R EAMF) WA (13,948) (14,805)

Investment income KEWA (385) (4,504)

Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE BEKREREIER

plant and equipment, net Z WS EE (24) ©)

* Part of the depreciation, amortisation of other intangible assets * AEEHEMBFEENERBHEULES
and employee benefit expense for the year are included in “Cost BHHEIN—HBLESFAEGHER REM
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 2EBRARABINEE A ©
comprehensive income.

**  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by = BEaHAER (FAET) RERBHR
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of KEZERWBER - R-_E-__F+_H
contributions. At 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited —+—H xEEBESLWERTER
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension RO RKFEENRRETEIER (CE—

schemes in future years (2021: Nil). F i)
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RBEREF
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as BFECEEBERMEREAN DU T -
follows:

2022 2021
—E-= s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
(Re-presented)
(f=E3))
Interest on bank loans RITERHE 14,891 12,885
Interest on deposits payable EEEHE 74 15
Interest on lease liabilities GEN=S=N =S 25 63
Total interest expense MR BB 14,990 12,963
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI B - (5,751)
14,990 7,212

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EFERESITHAEXM

REMUNERATION
Directors and chief executives’ remuneration for the year, disclosed EERESTHAERERNFBIEER L™
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the A FECRBMEBGINEE383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) A (f)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BRAAE HBESNAER) RO E25#HE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, BUWT
is as follows:
2022 2021
—EHF s —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
Fees ok 642 606
Other emoluments: HNE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2 AREYEF 1,290 1,327
Performance related bonuses EMAERATEAT 704 1,590
Pension scheme contributions BRRESETEIHRR 180 118
2,816 3,641
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERREBREITHAELRIN (B
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BILIERITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRABIERITESZONEEN
the year were as follows: IR
2022 2021
ZEICZHE BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®¥T T ARTT
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFELE - 21
Mr. Wong Wai Ling BEBLT 112 108
Mr. Wang Huaping FEFLLE 86 83
Mr. He Chengying® Bt 86 62
284 274
There were no other emoluments payable to the FERUEENBILIIENTEEZHM
independent non-executive directors during the year (2021: e (CEZ—F:8) e
Nil).
(1) Mr. Shiping James Wang resigned on 1 April 2021. 1) FHEFEEER-_E-_—FHYE—H
BT
(2)  Mr. He Chengying was appointed on 1 April 2021. @) Eziﬁ%ﬁiﬁ’:‘: T —FMNA—H
R
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEREEITHAEHRIN (B
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
2022 T
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Name of directors Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
£ =40 EWER BAEHE
E5it4 g BMERN 4 3 EH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEBTR  ARETR ARETR  AREBTR  ARETR

Executive directors; BITES!
Mr. Li Cheng THEE 86 813 420 52 1,31
Mr. Li Conghua FTRERE 86 - - - 86
Mr. Ma Qinghai BEELE 86 301 144 106 637
Mr. Xu Wensheng BXBLE 100 176 140 22 438
358 1,290 704 180 2,532
2021 B —F
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Name of directors Fees in kind bonuses contrioutions Total
Eii =) EuEE  RheHE
EEiY ik BYRR s ®3 1zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETT  ARETr  ARBTR  ARETR
Executive directors: RTES!
Mr. Li Cheng THLE 83 846 420 52 1,401
Mr. Li Conghua THRERE 83 - - - 83
Mr. Ma Qinghai EEERLE 83 301 750 52 1,186
Mr. Xu Wensheng X RE 83 180 420 14 697
332 1,327 1,590 118 3,367
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FROUEREAAEEREXRNERET
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. AN Z2 Bk o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included 2
executive directors (2021: 3 executive directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining 3 (2021: 2) highest paid

employees are as follows:

B HMERRMGE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

A%

=Eif(ES

EFR Lt EeHNEESEMLATES
(CBZ—F ZR2WTEF) > RENFHH
HBHENEXWES HF I =% (CBZ—F:
W) RE N ES R ERBFEFBNT -

2022 2021

—ECHF _E 5

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARH¥FT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2R EYEF 1,478 958
Performance related bonuses BEXARRETEAL 485 456
Pension scheme contributions BIAREEHEIHR 167 150
2,130 1,564

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

HMAF TIHEFFEZTNRSFHMES A

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: o
2022 2021
—E-C TEI—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00078 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 75 £ 2,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 2,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$4,500,000 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,00078 7T £ 5,000,00078 7T = -
3 2
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

10.

INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are
subject to profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Malaysia is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 24% (2021: 24%). No provision for taxation
in Malaysia has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Malaysia for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Cambodia is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 20% (2021: 20%). No provision for taxation
in Cambodia has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Cambodia for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Myanmar is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 25% (2021: 25%). No provision for taxation
in Myanmar has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Myanmar for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC having
operations only in Mainland China are subject to the PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in their
PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with relevant PRC
income tax laws. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduced
a wide range of changes which include, but are not limited to,
the unification of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and
foreign-invested enterprises at 25%.
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RIE> AR —RBIK B AR ZA
BATEMMBEFSRMEFIENSE - Z
MiBATE%£2,000,00087x (T2 - —4F !
2,000,000/ 7t) M AER IR EF]1%8.25% (Z &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and with
the approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Yongsheng Dyeing, qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise, is entitled to the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% for three years from 2021 to 2023.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on the dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore
liable to 5% withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of their earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totaled approximately RMB96,720,000 at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB96,720,000). In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 are:

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

10. FR1SR (@)

RIFEFEEREEZRERERURKEE TR
RAfE > REBEP—RENE R SN EHE
ERBABERATDEGESH A MR
X OBRNR B FEZETET=F-FH
BEB15%NEBLEMIRE.

RIEPEEEMERE EPREMRILNIE
TEBBIIGEEERNEEBHBNI0%TE
iR -BRERAEH_EENEFE—HB—HELE
HoBEAR_ZEELFE+ZA=1+—HEWN
B oMPEEEIREENTERETE
MEGL A EBEERENTEINRE ARE
BRMBOEENZEETERIINNEA
BAEZEENFE—FB —HEBRNNEBFFTIK
EHREBASRBEINM - R T 2F+Z
B=+—H EBEERBEGHAHEIEARN
FRABERMKEBABRENGRERES
# A NR1596,720,0007t (ZE-_—F: AR
#96,720,0007T) cEEFR A > ZEWB LA
R REREHFEFEDIRZERF]

BE_ZE__HErRE_—F+°A=+—
HIEFE FASIMASHNIEMEMMBOWT !

2022 2021
—=-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Current tax BNAERTRIE 2,678 8,435
Deferred tax (note 33) RIEFR I8 (f5E33) 7,206 (5,282)
Total tax charge for the year from continuing K EFENRIBL H
operations 4BzE 9,884 3,153
Total tax credit for the year from a discontinued #8 IF A& 275 F NI IES H
operation 4E%E (71) 972)
9,813 2,181
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax
expense at the effective income tax rate, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate

10. FR1SR (@)

BRERBRERZHHE A ZMAAERE
& EERE T EORR AN BRI
MAXRIRBEASREFABEHNABRMAX
HERBARE BAEREK) BEHRREY
BREO

are as follows:

2022 2021
—E_C E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
Loss before tax from continuing operations B E XK IR AT E (62,242) (79,426)
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued RIS BRI ATRF]
operation (E518) 14,093 (164,716)
Loss before tax BRA% A0S 18 (48,149) (244,142
Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% %75 E IR F25% 5T E IR I8 (12,037) (61,036)
Lower tax rates enacted by local authority EHREFENRERE (2,668) 14,264
Effect of preferential enterprise income tax rate  BE P EFFEMENFLE (3,216) (3,702)
Income not subject to tax BBEHBITA (16) an
Expenses not deductible for tax ENGIE Y552 23,194 50,463
Tax losses and temporary differences not RN E R R ERE
recognised 1,801 1,493
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B ERRERIESE - @)
Derecognition of deferred tax assets for the BUHMERR E—FERIRIERIE
previous year BE 2,711 681
Recognition of deferred tax assets for the BRI —FENRIEREBEEE
previous year - (629)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the BAEBETENB AT 272
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC TKEME% T EIEIR Z &
subsidiaries 1,279 1,418
Additional deduction of research and BfF 25 AR AR BY BB SN0 R
development cost (690) (752)
Lump-sum pre-tax deduction for equipment R & & 88 B —XEIRATIIR
and appliances (545) =
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAEBRBREMIFENRIE
X H 9,813 2,181
Tax charge from continuing operations at the ~ FYAEN H RIS @S 2SR IE
effective rate X H 9,884 3,153
Tax charge from a discontinued operation at ~ FAAE A HIAR LS EERIE
the effective rate T (71) (972)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 21 June 2022, the Company announced the decision to
dispose of the entire interests in Summer Power International Inc.
(“Summer Power”) and its sole subsidiary, Widely Construction &
Engineering Limited (collectively referred to as “Summer Power
Group”). Summer Power Group were engaged in the provision of

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

11, $RIEEE R

RIEZZ—FERXBZ+—H AR EMAR
EHEEHEABRERAT ((Ef)) REKE—
MBATSEMNERIRERAR HKEBATE
NER)) 2PRE -BEHEBUWEREEH
E-ﬁ\E&L&HDLIEHEﬁ (TRMAABRFS ) °

le EFBERNEZLERBRIRFEAKIEE
Service”). The Group has decided to cease its RMAA Service BEEEDE  AEECSRTEL EERMAARR
because it plans to focus its resources on its dyeing services and BoHEEHEREN S __FtHARMe
environmental water project operation segments. The disposal of ENEERSBEARIEKE TR

Summer Power Group had been completed in July 2022. With

Summer Power Group were classified as a discontinued operation.

renovation, maintenance, alteration and addition services (“RMAA

ENEBRFRNEEZWMT

The results of the Summer Power Group for the year are presented

below:
2022 2021
—E-= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFT
Revenue Wi 16,500 64,321
Expenses Bz (17,988) (77,204)
Finance costs BE A (12) (30)
Impairment losses on goodwill and intangible ~ F& K EF & EREEIE
assets - (151,803)
Loss from the discontinued operation RIEREETEEE (1,500) (164,716)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued operation HE AR IFASE2EFE >~ I 15,593 =
Income tax Frigin 71 972
Profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued 4% IE £ & 25 ERER] (B518)
operation 14,164 (163,744)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11, RIS T (B)
(CONTINUED)
The assets and liabilities of the Summer Power and its sole ENREM—WBARNEEBRRNEER
subsidiary at the disposal date were as follows: BEHINUWT :
2022
—EF-C
RMB’000
AR®ETFT
Net assets disposals of: BHEBESE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 74
Right-of-use assets EREEE 108
Other intangible assets HihmpEE 288
Deferred tax assets IRIETRIBE B 2,626
Cash and cash equivalents HERRSEEY 3,719
Trade receivables B 5 EWERIE 1,418
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets BRIE EthERFUEREMEE 1,714
Contract assets HBHEE 15,236
Tax recoverable AW EIRIE 163
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHEIRIT R HMER (428)
Trade payables B BN (10,471)
Other payables and accruals Hih g mRIB R ET A (1,617)
12,830
Exchange fluctuation reserve BB R BN 1,081
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR Z W 15,593
29,504
Satisfied by: LUTRH AR AT :
Cash bz 29,504

]88 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022



11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HMBERRMEE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

1. RIEEEER (B

(CONTINUED)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in ERAHE—RBNBAAZREARESEEY
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: MAFEDITAOT -
2022
—EF-C
RMB’000
AR®ETFT
Cash consideration RERE 29,504
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHERERIBITLHER (3,719)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BERHENBARZREKRIREEEY
disposal of subsidiaries TRAERE 25,785

The net cash flows incurred by Summer Power and its sole

BENRHEBE—NBEARELENRERE FHE

subsidiary are as follows: W
2022 2021
= —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Operating activities KEEE 651 (432)
Financing activities MEEE (112) (3,252)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WeERA () 348 539 (3,684)

Earnings per share: SREF

Basic, from a discontinued operation HEAR CRERILKEER) RMBAE®19cents?  RMBAR(22.4) cents?

Diluted, from a discontinued operation

8 CRERIEKEER) RMBAR¥1.9cents?  RMBAR(22.4) cents?y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11, RIS T (B)
(CONTINUED)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share from the BRIERSER SREARBEERATHIRE
discontinued operation is based on: THRIEHE
2022 2021
—E_C s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AER¥TT
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders of the — Zs/A B IR ERFE(G 48 LA 275
Company from the discontinued operation BEH], (F518) 14,164 (163,744)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ B st EERERBFNER
in issue during the year used in the basic BETEERMNEFEHH
earnings per share calculation (note 13) (MF5E13) 718,763,158 732,428,523
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI st E &R E R T8
used in the diluted earnings per share ZBRINEFEH (H:E13)
calculation (note 13) 718,763,158 732,428,523
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
2022 2021
== =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Interim — nil (2021: HK$0.01 (equivalent to FE -SREERS
RMBO0.0083)) per ordinary share (CTEZ—F 0018
(HHER AR ¥0.00837T)) - 6,083
Proposed final - nil (2021: nil) BRI -SREERS
per ordinary share (CE 515 - _
- 6,083

e N =

EFERATERRNBE_Z_"FKR_
T —F+_RB=+t—HLEEENEMAKXA
BRR -

The Board of directors has resolved not to propose any final
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 718,763,158
(2021: 732,428,523) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As the exercise
prices of the share options were higher than the average market
price of the shares for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group incurred losses for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, the potential ordinary shares were not included in the
calculation of diluted loss per share, as their inclusion would have
an anti-dilutive effect. Accordingly, diluted loss per share amounts
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are the same as
basic loss per share amounts of the respective years.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

13. ZRBRRELEREE

EREAGESBNIEALNTIREELE
NEELKENEETZTERNMETEH
718,763,1580% (20214 : 732,428,523%) &t
%O

BREFERDEEBABHETENEER
BMmETFHBURRMBEETHEEER
CESRMARE HRBE_FT__F+=
B=+—HLEFEBRENTEESNRMD
BEHHE Ukt EBRBE_T -
TEC—F+ZRA=+—HLEEEHE
BiE BTEERIES ASREEREDN
SAEREDHRESFARBERBEFER-
Hit - @E"T-"FR"T"—F+°A1
S+ HALFESREEHERTERAERSE
ESREABETERES-

BREAREERENNNARTER !

2022 2021
- TEC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT
Earnings: &BF
Loss attributable to shareholders of KA REREEEE
the Company — basic and diluted — BRI
From continuing operations REFFEREER (69,342) (81,563)
From a discontinued operation KBRS EF 14,164 (163,744)
(55,178) (245,307)
Number of shares
KR EE
2022 2021
== =&
Shares: B&17 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ #tet EEKRE AR # EREF]
for basic and diluted earnings per share a2 S @RMNETI9H
calculation 718,763,158 732,428,523
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. MZE - -BE k& HE

Office
Plant and equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery Vehicles and others  improvements in progress Total
WAERER
BF  BEEREH HE Hifr HERE ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBFr ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR AR®TR
At 1 January 2022, net of RIZZZ%—-F-8’

accumulated depreciation BHREHE 60,279 26,954 1,938 2,958 506 24,180 116,815
Additions RE 59,400 4115 - 283 202 12,060 76,060
Depreciation provided during the year £ REHREITE (4,362) (3,303) (411) (109) @ - (8,188)
Exchange realignment ERBE - - - 2 11 - 13
Disposals HE - (368) - - - - (368)
Disposal of subsidlaries HERBAR - - ) (55) (10) - (74)
Transfer a5 28,434 - - - - (28,434) =
At 31 December 2022, net of e |

accumulated depreciation =+—H BNMBRTE 143,751 27,398 1,518 3,079 706 7,806 184,258
At 31 December 2022: ;2 |

=+-B:

Cost [k 172,397 75,152 3,721 5,614 3,255 7,806 267,951

Accumulated depreciation RitE (28,646) (47,754) (2,209) (2,535) (2,549) - (83,693)

Net carrying amount REFE 143,751 27,308 1,518 3,079 706 7,806 184,258
At 1 January 2021, net of =R =

accumulated depreciation BHRRHE 26,890 27,687 197 903 794 26,055 82,526
Additions RE - 2,539 1,793 2,239 - 8,938 15,509
Transfer from investment properties BB EME (H315)

(note 15) - - - - - 24,180 24,180
Depreciation provided during the year ~ &R zHEAITE (1,604) (8,192 (52) (187) (283) - (5,318)
Exchange realignment ERBE - - - 3 (5) - @
Disposals HE - (80) - - - - (80)
Transfer o2 34,993 - - - - (34,993) -
At 31 December 2021, net of RISZ—-%+ZRH

accumulated depreciation =+-B ENRRANE 60,279 26,954 1,938 2,958 506 24,180 116,815
At 31 December 2021: RIZZ—4+ZH

=+-R:

Cost MA 84,563 71,405 3,736 5,384 3,052 24,180 192,320

Accumulated depreciation RitinE (24,284) (44,451) (1,798) (2,426) (2,546) - (75,505)

Net carrying amount REFE 60,279 26,954 1,938 2,958 506 24,180 116,815

N_E - _F+_B=+—H ' REFELD
AARKE7,607,000c (ZE-_—F : AR
24,180,0007T) WETHEETIES FIEH XU
EAEEERERRITEE (F:31) °

At 31 December 2022, certain of the construction in progress
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB7,697,000
(2021: RMB24,180,000) was pledged to secure long-term bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).

R_E__F+_B=+—H > A&EBET
EBENAANRES4,089,0007T (ZB - —4F !
AR ¥54,460,00070) WETEFEFIKTF
MEAEEEREHERREPIRITEES (ME
31) °

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB84,089,000 (2021:
RMB54,460,000) were pledged to secure short-term and long-
term bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).

]92 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022



15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIAFEHRRMEE
B HF+"H=+—H

31 December 2022

15. REYE

Under
construction Completed Total
B BT #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 A ZE - —F—FB—HMNEREE 719,323 36,000 755,323
Additions NE 48,168 — 48,168
Transferred to investment properties BRECB T REYE
completed (767,491) 767,491 -
Fair value changes recognised in profit or ~ FR I8 FERAIA T EEE)
loss - (104,651) (104,651)
Transfer to owner-occupied property EEnTE R - (24,180) (24,180)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 N2 —F+ZA=+—Hk
and 1 January 2022 2 F—F—HNKRAEE - 674,660 674,660
Transfer from properties held for sale EBEEFEHENYE (F:E21)
(note 21) - 155,271 155,271
Fair value changes recognised in profit or ~ F 8% FESIRA FEEF)
loss - (20,331) (20,331)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 RZE__HF+"B=+—HH
ERmEE - 809,600 809,600

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Hangzhou, the PRC. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on
valuations performed by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Avista”), an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
RMB809,600,000. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s finance manager and the chief
financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
for financial reporting.

The completed investment properties are leased under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 16 to
the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying value of RMB775,600,000 (2021: RMB638,760,000) were
pledged to secure long-term loan facilities granted to the Group
(note 31).

AEBENKEYESEWE R PE N
BEVE - FEBNREYER T
T R=+—HREBIFESERMGER
V@I EAEAERAR (LEE)) RITH
TETELHETE%AEWSOQ 600,0007T © B 3%
ZREETSNH BE - BUMKEREER
HERE - NUMBFRBRETHER  £EH
MBEEEREREVHEEMGERRRGERS
RELEMETS R -

ERIREYERBEEM &> ARE
— ST Ia%zﬁé,ﬂﬁ%i&%%m#%ﬁso

A — T

AR+ A=t+—H AEBEKEA
BEA ANRKET75,600,000 T (CE-—F: AR
#%638,760,0007T) HIEEY X B FIKIF » LR
AEFEERERERRME (IsE31) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties:

15. REWE (@)

AT R

TERAPEEEREMENRATEFERBR:

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2022 using

FERUTHALENR
—®oE+ZAS+-BNATEHE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HiEREmS AHRYN  FAHEN

DREE EZBUAYE EZBRAYE

(E—14R) (B4 E=R) Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®Tt AE%®Tn AE¥TR AR%TR

Recurring fair value measurement for: UTRBMEREE A TFEHE
Completed commercial properties AN SRS - - 809,600 809,600
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 using
ERANTEAZENR
S+ A=t+—HWNATEHE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR S ABRREN  FABRZEN
BERE EEWAHE EZBAHE
E—R EZH) E=m st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AREFRT AR%TR ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for: UTEBNEEEATENE !
Completed commercial properties BTEHENE - - 674,660 674,660

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2021: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIAFEHRRMEE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWZE (B
(CONTINUED)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key UTARBEYEGLEBEERANGEERTRESR
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: B A SR AV RE A
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
BT TRIHRMWEER A YIS EE ST 9
2022 2021
—E-C T
Property 1 — Yongsheng Plaza ~ Term and reversionary ~ Term yields 3.8%-5.3% 3.8%-5.3%
MEI—KEKRE method FRAM G =
FHRIERE
Reversionary yields 4.0%-5.5% 4.0%-5.5%
BERUN =
Market rents (RMB/square RMB RMB
meter/month) NL AR
miEE 75-1887C 76-1907¢
AR/ FHK/B)
Property 2 —Zhejiang Private Term and reversionary  Term yields 3.8% 3.5%
Enterprise Development method FHIW R
Building FHARIERRE
YE IR E Reversionary yields 4.0% 4.0%
TEEREAE ERWEE
Market rents (RMB/square 69 73
meter/month)
minEE
AR/ FHK/B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

15.

16.

e N =

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

For completed commercial properties, fair values are generally
derived using the term and reversionary method. This method is
based on the tenancy agreements as at the respective valuation
dates. The rental income derived within the tenancy agreements is
discounted by adopting term yields and the potential reversionary
income is discounted by adopting appropriate reversionary yields
for the period beyond the rental period in the tenancy agreements.
Potential reversionary income and the reversionary yields are
derived from analysis of prevailing market rents and the valuer’s
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation were
determined with reference to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties.

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent per month
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
term yield and the reversionary yield in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leased land and
buildings. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods between 40 and 50
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
of 2 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several
lease contracts with constant lease payments, which are further
discussed below.
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16.

REME (@)

BRTHENENRATE-—REBEFARER
EEL WA EDERBRBGERNEER
EMEH EHEWZHAANEZRARBSE
HE R4 IR - M E W B LN B E
BRAFKBEENERKRERITR - BEE
BRARERWERDBNERNTIHEZH
DU RGEMEERREE ZRFGFH
RESY -HEXRMNENTHEEN2E
BRHYEREMOE LR ENLREER
MEE °

SATBHETHNAELA (TR BRERKE
MERFENOKRE LA (FF) - FHAWEE
RERWZEREBHIRE LA (FF) FER
REVELATERNRETE (EF)

HE
FEBREREEA

AEEMEELMREFEZEEETEMR
Bl - —RNUENRECERPEZMUBEER
ABSHEE T FHHIR40E505F BRI L
HEMBRBEBFEMNR - BFHENA
HBERE-BEME  AEETTHINE
ELREEAEENEEEE- A TEEMR
ENREEGHN REETXE— DM



16. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIAFEHRRMEE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H
16. 1A E (48)

FEBRFREEA (B

(a) REEEE

the movements during the year are as follows: gy
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
&L g et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®EFT ARETFT
As at 1 January 2021 A —E-—F—HF—H 10,431 1,087 11,518
Additions RE S 343 343
Depreciation charge TERS (315) 916) (1,231)
Exchange realignment BRI = 6) ©6)
As at 31 December 2021 and A B2 —F+ZHA=+—HBRK
1 January 2022 2 "F#—F—H 10,116 508 10,624
Additions RE 23,307 731 24,038
Depreciation charge TERX (622) (635) (1,257)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT = (108) (108)
Exchange realignment FE AR - 40 40
As at 31 December 2022 A B _F+-HB=+—H 32,801 536 33,337

The Group’s land use rights are corresponding to the lands
located in Hangzhou and Maanshan of the PRC and the
remaining lease periods were 31 and 38 years respectively

as at 31 December 2022.

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s land use rights
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB3,772,000
(2021: RMB3,894,000) were pledged to secure short-term

bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).

AN 6 B A9 - 0 BB RE S R A R R R A
INAEH LMWL RS- —F+
B=+—H s T HA31F %38
Fo

N B F+"_B=1+—H ' &&EE
IREFEN A ARES, 772,000 (ZF
——&: AR%3,894,0007T) BT L
HEAEE TR LB &SRR
TEE (M5E31) ©
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. fAE (4B)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBEAEBEAN @)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) THEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

FRNHESE (BEBRITRAEME

) RREEREBUT :

2022 2021
== —E_—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HBZKmEAE 569 1,106
New leases WHEE 731 343
Accretion of interest recognised FERERNEIESE
during the year 25 71
Payments INES (654) 911))
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAD (172) =
Exchange realignment (E R sREE 45 (40)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEKEE 544 569
Analysed into: SR iiv=
Current portion BPERER > 380 539
Non-current portion JERNHAER > 164 30

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42
to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (c)
are as follows:

HESRZIHBEIMN S HEHFRE

PisE42FR 4% R o

MAEEREEPESNEEROT

2022 2021

—ECCF TEC—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT

Interest on lease liabilities HEaGZHE 25 71
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEEZINEMY 1,257 1,231
Expense relating to short-term leases BGHATE EARRNRE 190 351
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RiBm PR RI 4R EE 1,472 1,653
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in notes 43(c)
to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain of its completed investment properties
(note 15) and plants to third parties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for completed investment properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 15 years and those for
plants are for terms of 1 year.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

16. A8 (&)

FEBRFREEA (B

(d HEENRSREEENTBHRRME
43(c)PIFFE o

FEEESHEHEA
FEARBCERERFHARETERT
REME (WE15) REEFE=H -BET

REVEZEBRESNTF —FE+LE
mgEzBRAB—F-

FREAEDERINETBRABARE

RMB31,534,000 (2021: RMB6,616,000), details of which are 31,534,00070 (Z & _——4F : AR #¥6,616,000
include in note 5 to the financial statements. 7o) BREE B E N M RERM S o

RIEBEZ &+ -R=+—H A&Fx&H
RBEHEB R Z ARG EEE R WK

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants are as follows: ARIRFAEERIBAOT ¢
2022 2021
—_F BT —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Within one year —FR 37,441 19,160
After one year but within two years —FEU FEREUAR 41,109 24,232
After two years but within three years MEUL LB =FURN 39,371 23,839
After three years but within four years —F U EBEEURN 40,582 21,709
After four years but within five years ME FERFEUR 41,565 22,341
After five years but within six years AEM EBREUA 38,420 22,726
After six years but within seven years NEMEEEFEUA 37,884 22,317
After seven years but within eight years tEM EBNEUR 35,739 21,230
After eight years NEL E 71,051 =
383,162 177,554
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. B

RMB’000
ARBEF T
Cost at 1 January 2021 A B —F—HB—HZHA 99,514
Exchange realignment PE G2 5REE (2,838)

Cost at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 A _E_—F+"A=+—HK
RN_Z__F—FB—HZMK 96,676
Exchange realignment bl 2 S EE 1,580
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT (98,256)
Cost at 31 December 2022 BT TE+ A=+ —HZHAE =
Accumulated impairment at 1 January 2021 B —F—-B—HZERFHRE =
Impairment during the year FNRE (98,064)
Exchange realignment G 1,388

Accumulated impairment at 31 December 2021 and A BT —F+"HA=+—HBK
1 January 2022 N2 TFE-B—-RZRAREE (96,676)
Exchange realignment FE R AR (1,580)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT 98,256

Accumulated impairment at 31 December 2022 A B _F+"A=+—A2
REtBE -

Net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and ATE_—F+"HA=+—HK

31 December 2022 W2 _F#+_A=+—H=Z

RERE -
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17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the following cash-generating unit (CGU) for impairment testing:

° RMAA Service CGU;

Because of the effect of COVID-19, the operating performances
and the growth rate of the RMAA Service CGU were below
expectations which resulted in an operating loss. The Group
recognised an impairment loss of RMB98,064,000 in relation to
the goodwill of the RMAA Service CGU during the year ended 31
December 2021, after that, the net carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to RMAA Service CGU is nil as at 31 December 2021
and 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of the RMAA
Service cash-generating unit has been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 22.0%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the RMAA Service cash-generating unit beyond the five-
year period is 2.5%, which is the same as the long-term average
growth rate of the RMAA Service industry.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
RMAA Service cash-generating unit for 31 December 2021. The
following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Growth rate estimate — Rate is based on common industry
practice.

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

17. B2 (B)

B2 ER R

BREFAHBWBNBEEDLSETUTRS
EEBUMUERENR

. RMAARR 5 IR & 2 4 B A1 ;

B COVID-1982 2 RMAARRFE IR & E £ &8
ANREXFARERTEBENRTER ERLE
BE-REE_T-_—F+-F=+—H1
FEE 2 AEEBRMAARB IR EEBUNE
EEDREEEAR98,064,0005T > L1 »
A CE R T EFE+ A=+ —
B> DEERMAARBREEL BN 2 HER
HFEAZ

RZEZ—F+ZH=+—H RMAARFKIR
EESBEMNIKREIEEERBERAEEE
EE ZAENLTRUEREREH ENA
FHRVBEEAKENRESREEN RS
TMETEARBEZ AIRER22.0% BUEER
FHMU ERMAARBIREELBNIRERE
EREEA2.5% HERMAAREITERITH
R EAEE o

N _E - —F+ -8 =+—HRMAARRFKEIR
TELBEMNFREENSHEERTRSE -8
EEArEREAEBAEENETHERE
ARz S TE/REWMMWT ¢

BREENX-BAREENETREENEXN
BEMFRANEESEREREFEN —FA
FRERMNFHENER EHNBARNNEXE
FRBHANTIZERMAPIE

IR -FIRANMIRERRA IR R
fz Bk ER A4S A BB {11 A 45 E R B o

BRERMGE-EREDER —RITEEMF
Yo
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. HttE\LEE

Technical Sewage pipe
know-how usage right Brand Total
B TyIE BIKRERE i st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREFT AREFT ARBTT
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated R-ZE-"F—F—H>
amortisation EiNkEREHEE - 1,804 275 2,169
Amortisation provided during the year ~ E R 5HRHI S - (201) - (201)
Exchange realignment ERBE - - 13 13
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAR - - (288) (288)
At 31 December 2022, net of R_B__#+-RA=+—H"
accumulated amortisation BNk R - 1,693 - 1,693
At 31 December 2022 R_E__F+_B=+—H
Cost B 6,326 4,190 - 10,516
Accumulated impairment ZEORIE - - - -
Accumulated amortisation Rty (6,326) (2,497) - (8,829
Net carrying amount REFE = 1,693 = 1,693
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated R=F-—F—F—H>
amortisation B R s 150 2,094 54,817 57,061
Amortisation provided during the year R 5HRHI#EH (150) (200) = (350)
Impairment during the year FRRE - - (53,739) (53,739)
Exchange realignment ERREE - - (809) (803)
At 31 December 2021, net of RIZZ-F+ZA=+—H
accumulated amortisation B R = 1,894 275 2,169
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ—F+ZA=+—H
Cost BA 6,326 4,190 53,254 63,770
Accumulated impairment RitAE - - (52,979) (52,979)
Accumulated amortisation R EH (6,326) (2,296) = (8,622)
Net carrying amount REZE - 1,894 275 2,169
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

19. REEEENRE

2022 2021

—EHF E-—5F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR¥FT

Share of net assets TMEEEZFE 2,337 3,478

The Group’s other receivable balance with the joint venture was

disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

FEEBSECENHMBUEHRRERY
BRI 538 0

FEENGEREFBUT

Percentage of

BAt
Particulars Place of
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
FrFE ZE&1T Rk
28 RRiNEE EEME BEERE L HMEEF FTEES
Hangzhou Zhixing New Material Registered capital of ~ PRC/Mainland 40 40 40  Production and
Technology Co.,Ltd RMB9,000,000 China sales of building
(*Hangzhou Zhixing’) structural
reinforcement
materials
MNSERMREERRH EMEAARE B,/ PR TERHERTHE
(M5 )) 9,000,0007¢ BINEME

The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.

Hangzhou Zhixing, which is considered as a material joint venture
of the Group, acts as the Group’s distributor of industrial products
in Mainland China and is accounted for using the equity method.

AR ERAADEERF -
MMEBRRRHAEBRNERGERE

RAEBTREANM T XERNCHEETE
WAEAEEEAK
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. REETXENKE (B
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRABPBEEMNSENTHELHE B
in respect of Hangzhou Zhixing adjusted for any differences in METBHENEAEZEREEBEMARHEESE
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the MR RAVEREE -

financial statements:

2022 2021
ZEICZHE —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®¥T T AR¥TT
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 101 434
Other current assets Hi e & E 2,411 59
Current assets MENEE 2,512 493
Non-current assets ERBNEE 30,312 27,812
Current liabilities NiE=N (26,981) (19,610)
Net assets EEFE 5,843 8,695
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest KEBREGENE)HmZHER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REB 2 EAELLA 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the investment KEZIREE 2,337 3,478
Revenue A 11,400 =
Depreciation and amortisation T EE R B (3,106) (204)
Interest expenses MEREX (1,765) (100)
Tax I8 - -
Loss for the year FREE (2,852) (304)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEIEEEE (2,852) (304)
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21.

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2022 2021
—ECHF _E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®¥T T ARETT
Raw materials Er 3,965 3,969
Work in progress RS 1,259 1,453
Finished goods E e 769 1,125
5,993 6,547
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR 21. FEHENBETIYE
SALE
2022 2021
=~ —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR®EF T
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year ~ E#)8REE 225,630 -
Transferred from properties under development & # 5 2% fg R4 - 225,630
Remeasurement loss upon transfer of certain =~ FEHERNE TYEEEE
properties held for sale to investment KEYMENSENIEHEE
properties (70,359) -
Transferred to investment properties (note 15) R E X EYE (zE15) (155,271) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRREE - 225,630

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB225,630,000 were pledged to secure long-
term bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 31).

During the year, the use of Group’s properties held for sale has
been changed upon the inception of operating leases with an
external third party. As a result, the leased properties held for
sale was transferred to completed investment properties and a
remeasurement loss of RMB70,359,000 (2021: nil) was recognised
in profit or loss during the year.

N BT —FE+_RA=+—H &AEBKRT
WEABH ANREE225,630,000cHIFEHED
BTITYEEELRER DAERAEEER
REAIRITEE (I5E31) ©

RER B—ZFE=FETKEHER
SEBRFBEREME > BRE LS FIL
RERFELEREYEECESBEER TR
EYERPREBEZENRIENAEFEAAR
#70,359,00070 (ZBZ—4F : ) o
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND LEASE RECEIVABLES 22. S EWHIE - EWEE KIES

FEU I8

2022 2021
—ECHE _E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®BFIT
Trade receivables B 5 WIS 15,032 24,225
Bills receivables FEW ZE % 35,157 42,907
Lease receivables HEREWFIE 11,638 412
61,827 67,544
Impairment A (89) (4,966)

Net trade, bills and receivable B EKNEIE BN EE X
FEUWRIE S 58 61,738 62,578

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 3 months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables and
lease receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables
and lease receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables and lease receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

FEFRRERBNEZERUEERT &
MER—REAERENRGRIN -EEREERS
BR BREFPHUREERSEERE -FAEH
BRNBREFRBEEERE MR EE
JE R TE BRte oY B B AT A% © BB L SCPR At > 0 £
FEEESRERERBERKRNIERXE
DHEFER RIEEREERBRETHN
BR-BEEWHREAREBEREHRERRE

REREIR > B 5 BUBGRIE R E & W IE
REZHPNREDRNOT ¢

2022 2021

=~ —E-—fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARFT

Within 3 months EARA 20,003 18,945
3 to 6 months 3EH E6f@ 8 3,809 42
6 months to 1 year [SEPSESE:S 2,769 643
1 to 2 years 1E24F - 1,525
More than 2 years FBiE2F 89 3,482
26,670 24,637
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND LEASE RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The bills receivables were due within 3 or 6 months. The Group has
closely monitored the credit qualities and the collectability of these
bills receivable and considers that expected credit risks arising
from them are immaterial.

Given that the Group has not experienced any significant credit
losses in the past and holds rental deposits from tenants to cover
the potential exposure to credit risk, the expected credit risks
arising from them are immaterial.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

22.

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

B2 RIRIE - BRREREER
FE U FRIE (48)

FEWEBENIHE6EARNE R - AEBEZEY)

Wz SRR BN RREE RG]

ENAEREBTUELRENEREERE
EFAEHERSUBAIEMEREERR
ZERWERBENRREERRBY -

B ERWCRIRRERENEESNT

2022 2021
== —E_—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
At beginning of year =) (4,966) (5,722)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EERREEE (5E6) (459) (3,387)
Amount written off as uncollectible* s 2 AW BN & 5E - 3,991
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 5,573 =
Exchange difference PERAERE (237) 152
At end of year 5k (89) (4,966)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
the provision matrices to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns by geographical
region, customer type and rating. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

WMEDMR SRS AHRAEEEREET
LSt EBRBEEHRR -BHEXDEANZME
ERREKFRBDAEEEUEERANS
BERDBAENNEHEREE - ZFER
R MEAER ERFERNREEHNY
THARMBESE BTN R ARREHE AR
MBANGERIEER -
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND LEASE RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using the provision matrices:

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of
approximately RMB3,991,000 has been fully provided for
loss allowance as individually impaired trade receivables,
which is related to customers who are experiencing
unexpected economic difficulties. The entire amounts of the
receivables has been written off in 2021.

As at 31 December 2022

22. BREWNIE BT ERBE
FEUTFR I8 (48)

TREJ T EBERBBEREEAENEZE
WRIENEERRER

R_E_—F+_RA=+—H BZ5E
U I A R #53,991,0007t B EA @
MHENEZERREBEEHTIREE
BE AR RIS ERENE R
B -2IERREBEER - —FM

RZEZZ-F#+=-H=+—H

Past due
Less than 3to12 Over

Current 3 months months 1 year Total

MEEZE
BE DRSER 12f88 BE—F st

GROUPB 24

Expected credit loss rate FHEEHREE 0.06% 0.14% 0.07% 88.76% 0.59%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REEE ARETT) 14,223 720 - 89 15,032
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE ARETT) 9 1 - 79 89

As at 31 December 2021

R_F_—F+A=1t—8H

Past due
fak
Less than 3to12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
JERE
BE DR3MER 2B BE—F st
GROUP A F4
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREEX 2.56% 11.90% 22.55% 93.76% 48.13%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RERE ARETT) 4,530 42 643 4,918 10,133
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEESRE ARETT) 116 5 145 4,611 4877
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

22. TRADE, BILLS AND LEASE RECEIVABLES 22. B EIWHIE-EWEE REE

(CONTINUED) FEUYFRIE (48)
Past due
ail
Less than 3t012 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
ERE
BE DRSER 2B BE—F st
GROUP B o4
Expected credit loss rate JEHRE EEIEX 0.04% 0.07% 0.40% 93.26% 0.61%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REEE ARBT T 14,415 = = 89 14,504
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEERE (ARETT) 6 - - 83 89
The Group categorised its customers with reference to their AEELK2ERRAMEMERESEAMNUT
geographical regions into the following groups: E=9 =i
. Group A: Geographical region in Hong Kong. . B . S8HE-
. Group B: Geographical region in Mainland China o 4 REIA & o
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting RREHABRZEANEERBABZER
period is the carrying value of the trade receivables. IR ERTEE ©
As at 31 December 2022, the trade receivables from group A were R_E__F#+_A=+—B ' BREEW
nil due to the disposal of subsidiaries. BAE RANESGERHRIEBAS
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

FA{HRRIE « H{th R UCRRIE e H fth

AND OTHER ASSETS AND LOAN BEURERERR
RECEIVABLES
(a) Prepayments, other receivables and other (a) FAHIE - HtEKRFIERE
assets thEE
2022 2021
ZECF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREETF T
Prepayments to suppliers B =N N 245 672
Deposits and other receivables B R EMEWRIE 8,389 11,191
Prepaid expenses BEREX 454 177
Interest receivables FEWF) B 12,009 7,517
Value-added tax recoverable AU EIEER 18 15,998
21,115 35,555
Impairment RE (488) -
20,627 35,555

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables

approximate to their fair values.

The movements in provision for impairment of interest

receivables are as follows:

LTHEFRERARRE - HEREM
WA REERAE AT EES -

WA S REREELHNT :

2022 2021

—EHF BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

At beginning of year F1) = -
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) S HERRIEEIE (fi5E6) (488) -
Exchange difference FERERE - =
At end of year FR (488) -

2]0 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LOAN
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

31 December 2022

23. FE{IFRIE

B HHHERRME
“E_"F+°"H=+—H

ELth FE W rR IH R E At

&R R ERE R ()

Prepayments, other receivables and other (@) FEfIRRIE HthEWRIERE
assets (Continued) & E (@
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the REBBER RN R KEE AR5 EWF
reporting period is the carrying value of interest receivables, E-REhEMEWRREBENKREE £
deposits and other receivables. The above receivables MERFRERBRIREEREYBRS
belong to the scope of expected loss of financial assets to ZRFIORETRNTMEETARBLRE
be considered in accordance with IFRS 9. The Group has cARERMEEAE—MAEEI2ERTE
applied the general approach to measure the loss allowance FEEREBIEGEEEG NHHNEE
at 12-month ECL as there is no significant increase in credit BB P EeBe mEBEIL N LB
risk since initial recognition and determines the ECL by BTG EANERBNBAE EEE
assessment of probability of default and loss given default. HEEEE ENGHRMEERELEY
In view of the nature of the balance and historical default EUKRBIEEER  AEBRA B ?ﬁ
rate and forward-looking information, the Group considers BE AR 488,000t (CEZ—F 1 F)
the provision of loss allowance of RMB488,000 (2021: nil) EREIABRKFE BIR -
was recognised for interest receivables which represented +ZE=+—BEERENEWRIER
the gross amounts of credit impaired debtors as at 31 fBo
December 2022.
Loan receivables (b) FEURERR
2022 2021
—E_C E—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR®BTT ARBEF T
Loan receivables FEWER @-) 141,715 158,893
Impairment B (2,221) (484)
139,494 158,409
Notes: 5T -

(@ The Group entered into a one-year trust loan
arrangement with a commercial bank on 25 May 2022,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB27,000,000 was lent to
an independent third party. The balance is unsecured,
bears an interest rate of 6% per annum and is repayable
on 24 May 2023.

@) XEBRR _E__FRB8”-+3
HHE—BmERTIL—FET
BRTH Bl - @A ARKE
27,000, OOOTEE ERCEHLE—%E
NEZHoRERARIRE RE
*'JIG%J%'&'EE\_—\,__EEH
“tmHHERE.
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& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LOAN
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Loan receivables (Continued)

Notes:

b

(Continued)

The Group entered into a one-year trust loan
arrangement with a commercial bank on 30 May 2022,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB27,000,000 was lent to
an independent third party. The balance is unsecured,
bears an interest rate of 6% per annum and is repayable
on 29 May 2023.

The Group entered into a one-year trust loan
arrangement with a commercial bank on 30 May 2022,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB6,000,000 was lent to an
independent third party. The balance is unsecured, bears
an interest rate of 6% per annum and is repayable on 29
May 2023.

The Group entered into a trust loan arrangement on 6 Jan
2022, pursuant to which a loan of RMB40,197,000 was
lent to an independent third party. The balance is secured,
bears an interest rate of 5% per annum and has been
repaid on 30 March 2023.

The Group entered into a trust loan arrangement on 2 Jun
2022, pursuant to which a loan of RMB13,399,000 was
lent to an independent third party. The balance is secured,
bears an interest rate of 5% per annum and has been
repaid on 30 March 2023.

The Group entered into several arrangements in 2020,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB9,950,000 was lent to
an independent third party. The balance is secured, bears
an interest rate of 8% per annum. During the year of
2022, the amount of RMB7,365,000 of the loan has been
recovered and the remaining loan of RMB2,585,000 was
overdue and the Group has been charging 18% overdue
interest pursuant to the loan agreement.

The Group entered into several arrangements from 2020
to 2022, pursuant to which a supply chain financing loan
of RMB25,534,000 was lent to an independent third
party. The balance is secured, bears an interest rate of
12% per annum and is repayable before 31 December
2028.
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23. FA{FrRIE ~ Hth FE Uk TE Be H At
BEUKREBWER (B

FEWER (&)

BisE (&)

(b)

b)) ®EEBR_Z__FHEA=1+HH
— A ERTIL—FETERRT
BRIt - & %84 AR 127,000,000
TTHNERBEEHR—RBIFE=FZ
ERABRIRE BEMNE6WER
BR_E_=ZFERB-t+HAHEE-

© H®EBR-ZT-__FRA=-+HF
Y—FEREMEZH B 8A
A #56,000,0007cHERE B4 —
LBIUB=F - AEHABLP
FH KRRt ERABANR__E_=FHA
AZ+rHEE-

0 HNEBRZEZ_F—BXHITI
EEERZH Bt cEAARE
40,197,000t ER BB A — 2B
B H o ZAERABRE BREMEK
5% ERER_E-_=F=A=+
HEE-

e HTEER_ZE__F,B”H:J1I
EEERZH B cEAARE
13,399,000t ER BG4 — B
B H o ZEHRABERE BEME
5%t B RER_E-_=F£=F=+
HEE

H AEBR_Z_TFEITIHEZR
B g > %85 A R #9,950,0007T
HNERBEGE—LBILIE=H &
ERABIRE REAES%TE o
ATECTEFE ZERPHAR
#%7,365,000c E W E  HEg AR
2,585,000t B8 A K A E B R I
B 55 % 18%89 ) R U B 38 27 A1)
Bo

@ FTEBR_Z_SEE_T__
SINETRE BIL - @EAARKE
25,534,000t ER BB 4A— 2B
B H o ZMERABRE BREMEK
12%st B RBER_SE_=F+_H4
=t+—HaiEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HMBERRMEE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FA{TFRIA ~ H{th FE U FRIE K H{th
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LOAN BEEUKREWRER (B)
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Loan receivables (Continued) (b) EWER (4B)
The movements in provision for impairment of loan ERERTRERBEESHNT !

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
ZEZCHE ZET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
At beginning of year F4) (484) (927)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6)  EMEsRRIEEIE (i5E6) (1,728) 436
Exchange difference ERELE (9) 7
At end of year FX (2,221) (484)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date RERESHERB=EHENRERER
using three categories for loan receivables which reflect their ETREZ2T UkMEFERE RN
credit risk and how the expected credit loss provision is METEREEEERE SEERA
determined. Management considered the credit risk on the B R LR W E G & R kI &
loan receivables has not increased significantly since initial BEEM - AEEZEERRKI12MEA
recognition. The Group measures the loss allowance for that NEEEBEENSEEcM T AN
financial instrument at an amount equal to expected credit BB o
losses within the next 12 months.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREVNAEBRRKERFTEBENEE
exposure on the Group’s loan receivables: BEER
2022 2021
—®E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Expected credit loss rate JERRfEEEIEXE 1.57% 0.27%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REEE ARBTT 141,715 158,893
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) EfRfEEEE ARETT) 2,221 436

dEElERAR 202265 213



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FA{TFRIE -~ HthEURFIE R E th
AND OTHER ASSETS AND LOAN BEEUREKRER (&)
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(c) Other non-current assets (c) HMIERENEE
2022 2021
—E_C s
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTT ARBEFTT

Prepayment for property, plant BEYE - BEREREU (@)

equipment and leasehold land K E B9 FES RIB 521 78,797
Long-term deposits receivable FEW RS 1,904 1,924
Others Hith 495 496

2,920 81,217

Note: MI5E -

(@  Asat 31 December 2021, the Group had prepaid the @ RIBZT—HF+ZA=+—H Hx&EETE
consideration for purchase of certain property, plant, NEEETYE BERZHEURBEE LI
equipment and leasehold land. The land transfer 2B T HEZEFECTR > THEER
procedures had been completed and the land certificate BT _FEPERS

had been acquired in June 2022.

24. CONTRACT ASSETS 24. EHNEE

2022 2021
—g-= —E-—f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARHEFIT

Contract assets arising from: UTRBEBEENENEE .
Construction services (a) AR () - 4179
Retention money receivables (b) FEUL R B8 % (b) - 15,404
- 19,5683
Impairment VBRI = (927)
- 18,656
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(@  Unbilled revenue is initially recognised for revenue earned
from the provision of construction services as the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion
of construction. Upon completion of construction and
acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as
unbilled revenue are reclassified to accounts receivable.

(b)  Retention money receivables are part of the consideration
that the customers retain and is payable on successful
completion of the contracts in order to provide the
customers with assurance that the Group will complete its
obligation satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to
provide financing to the customers.

The decrease in contract assets in 2022 was due to the disposal of
subsidiaries.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
as at 31 December is as follows:

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

BNEE (@

(@) REARWz Ol MR RRFFHRINZ
Wz A 2 FE SR RUER OB A AR Th
TERIERFEG RIBTHARERR
Bz EIASAARBDZCEHEE
MO EERUIRR

b) EURRBTHEZRREBFHRITLE
AN ZBMARE LAEFFRESTE
ERBFESNLAMBMTEREEE
MmIFmEFIRHERE -

TECCEANEBEERLTHEREHERBA
EJO

R+ZBE=+—H&aNEEZHBKEHE
BB

2022 2021
=== —E-—F

—_T—_— — T —

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREETTT

Within one year —FER
After one year —F%

- 18,974
= 609

Total contract assets SHEEREE

- 19,583

X MRERAR c002Em 21D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

24. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 24, EHEE (B)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

BNEENREBEEREHUT

2022 2021

—E-ZC BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF ARETT

At beginning of year =) (927) (3,609)
Impairment reversals AEREEE] 26 2,616
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAD 943 =
Exchange difference PERAERE (42) 66
At end of year FR - (927)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based
on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns by geographical
region. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix:

RERESHHRRBEABERETRED
UEtEBREEBE -FE5NEERBRGE
EEBRCZRBAEXNDENESRWIBEZ ERE
K RARENEERBEZEBKFIATRER
—ERER -GHNEEZEHXT AR LM
BEDAAEMUBEEELANZERR DA
ANEZSEWRBRBAMEE ZtER
REBIRMEER ERFERNEKESEHRY
FHEBBREEMH BEAARRKRKEER
MBANGERIIZEER-

TREIEREFEEEABELEESNEE
EERBNER :

2022 2021

=~ - = s —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETFTT

Expected credit loss rate TEHRE BRI X - 4.73%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REAEE ARETT) - 19,583
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEffEERE AREBTT) - 927

2]6 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022



25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BILLS RECEIVABLE AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

25.

B HHHERRME
31 December 2022 —E__HF+_"_F=+—H
BATEFAHMEEEARNE
KR

2022 2021

== B2 &

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTFT

Bank acceptance bills at fair value MAFEFENRITEREE 1,889 3,773

Bills receivable that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Bills receivable held by the
Group are usually collected at the maturity date or endorsed before
the maturity date.

The bills receivable were due within 3 or 6 months. Management
expects that there is no significant credit risk associated with bills
receivables since they are held with large-size listed banks and the
credit risks arising from them are immaterial.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26.

RERRENRERERHETREENRE
WRE > ZATEFAHMEERAGFE &
EEFANRWRBEENEE W
FEAEFTIEE

FEWEE N IN6E S AR - EIEETRR I
BEARMBWEREBRZEXREERR  REAAK
EPR/ARBEENRTAFRE ARFELEZ
EEEL RS

BRATESFARmNERMEE

2022 2021
s B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHETT
Asset management agreements, at fair value =~ BEEBIERE RO T E
(note 41) (FFzE41) 25,545 48,641

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Yongsheng
Dyeing entered into certain asset management agreements with
the corresponding asset managers, pursuant to which Yongsheng
Dyeing agreed to participate in the asset management plans
operated by these asset managers and to deposit investments
to the designated accounts maintained by the asset managers.
The asset management plans mainly invest in inter-bank deposits,
bonds and equity investment. The financial assets at 31 December
2022 and 2021 were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

RBEE_Z__FKR_FT_—F+2A
=t+—HLEFE kBREAAEREEERE
ANBJUETEEEEWZ Bt kBERE
FAR2UEZEEEEEABEENEEEE
BoUrmEEEEAMRNEERATFAR
BE-BEEEFEFERENRTAEER
BEEREARE - REERMEENR T _—
FRTET—F+A=+T—BWINAFF
BEE UDEABRATEFABRENERE
o
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B HMERRMGE

31 December 2022 —Z&

—

=S =

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

26. HMAFEFABGNEHEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (&)
(CONTINUED)
The details of the investments at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are R_EBE_—Fk_E_—F+-_H=+—H
set out below: KREMNFBFHIINOT :
Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount  Agreement date year-end
REKRH
BEEEA FEA REHE HEAE ATE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARETT
2022
g
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd.  China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 23,622 24-Jun-20 4,998
REMERECEBRAT BEESRNERAT “E2FAZ+IH
Shanghai Tiange Investment Management Co., Ltd.  HengTai Securities Co., Ltd 20,000  01-Feb-21 20,547
FEXXEEEEERAT BRESRMERAT “—f¥”A-H
25,545
Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount  Agreement date year-end
REKRH
BEEEA FEA REHE HEAH ATE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT NS
2021
—E--F
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd. ~ China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 24218 24-Jun-20 5,622
REMBERECERRAT BEESRNERAT “Z2EAZ+IH
Shanghai Tiange Investment Management Co., Ltd.  HengTai Securities Co., Ltd 22,000  25-Feb-21 22,509
FEXXEEEEBRAR BRESRMERAT “—f5ZAZ+%H
Shanghai Tiange Investment Management Co., Ltd.  HengTai Securities Co., Ltd 20,000  01-Feb-21 20,610
FEXXEEEEBRAR BRESRMERAT ——f5”A—H
48,641
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

27. HERREFEY

2022 2021

—ECHF _E_—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®¥T T AR®EF T

Cash and bank balances BB RIRTTAEER 146,943 86,551
Less: Pledged as collateral for bankers’ B BREARTMEZEITRY

guarantees on performance bonds issued REREEER IR R (3,109) =

Cash and cash equivalents REeERIREEEY 143,834 86,551

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB were RMB107,500,000 (2021:
RMB19,530,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under an environmental service contract. As
at 31 December 2022, restricted bank deposits of approximately
RMB3,109,000 (2021: nil) were pledged to banks as a security for
bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2022, the internal credit rating of pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents was performed. The
Group has assessed that the credit risk of the pledged deposits
and cash and cash equivalents has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and measured the impairment based on
12-month expected credit losses. The Group has assessed that
the expected credit losses are immaterial.

REFR AEBUAREAENRE RIRET
LA ARM107,500,0000 (CE - —%F A
FE#19,530,0007T) - ARETREEBHRRIRA
HMmE - A RIFHE R (SMNEEEK
B R (B EERTESERE)  ~EH
BERBERBRBTRVRARBAEME
DUETTINEZEFS ©

FAEERERREANETEERONE
EHBARRKERTER R _Z
+ZA=+—8B > ZREBITEROARKE
3,109,000t (ZZEZ—F . &) BRI FIR
TEARTHMERTEANRRELIERNE
fRo

RITREBRRVEBRITERFER LUTEF
KBREAME - RIOTEHNSERERDER
REERFELPIBENITHRNIET

KRB _HF+"R=+—H ' BEFEN
RRERBEFEBYHIABEETRRES
BAZER AEBETHERTEARRE
RBEEEBEYHEERR B HERDURIL
ERERNKREI2EABHEEHEGTE
BB A EREE L REREEHERESBMY -

xEE R ERAR 2022 219



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. B FE(IRIA
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year, REFXR BREMREREZEZHHANIKRE
based on the invoice date, is as follows: SMWE -
2022 2021
—_F BT —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARHEFIT
Within 6 months 6EHA A 79,445 95,552
6 months to 1 year 688 E14F 42 196
1 to 2 years 1E24F 324 3,711
More than 2 years BB - 495
79,811 99,954
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally B RMMERATER—MEBENRGOH AR
settled on 60-day terms. M EE1T ©
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HithFEIRIE K EEHFRIA
2022 2021
=~ —E—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®BTT ARBEF T
Contract liabilities BHEE @) 229 1,323
Accrued payroll EstTE 5,341 8,994
Accruals fEST = IE 1,781 1,486
Interest payable FE(SF 2 806 572
Value-added and other taxes payable FEIZER R EMRE 3,516 4,164
Payables for purchase of property, plant  BEE¥)% B KL HERN
and equipment ANERE] 250 206
Rental received in advance FEUWFE = 3,482 4,722
Others Hith 2,132 3,100
17,537 24,567
All the amounts of interest payable, value-added and other taxes FMTERNFE ENEERLAEMRE -BE
payable, payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment MEHERKRENEMRBEULREMERS
and other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average MIEEATF ERTHFHA=@H-

term of three months.
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S HMBERRMEE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29, HithFE(IRIB KR EsTIE (48)

(CONTINUED)
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) BHEENFEBOT
2022 2021
—E-= s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AEBETF T
Short-term advances received from &5 B E A2 B FE S
customers
Processing mT 108 59
Provision of property management REYEEIER
services 121 -
RMAA Service RMAARR 5 - 1,264
Total contract liabilities BHEBEEEE 229 1,323

ENEREEMREHRNIRE MEE
AR 75 ;e RMAARR 75 U B B 22 B T8 R
B ZEZ_FAEMNERALEEHAR
HEMB AT -

30. FTEEMIA

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver processing service, property management services
and RMAA Service. The decrease in contract liabilities in
2022 was a result of the disposal of subsidiaries.

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2022 2022

—F_C ZEICZHE

Assets Liabilities

BE afE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTT

Return rate swap Y ZE 4R A 607 -
2021 2021

—EC—F —EC—F

Assets Liabilities

BE af&

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBFT

Return rate swap W = m A - 654
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. FTEERM T A (&)

(CONTINUED)

In February 2021, the Group entered into an asset management
agreement (note 26) named Tiange Liangshi Quanyu No.1 (“Tiange
No.1”) and Tiange Hengrui No.7 (“Tiange No.7”), and entered
into a return swap agreement (“Swap Contract”) with Wuxi Jizun
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Jizun”), another investor of “Tiange
No.1” and “Tiange No.7”, pursuant to which Wuxi Jizun would
guarantee the Company with a fixed annualised return rate at 6%
of the contributions which Tiange made during the investment
period in return for the sharing of more than proportionate interests
in the accumulated available proceeds of the “Tiange No.1” and
“Tiange No.7”.

This Swap Contract was not designated for hedge purposes and
is measured at fair value through profit or loss. Gains of changes
in the fair value of non-hedging return rate swap amounting to
RMB932,000 were charged to the statement of profit or loss during
the year (2021: Loss of RMB654,000).
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RIEBE-_—F_A A&EHITEEEE
%% (M3E26) (BDTiange Liangshi Quanyu
—&% (I Tiange—3%J) KTiange Hengruit
g8 (M Tianget 5%1)) > W Tiange— 581 &
[Tianget %1 5% — 2K EEWuxi Jizun
Technology Co., Ltd. (TWuxi Jizun 1) 57 37 I i@
=R (MEE4) I > Wuxi Jizuni
BANBREEEFLHREE (BERRER
FrEFERI6%) » LURER S AT Tiange— 71 &
lTianget 371 B9 R 5t 7] A AR 1S 7R IE MY Ll 4
AN EE

It 3= B & 49 3 3F 2% 4 R M 57 32 A0 4%~ FEE
ARG E - FRIFHTRFERIBHAFE
ZE Ui AR #5932,0007T (CE-—F 1 5
B AR K654,0007T) R m &M
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. St ERITREMER
BORROWINGS

2022 2021
ZEICE EI-F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BIRHIZR(%) L] AREFRT BIERIZ(%) 3IEH AREFT
Current bt
Lease liabilties (note 16(o)) REBE (HEH16(0) 4.75% 31-Dec-23 380 4.78% 31-Dec-22 539
+ZA=+-A +ZA=+-H
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHR 4.45% 10-May-23 14,940 4.78% 12-May-22 15,000
ZCE TE
#1A+H fA+ZH
Bank loans - secured BOEN-BEE 4.45% 11-Aug-23 30,000 4.78% 22-Jun-22 10,000
Z= oE
NA+-H ~NAZt+ZH
Bank loans - secured BOER-BHEE 2.10%-2.55% 14-Mar-23 1,112 4.78% 30-Nov-22 15,000
== oE
=A+mE +-B=+AH
Bank loans - secured RTER-BHF - 2.70%-3.25% 08-Jun-22 4118
~ANA
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHR - 2.85%-3.40% 27-Jun-22 6,788
it
ABZ+tA
Bank loans - secured RTER-BHF - 6.60% 31-Jul-22 12,788
tA=1-8
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHR - 6.60% 31-Jan-22 5,500
it
—-A=+-AH
Current portion of RARTERH 6.60% 31-Jul-23 29,700 4.25% 31-Dec-21 262
long-term bank loans - secured nEHA-EER == _—f
tA=t-H +-B=1+-H
76,132 69,995
Non-current JERE
Lease liabilties (note 16(o)) RESE (HzH16(0) 4.75% 20-Apr-24 164 4.75% 14-Mar-23 30
—mE _cE
] mE-+A =B+mA
Bank loans - secured BOEN-BHE 6.60% 31-Jul-25 39,600 6.60% 31-Jul-25 39,600
Zif ZHE
] +A=+-A tA=+-H
Bank loans - secured BOER-BHERE 6.60% 31-Jul-25 30,000 6.60% 31-Jul-25 30,000
ZRE “iE
‘ tA=+-H tA=+-AH
Bank loans - secured BOEN-BHE 4.55% 20-Jun-24 10,000 6.60% 2024-2025 58,022
—mE “ZTMER
] ~AZtH “ECRE
Bank loans - secured BOER-BHERE 6.60% 2024-2025 60,764 6.60% 2023-2024 39,426
ZZMEE TECZER
\ BT —F-mg
Bank loans - secured RTER-BHH - 4.25% 09-May-23 13
EAAA
140,528 167,191
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i)

)

mortgages over the Group’s buildings, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB84,089,000 (2021: RMB54,460,000);

mortgages over the Group’s land use rights, which had
a net carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB3,772,000 (2021: RMB3,894,000);

mortgages over the Group’s completed properties held for
sale, which had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of nil (2021: RMB225,630,000);

mortgages over the Group’s investment properties,
which had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately RMB775,600,000 (2021:
RMB638,760,000); and

mortgages over the Group’s construction in progress with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB7,697,000 (2021:
RMB24,180,000).
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RERZETIRT

(i)

(iv)

31. stRIRTREMBER (&)

TEMA TS REHRER:

RREHAAREDBEEAOARE
84,089,000t (ZE-_—F : AR
54,460,0007T) 2 AREEIEF 21718 ;

RHRERSHREDFENARKE
3,772,000 (ZE_—F : AR
3,894,0007tT) Z A& E TR 2 1%
B ;

RRESHRREEEAS (CE_—F:
AR #6225,630,0007T) 2 &NEEFIEL
ENBBIYE R,

AR EHARBLEAEN AR
775,600,000t (Z2Z—F : AR
638,760,00070) 2 AEB K EYE 2 1%
8/ &

REFENARE7,697,0007T (Z2
——%F: AR%24,180,00070) 2 & & E
TRIBZEB-
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 32. &R
2022 2021
ZEZZHF BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBFTT
Government grants BNER 6,515 6,902
Less: Current portion B - BNERER (387) (387)
6,128 6,515
Movements in government grants are as follows: K EBEEMT !
2022 2021
= —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
At the beginning of the year == 6,902 7,289
Amortised as income HiHAUWA (387) (387)
At the end of the year FER 6,515 6,902
The grants were related to the subsidies received from local ZEBEREAE TRIENHZIHERER
government authorities for the purpose of compensation for T %S AR W s ARIEW
expenditure on certain facilities and were credited to a deferred AREB -ZEEHNEHEERREREH
income account. The grants were released to profit or loss over the RRERm A o
expected useful lives of the relevant assets.
The Group also received certain financial subsidies from local KEBT B EMBATI4RIERSS T BUER
government authorities to support local business. There were no UMEFHEMEF ZEHNE L BAMK
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies relating to these ERNEEREMKATE ZEBNER
government grants. These government grants were recognised in RIERFEEm PR -

profit or loss when received.
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:

33. EIEHIE

FRNRERNBEERBGEZEHUT !

Deferred tax assets IRIETRIAE 2=
Temporary
difference
Impairment between
of financial accounting
Unrealised  assets and basis and
Government fair value contract tax basis of
grants Accruals  adjustment assets Tax losses properties Total
MEGHEE
HEERE
RER  EREER HEZRM
L) EHmE  ATESER SNEEAE RIEEE UREH Mzt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBFr ARETR ARETR ARETT ARBTn ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 RZE2Z—%-F-H 1,092 1,178 - 1,620 2,219 - 6,109
Deferred tax credftec/(charged)  ERRMBZET A,/ (15) 9
toprofit or loss during the year BB EEHIEILRIE
from continuing operations (58) 52 2,734 (76) 2,910 - 5,562
Deferred tax credlted/(charged) AR ERFHA,/ (0F) B
to profit or loss during the year 4 IHTE 2 3IEIERIE
from a discontinued operation - - - (631) 1,503 - 972
Exchange differences ERER S 5 5 (38) (36) - (74)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_—%+-A=+-H
1 January 2022 R~“2""F-B-H 1,034 1,230 2,734 975 6,59 - 12,569
Deferred tax credited/(charged) R EEET A/ (1K) B
toprofit or loss during the year ~ 1F BB EHIRILRIE
from continuing operations (58) (411) (128) 40 (4,321) 4,909 31
Deferred tax credfted to profitor  ERREZE A,/ (15) 89
loss during the year from a RIS ERIRLRIB
discontinued operation - - - 71 - - il
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR - - - (1,075) (1551) = (2,626)
Exchange differences EREE - - - 46 156 - 202
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZH+ZA=1+—H 976 819 2,606 57 880 4,909 10,247

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB9,994,000
(2021: RMB24,430,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses

arose.

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB4,173,000 (2021: RMB18,391,000) that will expire in one to

five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"F=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 33. IREMIE (4B)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) RIERIBEE (18
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the 10 fm L5 48 A\ R #58,825,0007T (Z 2 = —£F ©
losses of RMB8,825,000 (2021: RMB11,291,000) as they have AR ¥11,291,0007t) BRRLERIEE &
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making continuously and BZEBEBILREFERENREBERENWEB
it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available NEEARB IR EBEFER AN A B LUK
against which the tax losses can be utilised. tHIRTERSI8 -
Deferred tax liabilities IRERIBEE R
Temporary
difference
between
accounting Depreciation
basis and allowance
Unrealised Unrealised Costs to tax basis of in excess
interest fair value obtain investment  Withholding of related Unrealised
income adjustment contracts properties tax  depreciation rental income Total
RENE
8RR
HERRE BREH
FER RER EREH BEEZHMN TEN RER
FISWA  AFESEER MR ERER kit ERE HAERA 3t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR ARETR  ARETR

A1 January 2021 ®-E--£-B-R = (236) - 2419 (13413 -
Deferred tax (charged)/credited R EH (1K) /st AR E

to profit or loss during the year A8 & &5 IRIERIE

from continuing operations (18 236 (124) 1,044 (1,419 - - (281)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited R85 (1K) /5t ABIER 1L

to profit or loss during the year X ¥FEERE

from a discontinued operation - - - - - - - -
Withholding tax paid BRBMNR - - - - 563 - - 563

(16,068)

At31December2021and  RZBZ—£+-A=+-H

1 January 2022 R=E--%-A-A (19 - (124 (1375) (14,269) - . (15,786)
Deferred tax (chargedy/credited R85 (1K) /5t ABO5E

to profit or loss during the year X ¥FEERE

from continuing operations 17 - 101 (3,396) (1,280) (6545) (2,134) (7,237)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited  ERI1B (1K) /5t AR L

to profit or loss during the year A8 & &5 IRIERIE

from a discontinued operation - - - - - - - -

At 31 December 2022 RIE-Z“#+"A=+-H 0] - (29) @771 (15,549) (545) (2,134) (23,029)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 33. IRIERIE (48)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) RIERMIER G ()
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ABEENR BETRERBEEREBRER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial EHFERARPIEE UTAEEENE
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of IR IBAS R AL IR S B RUPRIE D4 -

the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2022 2021
—ECHE _E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the REHIERRRERN
consolidated statement of financial position FIETRIEE R 5 921 6,179
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REHTERRRERN
consolidated statement of financial position BRI IEE (E/F5E (13,697) (9,396)
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. &
Shares AR
2022 2021
—ECHE _E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
708,008,090 (2021: 732,543,090) 708,008,0908% (& ——4F :
ordinary shares 732,543,0908%) Z@EA% 5,854 6,063
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

31 December 2022

BHMERRMEE
“E_"F+°"H=+—H

34. g7 (48)
B&in (48)

TABDREEHFERREZAT

follows:
Number of Share
shares in premium
issue  Share capital account Total
BE#1T
RiT¥E & ROEER st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ABBTRE  ARETT  ARETR
At 1 January 2021 RZIZ2Z—%—F—H 731,557,090 6,054 826,670 832,724
Share options exercised (3) BiTHERE@) 986,000 9 1,549 1,558
Dividends paid to shareholders of BARERELZTRE
the Company - - (18,206) (18,2006)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 A_E_—F+_A=+—BkK
“E"f#—-H—H 732,543,090 6,063 810,013 816,076
Shares repurchased and cancelled (o) BB KB B9 BR D () (24,535,000) (209) (12,383) (12,592)
At 31 December 2022 RIZ2ZZHF+ZA=+—H 708,008,090 5,854 797,630 803,484
(@  The subscription rights attaching to nil (2021: 986,000) @ =ZTH(ZTZTZ—4:986,00017) B

share options were excised at the subscription price of
nil (2021: HK$1.159) per share (note 35) resulting in the
issue of nil (2021: 986,000) ordinary shares for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of approximately nil (2021:
RMB956,000). An amount of nil (2021: RMB601,000) was
transferred from the share option reserve to share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

In 2022, the Company repurchased 24,535,000 ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for a
total consideration of HK$14,787,000, which amounted to
approximately RMB12,592,000. The repurchased shares
were cancelled during the year and total amounts paid for
the purchase of the shares have been charged to share
capital and share premium of approximately RMB209,000
and RMB12,383,000, respectively.

o

EEMNNIEEREREET (22
T—F 111598 m) WRBEETHE
(f15E35) » MULUBIREREB GRER
) SARBET (ZTEZ—F: AR
#%956,0007T) HEITER (ZEZ—F .

986,0008%) ZER - HAHANARIEOTT
(ZZ2Z—%F : ARE™601,0007T) R
R EETHERAEREAESEER

DB

RZE__F > AQAFUHENRB
14,787,000 B T (AN AR
12,592,0007t) REBHM AR ZFE
[EAT BRI H24,535,00008 5@ 88 -
B B o] B 10 74 4 /A9 =X 88 &t B8 =) AR 1D
ENHESEEERARRKRMDEER
DRIBRL AR 209,000t R AR
12,383,0007T °
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. BERg TS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 7 November 2013.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme is limited to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on 27 November 2013, the day since which the Company’s shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a vesting period of not shorter than 12 months and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the par value
of shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 6 January 2015, 15,000,000 share options were granted to 39
employees with vesting dates falling from 2 April 2016 to 5 January
2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.48 per share. The expiration
date of the options granted falls within 10 years after the grant
date.

On 30 December 2015, 16,300,000 share options were granted
to 45 employees with vesting dates falling from 1 April 2017 to 30
December 2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.52 per share. The
expiration date of the options granted falls within 10 years after the
grant date.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

5. fEliEstE (@)

A _E—RE—ANH 30K EECER
15,000,000 R E HEEBHEN T =
—RNENE _HE_E_AF—HAB KT
FEASR 488 T BRHBRENEIH
HAKHBHBRI0OFER-

N CE-RAE+_HA=1+H 45%EEBEE
216,300,000 R E - BEBRHPENF -
—tFNOMBE—HEZE_HAF+ZB=+H
EiTHEEBAER1I2ET BEREBEREN
FHHARE BERI0ER-

FERN ZFTEIETHRITEZBRENT

during the year:

2022 2021
—E-CE —EC-F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

IEEss IS
B BRERA THE  BREHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000

per share per share
BRAET T SEAET T
At 1 January r—B—H 1.158 13,938 1.186 14,924
Exercised during the year FRTTE - - 1.159* (986)
At 31 December K+ZB=+—H 1.158 13,938 1.158 13,938

HE -+ "HB=+—HILEFEARHK
EEREETFE RBEE_ZT”-_—F+°A4
—t+—HEFE BTEERERITHELH
ZIMEEHRMDEERARTR1.028 T

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2022. During the year ended December 2021, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised was HK$1.92 per share.

* The adjusted exercise prices were in line with the dividend issues * KRARITEERNSESTEHEZREET
approved by the board of directors.
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022

Number of options Exercise price*

Exercise period

Rzt R (&)

RIBEER MRTEBRENTEERT
fFHAEN T ¢

BRREHE 1TEE> 1T{EHA
’000 HK$
per share
T3 SRAET
2,569 1.095 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025

—E-RNENBA-HE_E-_RE—HAH

1 April 2017 to 5 January 2025

—E—tHFMA—-HE_E"_AF—HEH

2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025

—E—tHFMAHE_E_HF+T-A=1+H

1 April 2018 to 30 December 2025

—E-N\FNA—-HE_E_HF+°-A=1+H

2,569 1.095

4,384 1.195

4,416 1.195
13,938

2021

Number of options Exercise price*

Exercise period

T

[ |
4
|
N

miEHE TEE 1TEHEA
'000 HK$
per share
T15 BT
2,569 1.095 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025

TE-RFENB_HE_ZE_HF—HAH

1 April 2017 to 5 January 2025

—E—tFMB—HEZE"_AF—AAA

2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025

_E—tFEMBHEZZE_HF+"A=+H

1 April 2018 to 30 December 2025

2 N\FEMNA—HEZZEAF+ZA=+H

2,569 1.095

4,384 1.195

4,416 1.195
13,938

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or dividend issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.
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35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the share options granted were RMB8,556,000
for 15,000,000 share options granted on 6 January 2015
(RMBO0.57 each) and RMB10,669,000 for 16,300,000 share
options granted on 30 December 2015 (RMBO0.65 each). No share
option expenses were recognised during the year of 2022 (2021:
Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share options
were exercised. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
approximately 986,000 share options were exercised resulting in
the issue of 986,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new
share capital of approximately RMB9,000 as further detailed in
note 34 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 13,938,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 13,938,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of approximately RMB125,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 13,938,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.97% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 10 to 11 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are domestic enterprises are
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting standards, to their
respective statutory surplus reserves until the reserves reach 50%
of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

35.

36.

SRR RMIEE
31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

Rzt E (8)

ERHNERENAFER _-_ST—AF—
A7/NB®EEM15,000,0007 B REE AR
8,5656,0007t (B8 AR0.57m) kL Z &
—HFE+ZB=1+HEHM16,300,00017 &8
pEEA AR %10,669,0007 (B15 AR #0.65
o) M T ERIEEDERERY -

B —F ) o

REBEEZZE_“F+RA=+—HLFE>
B R IR 1T (F o AN B P 3R R T 5E 3438
—$ENREE_E-_—F+"_HA=+—
B - F B B 17 £49986,00017 B IR R 3 8517
986,000 AR B B BRI AL AR
9,0007T °

RESHR AR ZABETE
13,938,00014 B RITHEREARE - L BA AT
MBI AEE BEITENRTHENER
1 B] B B 8 9P 2% 1713,938,0008% 45 A 5 2B Sh
TER R BBIMNR A K N R 8125,0007T (30BR
E1TRAZAN) ©

RLEZEMHHREAH XA EZLTE
T%513,938,00017 A R1TEFEKRE  HERN
KABNZBEETRNL1.97%

f#fE

FEBEEREEERBEEENSBERE
BHRYBRRE0EEENENA GHER
BEHEL2F)o

BEBE(REARKMBERTE)  AEEET
MERAB R ABEANEZE B RER T EE
ARHMBEE S ERIFFEE D RHE10%MHFR
BENEHKBECRBHRE BEEAMME
BEINHSBFMELRNS0% EET (R
ZEARKEMBERTE) #IHETREIER
o B ATE B AR PRI R B LUE AR A
AREENEEBNGEATFSONEMEELD
25%°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022

36.

37.

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H
RESERVES (CONTINUED)

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with a functional currency other than
RMB.

Other reserve represents (i) the gains/(losses) arising from
transactions with non-controlling interests, (i) the difference
between the fair value of capital contribution received from the
non-controlling interests and the proportionate of the carrying
amount of the net assets of the respective subsidiaries attributable
to owners of the company being deemed disposed of.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

36. f#fH (48)

SIBEREFROERENEEESAREY
INEBUBRREENMEEREE -

HM R E R R XS EEZ W,/
(BR) (NBWSFERBEEZRATEZAR
FTEARGABEHEZRAABEA AZLA

BEENBAREEREREEBEZER-

37. KIE

R|ERR > REBOERFENT :

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F

Contracted, but not provided for: [ERHESEES L
Land and buildings TR IETF - 9,853
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. FAEF X 5 R4E i
BALANCES

(a) Name and relationship (a) BBREAR
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
RAET B8 IR EBRIRRA

Fuyang Jingshang Agriculture Development Company Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder

Limited
ESmEERRERERRAT FRPERG AR SR
Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
K& (BB BEBRAT FRERR R B 1
Yongsheng Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
KEERMZERARAS FR TR AR B
Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil Differential fabric Co., Ltd. Controlled by a close member of the Controlling Shareholder
FUNK BB —ZE R BB B R AE RGBS R — L AR e
Hangzhou Zhixing A joint venture
HUPNS B aE8hE
Hangzhou Inya Water Co., Ltd. Controlled by a key management personnel of the Group
TUNEHEKFE B RAE] HAERE—SLFTEEEBASES
Hangzhou Yongsheng Holding Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
HUINK B RS B PRA B FRPERG R SRR
Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Co., Ltd Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
TN KEEEBRAT FRERR R B 1
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng Foreign Trading Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
TN LK B R INE B HERAE FR TR AR B
Hangzhou Yibang Technology Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
miNEERERERAE FRPERG R SRR
Zhejiang Deqging Jiemai New Material Co., Ltd A joint venture
MIEEREMMABIRAT aEh%E
Zhejiang Yongyin New Energy Co., Ltd Controlled by a key management personnel of the Group
ALK E AR RA RA S HAERE—SLFTEEEBASES
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. FIER X% KRR (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Related party transactions (b) RAEFAXRS
The Group had the following material transactions with AEENFESBETUTEARARS -
related parties:
2022 2021
—EICE B —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MiEE AR%F ARETT
1) Purchases of goods 1) KEBER 0)
— Fuyang Jingshang Agriculture —ERRHEERERE
Development Company BIRAF
Limited 36 28
2) Agency service fees received  2)  [A1—&RBEE S UL
from related parties R#%& (i
- Yongsheng Financial Holdings —XBRERERBREAF
Co., Ltd. - 276
- Yongsheng (HK) International —Xk & (B BEBERAR
Co., Ltd. - 387
- 663
3) Management fee paid to a 3 M—RHEEAZNEERE
related party (iii)
- Yongsheng (HK) International —Xk & (B8 BEBERAR
Co., Ltd. - 39
4) Interest income 4) FEWA
— Zhejiang Deqjing Jiemai New —MIEEREBRMER
Material Co., Ltd NE] (iv) 125 -
— Hangzhou Zhixing — M V) 1,171 148
1,296 148
5) Rental expense 5 fMEH% (vi)
— Hangzhou Inya Water Co., — MR ABERAE
Ltd. - 157
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. FAEHF R 5 RiEis (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued) (b) FAERRZ (@
2022 2021
=~ B
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥T AREFTT
6) Rental income and other 6) HEWARHEMER
charges (vii)
— Hangzhou Yongsheng Haell —MKEEE—ER
Differential fabric Co., Ltd. BYERRAT 1,383 1,449
— Hangzhou Yongsheng — MK EERBRAE
Holding Co., Ltd. 1,897 440
- Hangzhou Xiaoshan — TN WX REINER
Yongsheng Foreign Trading BRAT
Co., Ltd. 660 149
— Hangzhou Yibang Technology —mMNEERRERAR
Co., Ltd. 103 22
— Hangzhou Yongsheng Group — MM XEREEBRAE
Co., Ltd 9 _
4,052 2,060
7)  Loans to joint ventures 7) BRELEBHZER
— Hangzhou Zhixing — N e ) 500 10,001
- Zhejiang Deqjing Jiemai New —MIEEREBRMER
Material Co., Ltd NC] (iv) 1,058 -
1,558 10,001

8) Repaymentofloanlentfroma 8) EEHSGETERBHIER

joint venture
- Zhejiang Deqing Jiemai New — L ERBRMER
Material Co., Ltd NE (iv) 310 -
9) Advance to companies 9) PERERERERZ AR
controlled by the Controlling ESN
Shareholder (viii)
— Yongsheng Financial Holdings — X BERERBREAE
Co., Ltd. 177 -
- Yongsheng (HK) International —KBE (B8 BREERAE
Co., Ltd. 359 -

536 i
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

38. FAEA R 5 KkiGER (48)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Related party transactions (Continued) (b) FAEFRZ (@
2022 2021
=~ B
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE AR¥T AREF T
10) Repayment of advance to 10) EERERIER 2 A BEE
companies controlled by the BR
Controlling Shareholder (viii)
— Yongsheng Financial Holdings —XBRERERBRAE
Co., Ltd. 190 -
~ Yongsheng (HK) International —kE& (&%) BRERAT
Co., Ltd. - =
190 -

Notes: BfEE

() The purchases of goods were made according to the (i) REERNDERETHERNTE
published prices and conditions similar to those offered to BEEENARERNEHET
the major customers of the suppliers.

(i)  The agency service fees received from related parties (ii) EEE AWM RERSE &R AR
were charged at prices similar to those offered to other HIFEEBEMEENESBEES
customers of the Group. S ER ©

(il The management fee was paid for the management (i) EBEBNLAIZMNKEGEBD ERER
and administrative services provided by Yongsheng (HK) NE) (HAEBMZERRKREESZAR)
International Co. Ltd, a company which is controlled Frigft 2 BERITHRE - EBEE)
by the Controlling Shareholder of the Group. The RIFAEEEKXE (B BEERA
management fee was charged pursuant to the terms Bl E 5] Z R IR RN ER
in the agreement signed between the Group and
Yongsheng (HK) International Co. Ltd.

(v)  The Group entered into a contract with Zhejiang Deging vy AEESEWIEERENMBERA

Jiemai New Material Co., Ltd to lend the aforementioned
company RMB1,058,000 at an annual interest rate of
12%.

BB Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

The Group entered into a contract with Hangzhou
Zhixing New Material Technology Co., Ltd. to lend
RMB10,001,000 in 2021 and a contract to lend the
aforementioned company RMB500,000 in 2022,
respectively, at an annual interest rate of 12%.

The rental expense was paid to Hangzhou Inya Water
Co., Ltd., a company controlled by a key management
personnel of the Group. The rental expense was charged
pursuant to the terms in the agreement signed between
the Group and Hangzhou Inya Water Co., Ltd.

Rental income and other charges mainly represented the
arrangements that the Group charged its related parties
for rental transactions, management services expenses
and other overhead costs according to the actual costs
incurred.

Advances to related parties were all interest-free working
capital advances and were carried out in accordance with
the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties
involved.

31 December 2022

B HHHERRME
TR FE+“H=+—H

38. FAE AR 5 KGR (48)

(b) FRZE

X5 (&)

s (&)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(il

AEFHAMMNEEFFREERA
AR B —FJ—MEHUE
it ABEH ARE10,001,0007T K
RIS - _Fi5Tu—MmEa8UELE
A E S AR #500,0007T 0 2%
BN EF R E12% 0

HERAXEXNFRMERKER
RAE (—EHsER-—RTE2EE
ABEHBRE) - BHERZTHIRE
REHEFNEBRAFARABDE
= B R IR AR °

HERAKREMERETEZERER
BEERELENERRAERES K
WEEXSE BERBHZ REM
BIZE AR

BRELDRHZBREBAREE
BESBP REBESRZIHFHABE
ARG T o
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B HMERRMGE

31 December 2022

—E-—F+"HA=+—8H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

38. FAEA R 5 KkiGER (48)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) HRAEAHIKREIELLER
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2021 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2022 the year 2022 the year 2021
WZEZ—&
+ZB=+-H
RZBZZ#F FRRE R-FZZ FRARE RZF-—F
Due from related parties FERAEARIB +ZB=+—-H REBESE —B—H KEESE —B—H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETFT ARETTT
- Yongsheng (HK) International ~ — 7k % (&%) BIX B RAE()
Co., Ltd. () 580 580 190 190 61
- Yongsheng Financial Holdings ~ —k B & RFERB IR A ()
Co., Ltd. () 12 23 23 25 25
- Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil ~ —#iM KB E—Z M4
Differential Fabric Co., Ltd. (i) EMmAERAT) 14 14 = 673 673
~ Hangzhou Zhixing New Material  —#iMEEHHREBR
Technology Co., Ltd. {i Al 11,008 11,098 9,821 10,001 -
- Zhejiang Deqing Jiemai New — —H#TEEEREHMER
Material Co., Ltd (i) i) 721 1,000 . - -
—Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng  — /N LUK B H N E 5
Foreign Trading Co., Ltd. (iv) BRAF(W 17 17 = = =
~Hangzhou Yongsheng Group ~ — N K BREBBRAF(VY)
Co., Ltd. (v) 115 115 - - -
- Hangzhou Yibang Technology ~ —#UMEEREBRA (W)
Co., Lid. (i) 1 1 - - -
12,558 12,848 10,034 10,889 759
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2021 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2022 the year 2022 the year 2021
RIE-—-&
+ZA=+-H
AZECZZ FRRE RIEFZZ FRARE WRIF--F
Due to related parties FEfRERTE +=ZB=+-H KXEELHE —B—H KEESHE —B—H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBTT ARETTT ARBTT ARETTT
- Hangzhou Yongsheng Holding ~ — ity sk BB B TR A E)(vi)
Co., Ltd. (vi) 823 823 760 1,229 -
- Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng — & LK REHINEZE
Foreign Trading Co., Ltd. (vi) FRABIWM) 109 258 258 417 -
- Hangzhou Yibang Technology ~ —#UMEEREBRAEV)
Co., Ltd. (vi) 35 38 38 63 S
- Zhejiang Yongyin New Energy ~ — ALK EHAERARAE
Co., Ltd (v) (vi 1018 1018 - - -
-Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil ~ — Ik e —ZEF L4 4
Differential Fabric Co., Ltd (vi) BMERAB V) = 45 45 45 =
1,985 2,182 1,101 1,754 -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

(d)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

()

(vi)

The amounts due from Yongsheng Financial Holdings
Co., Ltd and Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Ltd are
outstanding management and agency service fee.

The amount due from Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil
Differential Fabric Co., Ltd are outstanding rental expense
and other charges.

The amounts due from Hangzhou Zhixing and Zhejiang
Deqing Jiemai New Material Co., Ltd are the outstanding
loans and the interest net with the expected credit
losses. An impairment analysis of the loan is performed
at each reporting date by considering the probability of
default with an estimated credit rate. As at 31 December
2022, an impairment allowance of RMB290,000 (2021:
RMB482,000) was provided.

The amounts due from Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng
Foreign Trading Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Yibang
Technology Co., Ltd. are outstanding rental income.

The amounts due from Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Co.,
Ltd are the prepayment for the rent of a vehicle.

The amounts due to related parties at the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 are the rental deposits and
rental received in advance.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

B HMERRMGE

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

38. FAE AR 5 KGR (48)

(c) ERZEHZBKREEREEER (B

B 5k

) FEURKkBESHERARAB RKE
(&%) BRBERABNNRERKRE
BEERRERSEE-

(i)  FEUWHTINGKBRE — = BMC#ESY
BERASDNMERREEESMX
REAE R -

(i) FEWAINS BRI E BN
BRABINARIBAREEZEETRIS
(NBTEHREERE) - AEERE
BHREQDERZE EENBMER MG
EEXRHEFETHRED T -HRIE
—E+"RA=+—H 'BiERE
B AR 1290,0007T (ZBEZ— :
AR #482,0007T) °

vy BEEHNEUXEHINEZERA
Bl mER A RABNRE
RARBEEREZWA -

V)  ERHINXEREBARAQBNMRIEA
HENEWMETRIE

V) BEE--_ER-S-—H4T

B=+—HLEE BNMELMNER
milEREREEANR

(d) FEEZETEEBEASZEMN

2022 2021

—ECHE _E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARH¥FT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #7128 & B Y@ 4,105 3,034

Performance related bonus EMABRETEAL 1,469 2,466

Pension scheme contributions BIREEEHERR 403 320
Total compensation paid to key REZEEABENZ

management personnel AR zE 5,977 5,820

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note
8 to the financial statements.

EREEMENE D BRN MR
KIFE8 o

KEEHMEIAR AT 20226
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 39.

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s buildings, land
use rights, investment properties, construction in progress and
bank deposits were pledged to commercial banks relating to the
guarantees on performance bonds issued and bank borrowings
granted to the Group. Details are included in notes 14, 15, 16, 21,
27 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

40.
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022

Financial assets

BEEHH

F+ZA=+—H &xEEET

IS

BFE I MERARE - REYE - TREIRERRE

TEFRERAEBZHNEORE RIBTE
ERBTEHERT -FBHNEAHTERR
MizE14~15-16~2127 %31 ¢

RENETHERMIA

RBREMHR XESHTANKREENT :

—EZC

THEE

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
Financial at fair value through other
assets at through profit  comprehensive
amortised cost or loss income Total
BATEFA
A A BATEEA HttZEBA
FliRNEREE BENEHEE HEMBEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETT ARETT ARBFT ARETFT
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA - 607 - 607
Financial assets at fair value through B AFEFABGZNEHEE
profit or loss - 25,545 - 25,545
Trade, bills and lease receivables BEENEIE BNEER
THERKTIE 61,738 - - 61,738
Loan receivables EWED 139,494 - - 139,494
Bills receivable at fair value through A FE s AEMZER AL
other comprehensive income e Z1x - - 1,889 1,889
Financial assets included in HARGRE BER
prepayments, deposits and HtEWABZ SHEE
other receivables 19,910 - - 19,910
Financial assets included in ABWER S TIEY
amounts due from related EHEE
parties 12,443 - - 12,443
Deposits receivable included in felE (Gt ARMIERE
other non-current assets BE) 1,904 = = 1,904
Pledged deposits BIREER 3,109 - - 3,109
Cash and cash equivalents RERRLEEY 143,834 - - 143,834
At 31 December 2022 KRB "H#+"HA=+—H 382,432 26,152 1,889 410,473
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31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. BB SMEMTA (B
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
PR EH Y 2551 BR
=R
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Trade payables B 5 e RIE 79,811
Financial liabilities included in other payables and SFAREMEMNRIEBEBRESRIBZcMEAE

accruals 4,969
Financial liabilities included in amounts due to SPAENREBARIBEZ EMEE

related parties 683
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SERTREMER FEEHES®)

(excluding lease liabilities) 216,116
Lease liabilities HEaE 544
Deposits payable fEfT12E 4,826
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE__F#+-_/A=+—H 306,949

MEEMRIERAR 202265 243
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

2021

Financial assets

40. FHEFRE TSR IR (&)

T
ETHMEE

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
Financial at fair value through other
assets at through profit comprehensive
amortised cost or loss income Total
BATEFA
e £ [omin BATERA Hitt2EBA
FIRNEREE BENEHEE MERBEE 4z
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through B AFEFABGZHNEREE
profit or loss - 48,641 - 48,641
Trade, bills and lease receivables BEENEIE BEER
TERNIE 62,578 - - 62,578
Loan receivables EWER 158,409 - - 158,409
Bills receivable at fair value through AT EFAEMZEBAKN
other comprehensive income EWEE - - 3,773 3,773
Financial assets included in SABRNHE BEREAM
prepayments, deposits and BUHBZ SRHEE
other receivables 18,708 - - 18,708
Amounts due from related parties  FEURRAE 5 28 10,034 = = 10,034
Deposits receivable included in s (st ARMIET S
other non-current assets BE) 1,924 = = 1,924
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 86,551 - = 86,551
At 31 December 2021 R ZE-—F+ZA=+—H 338,204 48,641 3,778 390,618
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

40. FHEFHE TSI A (&)

THEE

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities  at fair value through

at amortised cost profit or loss Total
R AT R BRAFERA
NemeE BRNEHEE 4t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AR¥T T AR®T T
Trade payables B ENRIE 99,954 - 99,954
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA - 654 654
Financial liabilities included in other STARMENRIERETRIE
payables and accruals ZEREE 5,364 = 5,364
Amounts due to related parties FESRAE A RUE 1,101 = 1,101
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEIRITRAMBR
borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) rEslEa® 236,617 - 236,617
Lease liabilities HEAR 569 - 569
Deposits payable fEI#E 2,292 - 2,292
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+"A=+—H 345,897 654 346,551
Transfers of financial assets EREERNEE

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB26,852,000 (2021: RMB23,189,000)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amount
of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. As at 31
December 2022, no trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills
during the year have been recourse by the suppliers.

WS AL BT EERE M EE

A B+ A=+ —B AEEEH
BTHERSSE D EPEA MY IERITIZEW
HNETFTRKER (TE5EREK)) REEES
AR #26,852,000T (ZEZ—F : AR
23,189,0007T) * UG RENZEHREFTNE
SEMHIE ((ZE5E) - BEFRA A&EEHE
REBEBRBO AR &O®K BFEFHAZERS
BEEENEVAR RWItEEEEIES
EERNENREEREBMEEENESE
IRB -RZEER AEETEREFEHE
BEZEENTAEN  8FREREME=
FHE EERERESHERE - KNI
F+ZA=+—H EHRHEEHREERE
BEERMEENE ZELRIE

XEIEMEERAR 20205 24D
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31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. BEHEIOMWERMIT A (B)

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Transfers of financial assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

At the same time, the Group discounted certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Discounted Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB1,116,000 (2021: RMB11,026,000) to
Ningbo Bank in exchange for cash. After discounting, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risks relating to such Discounted Bills, and accordingly, it
continued to recognise the full carrying amount of the Discounted
Bills. Subsequent to the Discounting, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Discounted Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Discounted Bills to any other third parties. As at
December 31, 2022, the discounted bills were not recovered by
the discounted bank.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”)
to some of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of
RMB7,132,000 (2021: RMB12,033,000). The Derecognised Bills
had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amount of the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade
payables.

At the same time, the Group discounted some of the
bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to Ningbo Bank in exchange for cash, with a
carrying amount of RMB3,300,000 (2021: RMB4,245,000). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly,
it has derecognised the full carrying amount of the Derecognised
Bills.
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WEDEA LT BERERHEE (8)

BILER  ~EEARBRESHERIRITH
HIREEAAR®E1,116,0000 (ZE - —4F:
AER#%11,026,0007T) BY B % FEE A IR 1T
MPETREWRER TEREERE)) - RIER
B AEBERGEABD AR KEIR BIF
EAZEENIREENENRR  BULEE
BRI REENEFREE NZE
B AEBTEREEHEMBERNEMN
R GEETAEME =S HE HERE
BERREEE - N _E__F+_F=+—
B ARRIRTHREAMERLE EMIREEE

EEERIEZNEEETHMEE

é:;__E+ AB=+—H ' &~&E@HBH
ETHERSZEEETEAMIBITEMAN
ETEREZER ((ERERIBER)) U
BEMZEHERARALSEAARE
7,132,000 (Z &~ —F : AR%12,033,000
nﬁmE%%ﬁﬂﬁ RIEHR B ILRE
REBENERBRA—ZEEAE - RIE(PE
AREMBEZEL) MW ENRTEL 8
ERIIBRAERENRFEAGAEBREEER
B (FELSHE) - EFZRE AEEEERE
B IEREZR BRI D E R & E R -
At HEERIEEDER IR ZH &8
B REARIENEIREmEEE-

AR AEEARRREEHZERIRITH
RIRE S A ARKS,300,0005T (Z2 = —
£ ANE#4,245,0007T) FIB E R E R 1T
BANETRERER (S&IEEIER)) o
BERA AEFCEBREARECKRIERIE
BRBARID B RO - FIb HB & IERE
RERIEBRBZENEIREE-
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Transfers of financial assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are
not significant.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
did not recognise any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the years or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the years.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade, bills and lease receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, loan receivables, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, the current portion of
amounts due from related parties, derivative financial instruments,
bills receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss approximate
to their carrying amounts as largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

Management considers that the fair value of the non-current
interest-free financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
approximates to their carrying amount as the impact of discounting
is not significant. Management also considers that the fair value
of the non-current interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value approximates to their carrying amount.

40.

41.

SRR RMIEE
31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

REHNESNERTIA (&)

TREENEE (B

EZEAIEZHNEE RS REZE ()

FERAFESHERILIERZERBEOZ
FERIEIRBORTBEREAEMEYH
NERSBEERAR HERHEKEE EFR
A AEERFBESHERIERIREBENAT
BEREK-

HE S ERE_—F+"A=+—
BEEE AEBTERID KR IERIZE
REZHAHENTAREXNERE REZEEE
FEAMS  MERIFTESEANKRELE
B-REEEERSHEELTEZ

TMIANAFERRTFERER

EEENE REBEEEEY BZRBIR
BE-RWREBERERES B5BAMIE 5
AFRMRIE e R EMBWRIE B F BN
MIENERE E 5t A B M RIB R E S
MENEMEE  BRER T RIRTRAEM
BERRBNE D~ FEURRRE 75 IR BN BB D ~ 17
EEMIE -BATESFAEMEEEADN
BRZEBEUARZATES ARG ERMEE
NAFTERAREZREERE TERAR
ZETANFBHERIE

EEERA ARTRFEBLAEKL W IR
ATEABEZFRBTAERTREERER
ZATERREZREAMBHESE -EERBTR
BOBATESEZFRBARERMEEK
BEZAFEAREZREERS

X MBERAR c002Es AT
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE M. ERTAENAFERATEER

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (the “CFQ”) and the
board of directors. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the CFO.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
was based on the quoted price provided by the financial institution
in active markets or expected future cash flows from future
proceeds. The directors believe that the estimated fair values which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in profit
or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2022

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

M. ERTENATFERATFERLR

(%)

RTERER

TRRAPEEESRTENAFEFBER:

BRATEFENEE

B2+ =-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEHEER

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
HiERTE
BFHRME

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AHREN  FUHEN
EZWAYE EZBUARE

(E—4) (E=H) (BE=H) it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Bills receivable at fair value through other BAFEFARMZERAN
comprehensive income W ER - 1,389 - 1,389
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABENEHEE
profit or loss 20,547 4,998 - 25,545
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA - 607 - 607
20,547 7,494 - 28,041

XEEMRIERAR 202265 249



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& HMRIRRMEE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

N TRTANATERATEER
(48)
ATERR (8
W-F-—£+-A=+—§

Fair value measurement using

AT R
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

HRREMS EZER  FUBRES

NERE B2RAEE ERRAEE
E-% EZ® E=R 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AREBTR AREBTR ARETR

Bills receivable at fair value through other BATESARMEEEAN
comprehensive income EWEE - 3,773 = 3,773
Financial assets at fair value through BAVTEABENEREE
profit or loss 43,119 5,522 - 48,641
43,119 9,295 - 52,414
Liabilities measured at fair value BATEFENERE

As at 31 December 2021

RIE-—F+"A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHEER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RS REN  TUREN

WERE E2RAUE E2RAHUE
&E—H) B E=R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:

Derivative financial instruments fTE+mIA

= 654 = 654
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash, short-
term deposits and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities, such as lease receivables, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 16% (2021:
8%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst approximately nil (2021: nil) of costs were denominated
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

42. R EMREEBFRREE

AEENTESHTREEEREREHER
Rt BRTKEMER ZETMTANE
EENAEELAERKEMAETS F&H
BEAZEHAMNEREENER WREEM
ERELNHEHERERMIE  BZRIRIEAR
HAth FE W R IR LU B 5 FE {3 70 08 e HL At P& A

IR o

AEBAENERR FERER - ERARKR
NPETRB - FAEENSREEEREEZ
EREBENEERN EFTRILAEERE
BIEZE ARAER W T St o

SIS R B

FEFAEHRZERR R ILFRRELE
BANHEINEEBEUIINEBETHENR
BEL -AEEMFHEDN16% (TF-—
F18%) MUETTHENKEBMUNINESH
DUNNE B BHNENT (CE—F:
B AN EUEEBLUSINNESETE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (arising from RMB denominated financial
instruments).

42, R EAMEEBRREE (&)

Shs mBE (48)

TRETRRSHRAEEMEERITTE
BBERT  AEREERAGEN (AUARES
ENERIAMES) HARBEXRNGER
BEEBRISRRIIE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in RMB rate before tax
ARMEER PR AT
EFH 7 (FER) o, G
RMB’000
AREF T
2022 s F
If US$ weakens against RMB HETRARKEERE 10% (313)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETRAREAE (10%) 313
2021 B -F
If US$ weakens against RMB HWETEARKEE 10% (385)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETRAREAE (10%) 385
Interest rate risk = =

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank and other borrowings (note 31). Management
monitors the interest rate exposures and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposures should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relates
to loan receivables and bank balances carried at prevailing market
rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as these
loan receivables and bank balances are almost short-term in
nature.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the interest rate as stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. TR EMEREBERBER ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (Continued) MERE (B
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on UTHRESMAIREBIERITREMBE
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank and other MAHERBMEBETE - HBEILDITRFBRRNIEK
borrowings, which is prepared assuming the amount of liabilities EHHR A EBEEBGEEEEZFRMEKE
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for Bo
the whole year.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRETRFMEBEEMESRIFAENBERT
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held AEBERRAIGHEBIBANXEENTE
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact on HA XN ESIE 0] RS E B
floating rate borrowings.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax
HEh PRI ATAR
‘i, G Bm, Gad)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT AR¥ETT
2022 —_EC
RMB AR 50 (1,282)
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 2
RMB AR (50) 1,282
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 2
2021 B &
RMB AR 50 (1,083)
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 @)
RMB AR (50) 1,083
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, TRHEMREEEEREE (@)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades mainly with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount
of trade, bills and lease receivables and contract assets to
ensure that adequate provision for impairment losses is made for
irrecoverable amounts. For transactions that are not denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of senior
management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
loan receivables, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, other receivables and amounts due
from related parties, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with loan receivables since the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debtor at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty and geographical region. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the
customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely
dispersed in different regions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables, loan receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in notes 22, 23(b) and 24,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, TRIAMGEEBREREER (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging B K B B bl O Bz B R P BE P ER
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum THREVNERAEEBEERKITNEER
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which ZEhmAGEERRHO (HXTZERBFAE
is mainly based on past due information unless other information HER  RIFBENEABNENRAIE S
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging B ESEMENSERNH AR+ 2A
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are =+ —HZEREREERDE-FI2% &8
gross carrying amounts for financial assets. REMEENEIREE
31 December 2022 —E-_F+=ZR=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 5 F8HA
EEESR 2HENEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
g2l T2 $HR3 b Foh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTFR AREBFR AREFR  ARETR

Trade, bills and lease receivables* BRENEE BHZER
HEmREE - - - 61,827 61,827

Loan receivable e &R 141,715 - - - 141,715
Bills receivable at fair value through other A F{E5t AR M2 E A

comprehensive income HEWER 1,889 - - - 1,889
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t ATB{I 0B~ Eft I

other receivables and other assets ERHEMEEZ CREE

- Normal*™* —EE" 20,398 - - - 20,398
Financial assets included in amounts due st AFEWBIE A VB £/

from related parties BE 12,733 - - - 12,733
Deposits receivable included in other non- 5t A EIEFEN S E 2 FEIL

current assets % 1,904 - - - 1,904
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED

— Not yet past due — KA 143,834 - - - 143,834
Pledged deposits BIEEER

— Not yet past due — B R 3,109 - - - 3,109

325,582 - - 61,827 387,409

XEHMBBRAR 2002E% 29D
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(Continued)

31 December 2021

42, R EAMEEBRREE (&)

BRA BB O R FRFREEFEER (8)

—®-—#+ZA=+—H§

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12[ER B
ZEE1B 2HRHEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE FER2 FER3 B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARETT AREBTT AREBFT
Trade, bills and lease receivables” B RIE RN EER
TRERTE" - - - 62,578 62,578
Contract assets* BHEE - - - 18,656 18,656
Loan receivable FEER 158,400 - - - 158,409
Bills receivable at fair value through other /A &5t AR M2 ERA
comprehensive income iofilet 3,773 = = = 3,773
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t A TE{THIE » EftfE I
other receivables and other assets REMEEZ EMEE
- Normal** —-EE" 18,708 - - - 18,708
Amounts due from related parties FEW IR A 10,034 - - - 10,034
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY
—Not yet past due e N 86,551 = = = 86,551
277,475 - - 81,234 358,709

For trade receivables, lease receivables and contract assets to
which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes
22 and 24 to the financial statements.

oy The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at each
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

is as follows:

31 December 2022

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

42. R EAMEEBRREE ()

MENE = EL R

FEEUEREERDESREATAERES
RRER L TARREESM I ARERM
BE (WEZRWRIE) NEIAA - it 788 &
BEENRERE

AEENEREBBEERRTEREEEZD
FEMREEEZERT -

REREEH FEFRSORFTRMIES
IHEREENIBEEROT

S _F+ZHA=+—H8

On
demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
one year years years Total
BEKRS
—£R —EERE BRRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBFT
Trade payables BRENTA 79,811 - - 79,811
Amounts due to related parties FETRARE A B - 445 238 683
Financial liabilities included in other payables 5t A ELfth & {1 2018 R: FE 5+ 7018
and accruals =Y 4,969 - - 4,969
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 25817 R EME X
(excluding lease liabilties) FrEzHEam) 97,823 139,972 = 237,795
Deposits payable fEftize - 49 4,777 4,826
Lease liabilities HESE 443 185 - 628
183,046 140,651 5,015 328,712

XBIMEERAR 20205 2DI
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

42, R EAMEEBRREE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

31 December 2021

MENE = AR ()

—s-—#+ZA=+—H

On
demand or
with in 105 Over 5
one year years years Total
BERY
—FR —EZRF BBRE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFR AREFT ARETFT ARETT
Trade payables B EPHE 99,954 - - 99,954
Amounts due to related parties FETRARE A B 673 428 = 1,101
Financial liabilities included in other payables 51 A ELAt & T 2008 K FE 5+ 70 IEAY
and accruals By =K 5,364 - - 5,364
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 25817 R EME R
(excluding lease liabilties) FrEzHEam) 82,373 188,028 = 270,401
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMIA 654 - - 654
Deposits payable fEftize - 49 2,243 2,292
Lease liabilities HE&E 579 36 - 615
189,597 188,541 2,243 380,381
Capital management BARERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2022.
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42.

43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group regards total shareholders’ equity as its capital and
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt to total
shareholders’ equity. Total debt includes interest-bearing bank.
Total shareholders’ equity comprises all components of equity
attributable to shareholders of the company. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB731,000 (2021: RMB343,000) and RMB731,000
(2021: RMB343,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

42.

43.

SRR RMIEE
31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

TREREEBRREER (&)

BAXEE (@

FEERKRREBDZBESEEATERAESR
BELER REHBERURRED MBI
B EREXA - BEHRBREESRBRITEE
REBDBECESABDEE ABGERD
FRESD AEENBRABELBR/ILER
R SEKTE

AaHRERERNWE

(@) EEIFREXH

REE_E-—_F#+-"HA=+—HIHEF
B AEEMEFHEZEYREEY
FREEERTMEEBNIERSFRE
ARME731,0007T (ZB - —F : AR
343,0007T) K AR %731,0007t (=&
——% AR ¥343,0007T) °

(b) REESHELENERES

2022 T
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITEE HEaRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR®FT
At 1 January 2022 Ro=-——#—A—8 236,617 569
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREEH (20,258) (629)
New leases MgEE - 731
Foreign exchange movement B 2 B4 13 45
Interest expense FERX - 25
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKRERESEREZ
cash flow [=ENES) - (25)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AT (256) (172)
At 31 December 2022 s e [ o T 216,116 544
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B HMERRMGE

31 December 2022 —“E " "F+_"H=+—H

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

43. SHRTRERME (@)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEFHEENEGGRES (B
financing activities (Continued)
2021 =
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITEE HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021 A= —FE—F—H 168,267 1,106
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRE2EH) 68,365 (840)
New leases Mg E - 343
Foreign exchange movement & (15) (40)
Interest expense FERZ - 71

Interest paid classified as operating cash D3EAKERESREZ BB

flows

(71)

At 31 December 2021 A —FE+"B=+—H 236,617 569
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEEENRERHLEEE
2022 2021
—EHF TE—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEF T
Within operating activities R ZEEN 215 422
Within financing activities RREEE T 628 840
At 31 December W+ZB=+—H 843 1,262

44, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

On 16 January 2023, Yongsheng Dyeing, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a loan agreement with a
third party, pursuant to which Yongsheng Dyeing provided a loan
of RMB20,000,000 to this third party with a period of one year,

bearing an interest of 6% per annual.
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45.

46.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re-presented
as if the operations discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period (note 11).

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB R

31 December2022 —E - _—F+_H=+—H

45. LEB &8

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

i

EEXRPZIERUFEEHZ2Y) BUWHR A
HARIAR IS 2 £ N L BB HBREER
GEIRDE

46. N RFINMBFR AR

ERBNHREMRRYBRRROERAT ¢

2022 2021
—EH =2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥EFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABNKE 876,168 881,632
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENE ELRZE 876,168 881,632
CURRENT ASSETS TREEE
Prepayments, other receivables and other B FIE Et BN IERE
assets & E 210 177
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIBEEEY 31,245 16,269
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS BB EARLE 31,455 16,446
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENAaE
Other payables and accruals HhpE(TTIE K FE ST 7B 6 349
Due to subsidiaries AN VNI 229,488 227 144
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES BB EAREE 229,494 227,493
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES MENBEFEE (198,039) (211,047)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EEERTHEES 678,129 670,585
NET ASSETS FEE 678,129 670,585
EQUITY et
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 7~ ]S B FE(L T
OF THE COMPANY
Share capital [N 5,854 6,063
Share premium RRADEB 797,630 810,013
Other reserves HAuEE (125,355) (145,491)
TOTAL EQUITY EERABRE 678,129 670,585

XM ERAR 2022 201
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B HMERRMGE
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

46. S ATFRIM IR R T (48)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRABIEBHBEWT :
Foreign Equity-
currency settled
Share Share Accumulated  translation  arrangement
capital premium losses* reserve* reserve*  Total equity
MEIBE ERGE
K& RiNEE  RHER e RHEE 1EsiaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R_2-—F-F—H 6,054 826,670 (8,438 17,010 9,471 855,767
Loss for the year FREE - - (167,717) - = (167,717)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZESE
Exchange differences on translation of financial BB BERENERZH
statements - - - (216) - (216)
Total comprehensive income for the year FENZENALE - - (167,717) (216) - (167,933)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ RIZRABREZAHRE - (18,206) - - - (18,206)
Exercise of share options TiErEmRE 9 1,549 S S (601) 957
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RIBZ-#+ZA=1+-H
kZE-_Z#-A-H 6,063 810,013 (171,159) 16,794 8,870 670,585
Profit for the year EREA - - 19,468 - = 19,468
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZARA
Exchange differences on translation of financial BB ERENERZH
statements - - - 668 - 668
Total comprehensive income for the year FENZEBALE - - 19,468 668 - 20,136
Shares repurchased BERIRG (209) (12,383) - - = (12,592)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZ-E+-B=+-H 5,804 797,630 (151,687) 17,462 8,870 678,129

These reserve accounts comprise a deficit in the other reserves

of RMB125,355,000 (2021: RMB145,491,000) in the statement

of financial position of the Company.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 30 March 2023.
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RESULTS

Five-year Financial Summary

I AT E

ES

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+ZA=+—HLEFE

Adjusted
e
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—ECCE “TT-F ZE2IER 25 ZZ-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETR AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBFT
(Represent)
(1= E751)
Revenue from continuing operations {5 /&4 & £ I% 216,014 206,182 361,936 306,539 206,420
Gross profit from continuing FRCELBER
operations 68,411 73,246 112,373 102,454 89,987
Operating (loss)/profit i (F18) /EA (47,252) (72,214) 90,359 69,615 73,071
Finance costs B (14,990) (7.212) (1,785) (1,005) (297)
(Loss)/profit before tax FRifAn (§548) /&R (62,242) (79,426) 88,574 68,610 72,774
Income tax expense FriEMmS (9,884) (3,153) (17,431) (17,597) (15,252)
(Loss)/profit from continuing HHEREER
operations (&518) /a7 (72,126) (82,579) 71,143 51,013 57,522
(Loss)/gain for a discontinued BRIMEEERE
operation (518) /Wi 14,164 (163,744) = 84,035 29,157
(Loss)/profit for the year ER (F8) /58 (57,962) (246,323) 71,143 135,048 29,157
Attributable to: T EAGER
Shareholders of the Company EARRR (55,178) (245,307) 72,685 113,895 80,751
Non-controlling interests E[ei g (2,784) (1,016) (1,542) 21,153 5,928
(Losses)/earnings per share =k 558 /B
Basic (RMB cents per share) BEX (BRARES) (7.7 (33.5) 9.9 16.4 20.4
Diluted (RMB cents per share) BE (ERARES) (7.7 (33.5) 9.8 16.2 199
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Five-year Financial Summary

LFEMBHME
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
As at 31 December
®+-ZB=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
=8z “RT-5 IEC®RE ZEhE ZERN\E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,044,622 900,725 1,017,370 920,649 268,953
Current assets hBEE 405,838 653,861 764,628 740,712 532,173
Total assets BEE 1,450,460 1,554,586 1,781,998 1,661,361 801,126
Current liabilities it i=E (180,056) (203,681) (204,997) (132,772) (179,716)
Non-current liabilities ElFrEal=i= (165,862) (185,822) (146,769) (91,549) (21,496)
Total liabilities RS (345,918) (389,503) (351,766) (224,321) (201,212)
EQUITY s
Equity attrioutable to AABREEGER
shareholders of the Company 1,101,887 1,160,311 1,428,284 1,437,040 556,198
Non-controlling interests e R 2,655 4,772 1,048 - 43,716
Total equity i 1,104,542 1,165,083 1,430,232 1,437,040 599,914
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